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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

S|

B AL 1
FISBix it

FRAEBRHEA
BEAFE RN

BEFT  BETT  EETT  EETT | EETx
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HK$'000 | HKS’000

Results
Profit before taxation 176,834 251,365 321,953 858,802 574,614
Income tax expense (3,946) (10,022) (21,370) (32,062) (18,260)

Profit for the year attributable to
equity holders of the Company 172,888 241,343 300,583 826,740 556,354

A F AR A A REAY ¥

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
BT BETFT BETT BET T BEFT
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000

EEFE Net assets
ME - BERRE Property, plant and equipment 22,892 21,644 20,454 19,445 20,404
BEME Investment properties 98,281 95,695 122,456 136,193 154,825
EX-YNE Joint ventures 1,367,863 1,649,907 1,963,657 64,901 —
Bans] Associates 44,735 11,654 13,879 2,237,071 2,468,663
AHHEGHEE  Available-for-sale financial assets 656,640 488313 477,114 622,094 452,522
BRBAE Reinsurance assets 1,903 1,665 3,268 2523 2,097
EXHEHEE Deferred income tax assets 658 475 428 419 376
RBEE Current assets 841,464 761,696 791,440 1166764 | 1,209,443
REAE Current liabilities (343,979) (330,854) (337,868) (392,133) (305,125)
FITER Bank borrowings (113,551) — — — =
RBAH Insurance contracts (18,306) (15,262) (14,069) (14,554) (21,896)
ELREHARE Deferred income tax liabilities (10,570) (18.211) (33,844) (37,972) (45,577)
BEFE Net assets 2,548,030 2,666,722 3,006,915 3,804,751 3,935,732
B4R Total equity
A Share capital 459,429 459,429 459,429 459,429 459,429
AfAEe Other reserves 1728894 1761357 1930407 1927830 | 1,595,645
RS Al Retained profits

R 2 Proposed dividend 13,783 13,783 18377 41,348 22,971

Hit ¥ Others 345,924 432,153 598,702 1,307,833 1,857,687
REM2EEE Amount recognised in other

HER RN R comprehensive income and

STRFELE accumulated in equity

MEEBBMNFIE  relating to assets held for sale — — — 68,311 —
AQFERFEA  Total equity attributable to

EERERARE equity holders of the Company 2,548,030 2,666,722 3,006,915 3,804,751 3,935,732

A F AR R N AN A 2 A

TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
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Mr Weng Ruo Tong (Chairman)
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In 2013, while concerns remain about the impacts of curtailment
of the quantitative easing of the United States and the slowdown
of the economic growth in China, the overall outlook for the
global economy is showing signs of recovery. China insists on its
keynote policy as “Progress while maintaining stability, reform
with innovation” and continues its stable monetary policy
and proactive fiscal policy to promote industrial restructuring,
intensify financial reforms and control debt risks, which is
positive for the China’s long-term economy development.
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OPERATING RESULTS

Due to the reduction of extraordinary gains recorded as
compared to those of last year, the Group reported an audited
consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of HK$556.35
million with basic earnings per share amounted to 121.1 HK
cents in 2013, a decrease of 32.7% as compared to HK$826.74
million in last year.

Although the shareholding of the Company is reduced from
36.75% at 30 November 2012 to approximately 16.9333% on the
completion of the third tranche of the Share Issue by Xiamen
International Bank at 31 January 2013, the share of results of
Xiamen International Bank by the Group was only lowered by
HK$65.81 million benefiting from the substantial growth in the
results achieved by Xiamen International Bank.

During the year, the Group recorded a one-off after-tax gain of
HK$122.97 million on the disposal of its 100% equity interest
in Minxin (Suzhou) Property Development Co., Ltd. (“Minxin
Suzhou”) and a one-off dilution gain of HK$41.19 million
on the dilution of the shareholding of the Company from
approximately 18.7739% to approximately 16.9333% on the
completion of the third tranche of the Share Issue by Xiamen
International Bank. Compared to the one-off after-tax gain
of HK$108.14 million on the disposal of its 5% equity interest
in Xiamen International Bank and the one-off dilution gains
in the aggregate of HK$305.27 million on the dilution of the
shareholding of the Company from approximately 31.75% to
approximately 18.7739% on the completion of two tranches
of the Share Issue by Xiamen International Bank recorded in
last year, the extraordinary gains recorded by the Group was
decreased by HK$249.25 million in this year. The Group reported
a decrease in audited consolidated profit attributable to equity
holders of HK$21.14 million if the aforementioned extraordinary
gains are excluded.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company has
resolved to recommend at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting of the Company to be held on 12 June 2014 (“2014
AGM”) the payment of a final dividend of 5 HK cents per share
totaling HK$22,971,433 for the year ended 31 December
2013 (2012: final dividend of 4 HK cents per share totaling
HK$18,377,146 and special dividend of 5 HK cents per share
totaling HK$22,971,433). The proposed dividend, if approved,
will be paid on or before 4 July 2014.
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BUSINESS REVIEW
Financial Services

In 2013, the Group's financial services reported an audited net
profit after tax of HK$389.7 million, a decrease of 53.6% over
HK$839.25 million of last year. Excluding the extraordinary gain
on the disposal of 5% equity interest and the dilution of the
shareholding of the Company in Xiamen International Bank, the
audited net profit after tax amounted to HK$348.51 million, a
decrease of 18.2% as compared to HK$425.85 million of last year.

The Group, through its associate, Xiamen International Bank,
conducts banking business in Mainland China and Macao.
Following the successful implementation of two tranches of the
Share Issue and the turning into a joint stock limited company
in 2012, Xiamen International Bank has also completed the third
tranche of the Share Issue on 31 January 2013 with its registered
capital being increased to more than RMB2 billion. Besides, the
Group set up a wholly foreign-owned subsidiary principally
engaged in the provision of micro credit business in Sanming
City, Fujian Province in November 2013.

Banking Business

During the year under review, following the determination to
intensify financial reforms, the Central Government introduces
new banking regulatory policies in order to constrain the strong
credit growth, resulted in rising interbank interest rate and
corresponding credit crunch. Facing the tight market liquidity
pressure on the domestic banking system, Xiamen International
Bank seized the favorable factor of having significant increase
in shareholders’ funds following the Share Issues, carved out a
niche in the new business market through products innovation.
Xiamen International Bank has once again achieved sound
results with total assets breakthrough RMB260 billion, an
increase of approximately RMB54.3 billion as compared to that
at the end of last year.

Since return on equity remained stable following the Share
Issues, the increased shareholder capital has brought a
substantial increase in results by 66.5%. Xiamen International
Bank reported a consolidated net profit prepared in accordance
with the PRC Accounting Standards of RMB1,668.24 million in
2013, an increase of RMB666.08 million over RMB1,002.16 million
reported in last year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Financial Services (Continued)
Banking Business (Continued)

As at the end of December 2013, the total assets of Xiamen
International Bank grew by about 26.3% to RMB260.8 billion as
compared to those at the end of 2012. Gross loans to customers
rose by about 23.1% to approximately RMB81.4 billion, and
total deposits from customers up about 41.6% to approximately
RMB136.4 billion, as compared to the respective balances at
the end of 2012. In 2013, the net interest income of Xiamen
International Bank went up about 71.9% while net fee and
commission income surged by about 1.5 times as compared
with those of last year driven by the growth of loan portfolio and
the effect brought by new business.

Looking forward into 2014, the Central Government will
continue its economic and financial reforms to improve the
quality and efficiency of economic growth aimed to support
the healthy, stable and sustainable economic development.
Under the increased regulatory operating environment, Xiamen
International Bank will continue to adhere to stable operation
with considerable yields while risk controllable, strive to develop
the vast opportunities of new businesses and new markets with
a view to deliver value for its shareholders.

Micro Credit Business

On 23 September 2013, the Company obtained official approval
granted by the Fujian Provincial Economic and Information
Technology Commission for the establishment of a wholly
foreign-owned subsidiary in Sanming City, Fujian Province.
Following the approval granted by the Department of
Commerce of Fujian Province on 15 October, Sanming Sanyuan
District Minxin Micro Credit Company Limited (“Minxin Micro
Credit”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, was
incorporated on 26 November. The registered capital of Minxin
Micro Credit is RMB300 million.

Minxin Micro Credit launched its micro credit business in
December 2013. As at the end of December 2013, the total
assets of Minxin Micro Credit stood at approximately RMB298.99
million. The balance of micro loans to customers was RMB32.6
million, mainly comprised cross joint-guaranteed loans and
collateralised loans.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Financial Services (Continued)
Micro Credit Business (Continued)

In 2013, Minxin Micro Credit generated an interest income from
micro loans of approximately RMB0.33 million and bank interest
income of approximately RMB0.24 million respectively. Minxin
Micro Credit reported an audited loss of approximately RMB2.6
million mainly due to the recognition of the exchange losses of
approximately RMB1.89 million resulted from the translation
of the registered capital injected in cash denominated in Hong
Kong Dollars using exchange rate announced by the People’s
Bank of China. Minxin Micro Credit has entered into forward
foreign exchange contracts to fix the exchange settlement
rate with a local bank aimed at minimising exchange rate risks,
a fair value gain on the re-measurement of the derivative of
approximately RMB0.48 million was recorded in 2013.

Insurance Business

Min Xin Insurance Company Limited (“MXIC"), the Group’s
wholly-owned subsidiary, reported an audited profit after tax of
HK$3.76 million in 2013, an increase of 53% from that of HK$2.46
million in 2012. Such increase in results was mainly due to the
improvement of the underwriting result and the increase in fair
value gain on revaluation of the property held. The management
team of MXIC will remain vigilant and agile in exploiting
profitable business from the market.

Property Development and Investment

The property development and investment business of the
Group mainly comprises the real estate development business
and the leasing of certain investment properties in Mainland
China. In 2013, the property development and investment
business reported an audited profit after tax of HK$137.24
million, as compared with an audited loss after tax of HK$14.41
million in 2012.
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B2 7 MIN XIN HOLDINGS LIMITED .E.

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Property Development and Investment (Continued)

The persistent control policies in the property market imposed
by the Central Government and uncertain economic outlook in
Mainland China have created a “wait-and-see” mentality among
the potential mid-end to high-end property purchasers. Hence,
the sales performance of the real estate development in Suzhou,
Mainland China (the “Suzhou Project”) undertaken by Minxin
Suzhou, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, has been
adversely affected.

In view of such adverse situation, the Group executed a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party in early
2013 to dispose of its 100% equity interest in Minxin Suzhou.
The Board of the Company considers that the disposal provides
the Group with an opportunity to exit the real estate market
of Suzhou and can realise the Suzhou Project in a faster way.
The disposal also generates cash flow to the Group, thereby
increasing its working capital. Following the shareholders’
approval at the extraordinary general meeting held on 28
February 2013, the disposal had been completed during the year
and the Group recorded a one-off after-tax gain on disposal of
HK$122.97 million.

Immediately before the completion of the disposal of 100%
equity interest in Minxin Suzhou, the Suzhou Project recorded
sales revenue of about RMB6.75 million and reported a loss
after tax of RMB1.71 million. The Suzhou Project recorded sales
revenue of about RMB30.12 million and reported an audited loss
after tax of RMB16.26 million in last year.

A steady and recurrent rental income as well as capital
appreciation were generated by the Group's investment
properties and car parks in Fuzhou, Fujian Province (the “Fuzhou
Property”). The Fuzhou Property recorded a rental income of
RMB4.82 million in 2013, up 23.2% as compared with RMB3.91
million reported in 2012. At 31 December 2013, the fair value
of the Fuzhou Property was RMB78.15 million, 9% higher than
the fair value of RMB71.71 million at the end of 2012. The Group
recorded a fair value gain of HK$10.92 million and a fair value
gain after deferred tax of HK$3.83 million in 2013, as compared
to a fair value gain of HK$7.74 million and a fair value gain after
deferred tax of HK$2.63 million in 2012.



SE55 Il gl (%5)

T HE RE B R O e A IR A R R B
([ FEREB A )

ZE=F T AR LBEFEEAEHEE-Z
——FRERTHY6.7%  FERARKTHRERE
B - —F+-_A=+—HBHHEKRAR
It T TE_E—=F+=-_H=+—~H
BB ARKE505T - AEERIEEREAR
Wi E BT EMNEERD ZAFERLE
WEEAs 228 T(ZEHARKI532608
7T ERFEEEHEAENEEBLNEK 16,957
B (ZE——F  RTFEKFIHEE 16,145
ET)EREMEEmKREAER - WERRE
TR EEHFEEEANY AR -

EREBRNDIEATAEERAFENAHLEES
BEE  ABASBEHREBENRERA - F
NERRE S ——FERPBREERAR
02170 AEEEE KRB WAL 1,856
BT —E——FAKBR =T ——FERH
KEFRARKO05TT  SBEKRBWABE
4398 7T °

Egm i amEPREFEARHINH T
——FFEEE EERARLTRF01% -
BEMARZRBRIES - R TF%8.3% @ F
xS ERFAE AFFBEARE105.218T -
=T —ZF £7793%  BREZARE
07570 L ZE—Z—FHNERKEARE
04270 * BIRIEIIARE0.337T ©

Y—1 == E=el
0By —Z—=%%3 Annual Report 2013

E R o
CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Investment in Huaneng Power International, Inc.
(“Huaneng Shares”)

At the end of December 2013, the Shanghai Composite Index
declined by about 6.7% as compared to that at the end of
2012. The closing bid price of Huaneng’s A-share fell from
RMB7.15 per share at 31 December 2012 to RMB5.05 per share
at 31 December 2013. The fair value of the Group's investment
in Huaneng Shares measured with reference to the closing
bid price of Huaneng’s A-Share decreased to approximately
HK$452.52 million (equivalent to approximately RMB353.26
million). The loss of approximately HK$169.57 million arising
from the change in its fair value (2012: fair value gain of
approximately HK$161.45 million) was recorded in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity in
the investment revaluation reserve.

Being classified as a long term available-for-sale financial asset of
the Group, Huaneng Shares generate a steady dividend income
to the Group. During the year, Huaneng paid a final dividend for
2012 of RMBO0.21 per share, the Group recorded dividend income
totaling HK$18.56 million, as compared to the final dividend
payment for 2011 of RMBO0.05 per share totaling HK$4.39 million
received by the Group in 2012.

Huaneng recently announced its 2013 annual results under the
PRC Accounting Standards. Its operating revenue has decreased
by 0.1% year-on-year, while its operating expenses have
dropped by 8.3% as compared with last year due to effective
control. Its net profit attributable to equity holders has increased
by 79.3% to RMB10.52 billion with earnings per share of RMB0.75
for the year under review, as compared to RMBO0.42 per share in
2012, an increase of RMBO0.33 per share.

1

11
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Net Asset Value per Share

The Group persists in investing prudently as usual and strives
to maintain a healthy financial position. Based on 459,428,656
shares in issue (2012: 459,428,656 shares), the net asset value per
share was HK$8.57 at 31 December 2013 (2012: HK$8.28).

Total Liabilities to Equity Ratio and Current Ratio

At 31 December 2013, the total liabilities of the Group were
HK$372.6 million (2012: HK$444.66 million) and the ratio of
total liabilities to total equity attributable to equity holders of
the Company was 9.5% (2012: 11.7%). At 31 December 2013,
the current assets and current liabilities of the Group were
HK$1,209.44 million (2012: HK$618.98 million) and HK$305.13
million (2012: HK$182.78 million) respectively with a current
ratio of 4 (2012: 3.4).

Borrowings and Charged Assets

During the year, the Group drew down new revolving loans of
HK$200 million and fully repaid the revolving loan of HK$50
million outstanding at 31 December 2012. At 31 December 2013,
the Group had outstanding bank loans principal of HK$200
million (2012: HK$50 million) to be repaid within one year. The
bank loans of the Group are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars
and subject to floating interest rates. The Group had undrawn
revolving loan and overdraft facilities totaling HK$60 million at
31 December 2013.

At 31 December 2013, the above bank loans were secured by the
Group’s bank deposits denominated in Renminbi equivalent to
approximately HK$219 million, and the undrawn revolving loan
and overdraft facilities were secured by the Group's property
with a book value of approximately HK$10.96 million (2012:
approximately HK$11.22 million).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Borrowings and Charged Assets (Continued)

At 31 December 2012, the Group had entrusted bank loan
principal from Fujian Investment & Development Group Co.,
Ltd., a substantial shareholder of the Company, of RMB90 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$111.94 million) with a term
to be expired on 24 June 2013. The entrusted bank loan was
unsecured and borne interest at 10% per annum. Following the
completion of the disposal of 100% equity interest in Minxin
Suzhou by the Group during the year, the obligation of the
remaining balance of the entrusted bank loan amounting to
RMB90 million (equivalent to approximately HK$112.51 million)
had been passed to the buyer who will be responsible for
repayment.

Save for the above, the other assets of the Group were not
pledged at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012.

Gearing Ratio

At 31 December 2013, the gearing ratio of the Group (total
borrowings and advances divided by total net assets) still
maintained at a relatively low level and was only 5.1% (2012:
4.3%).

Cash Position

The Group's bank deposits are interest bearing at prevailing
market rates. At 31 December 2013, the total bank deposits of
the Group amounted to HK$909.35 million (2012: HK$183.18
million) of which 51.9% were denominated in Hong Kong
Dollars, 47% in Renminbi and 1.1% in other currencies (2012:
61.6% in Hong Kong Dollars, 34% in Renminbi and 4.4% in other
currencies).

Pursuant to the requirements from the Office of the
Commissioner of Insurance in Hong Kong, a subsidiary maintains
at all times a portion of its funds, being not less than HK$16
million (2012: HK$16 million), in bank deposits. That subsidiary
has also maintained a bank deposit of approximately MOP9.93
million (equivalent to approximately HK$9.64 million) (2012:
approximately MOP7.49 million, equivalent to approximately
HK$7.28 million) for fulfilling certain requirements under the
Macao Insurance Ordinance.

1
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Cash Position (Continued)

According to the guarantees provided by Minxin Suzhou, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, in respect of mortgage
facilities granted by certain banks to certain purchasers of its
properties in Mainland China, at 31 December 2012, Minxin
Suzhou had placed deposits of approximately RMB1.32 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$1.64 million) at designated
bank accounts for potential default in payment of mortgage
loans advanced to those property purchasers. Such deposits will
only be released when those property purchasers obtain the
“property title certificate” which is then pledged to the relevant
banks. Those deposits had been passed to the buyer following
the completion of the disposal of 100% equity interest in Minxin
Suzhou by the Group during the year.

Risk of Exchange Rate Fluctuation

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, Mainland China and
Macao, the exposure in exchange rate risks mainly arises from
fluctuations in the Hong Kong Dollars and Renminbi exchange
rates. As the Hong Kong Dollars and Renminbi are both under
managed floating systems, the Group reviews and monitors
periodically its foreign currency exposure and considers hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
The Group injected the registered capital of Minxin Micro Credit
in Hong Kong Dollars during the year. Minxin Micro Credit has
entered into forward foreign exchange contracts to fix the
exchange settlement rate with a local bank aimed at minimising
exchange rate risks, a fair value gain on the re-measurement of
the derivative of approximately RMB0.48 million was recorded
in 2013. Save for the above, the Group did not enter into any
derivative contracts aimed at minimising exchange rate risks
during the year.

Commitments
At 31 December 2013, the Group's capital commitments relating

to property, plant and equipment amounted to approximately
HK$0.21 million (2012: approximately HK$0.21 million).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Investment Commitments

At 31 December 2013, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group
had investment commitments relating to the contribution of
RMB15 million (equivalent to approximately HK$19.22 million)
to the registered capital of a joint venture company principally
engaged in the provision of micro credit and entrusted loans to
small and medium enterprises in Mainland China.

Contingent Liabilities

A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, Minxin Suzhou,
provided guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities granted
by certain banks and financial institutions to certain purchasers
of its properties in Mainland China. At 31 December 2012,
the maximum guarantees given to those banks and financial
institutions amounted to RMB46.21 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$57.48 million). Pursuant to the terms of
the guarantees, upon default in mortgage payments by
those purchasers, Minxin Suzhou is responsible to repay
the outstanding mortgage principals together with accrued
interest and penalty owed by those defaulted purchasers to the
relevant banks and financial institutions, and Minxin Suzhou is
entitled to take over the legal title and possession of the related
properties. The guarantee period starts from the date of grant
of the relevant mortgage loans and ends when the property
purchaser obtains the “property title certificate” which is then
pledged to the relevant banks and financial institutions. Those
maximum guarantees had been passed to the buyer following
the completion of the disposal of 100% equity interest in Minxin
Suzhou by the Group during the year.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had 71 employees. The
remuneration of the employees is based on individual merits
and experience. The Group also provides other benefits to the
employees including retirement benefits and medical scheme.

1
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PROSPECTS

Looking forward into 2014, it is believed that the Central
Government will continue to implement its keynote policy as
“Progress while maintaining stability, reform with innovation”
and promote policies and measures in financial and tax reforms
acceleration, interest rate marketisation and fluctuating
exchange rate widening aimed to improve the quality and
efficiency of economic growth. It will also maintain a moderate
monetary policy and prevent and control risks from debt of local
governments and real estate market to support a healthy, stable
and sustainable economic development. At the same time,
the ensuing credit tightening by the Central Government will
intensify the competition for deposits among banks. In the short
term, the chance of downward trend for the economic growth
in Mainland China is likely and the financial sector will face a
more challenging operating environment. Furthermore, the risk
of capital outflows in emerging economies persists due to the
continuing curtailment of its quantitative easing policy by the
U.S. Federal Reserve. Thus, the pace of global economic recovery
will be affected by such uncertainties.

As an investment-based company with sound financial position,
the Group will continue to maintain a prudent and stable
investment strategy to seek for investment opportunities with
steady return. The successful establishment of a wholly-owned
subsidiary carry out micro credit business in Sanming City by
the Group has set a solid foundation for non-banking financial
new business of the Group. The Group will continue to manage
risk prudently, seek sustainable development projects, enhance
its operational efficiency and promote the Group's long-term
development as well as the long-term interests and values for
our shareholders.

APPRECIATION

| would like to take this opportunity to thank the Directors,
management team and all our staff for their continued hard
work, dedicated services and contributions to the business
development of the Group. Also, on behalf of the Board, | would
like to express our appreciation and gratitude to our business
partners and stakeholders for their continued trust and support.

WENG RUO TONG
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2014



Y—1 == E=el
0By —Z—=%%3 Annual Report 2013

R E AR N Bl R

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

HATHE S

FER 59 B_TENTFHARES
FEARGBIEBEE YREARE_T
ENFERNAZTHHEETARAEESE -
HgEa - ZZhAFLA—HEFATAELART
FTE SARENMBARAEHKESEZEESR
REZECEIR SEERERBERF K
N EEERE  ERREERARE  BEX
BENMCEERETE BALYEMNERE &
B AMREESAENMEESRELER -
EEEREAEMERARER - T @BEEAMNK
XBARBLENERIRERERATBKL
B ABMBERRTCESR A
AR FTERFREBREAREAEEERSRE
ERBIZEERK -

TR S1mc BT -_FRAREZ
ERARRIZEBEERAESTR - 2hE
MRAABFEHEETLZEENE - ZRER
BEREBEF  KEZ2L URPEKRES
REETEAM S AABEEE o RALELERE
BT AEENEXEE  MBEENE
TEFER  BRIERERMEERAM
EE T BHBHBER RREEFAEEAQR
SEZER LT - BIBSETE - AL
2 BEEHE U RPERRRARERA
AISHRE - MEK AEEEREMNERE
BAREERBZBEE  UREEARAQF
ZEERIF  ZMEARNBARARNRARZE
ZRR °

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Weng Ruo Tong, aged 59, has been appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company since April 2009, and served
as Vice Chairman of the Company since then until 30 June
2009. He has been subsequently re-designated as Chairman
of the Company since 1 July 2009. He is also the Chairman of
the Executive Committee and the Nomination Committee of
the Company. Mr Weng is a university graduate and has been
engaged in industrial investment, infrastructure construction
and development, capital and corporate management for
a substantial period of time. He has extensive experience
in investments, financing, infrastructure construction and
development, and corporate management. He had previously
assumed the positions of Vice Director of the Forestry
Department of Fujian Province, General Manager of Fujian
Forestry Company, General Manager of Fujian Investment
& Development Corporation. He is currently the Chairman
of both Xiamen International Bank and Fujian Investment &
Development Group Co., Ltd., a substantial shareholder of the
Company.

Mr Peng Jin Guang, aged 51, has been appointed as an
Executive Director and Vice Chairman of the Company since
June 2012. He is also a member of the Executive Committee
of the Company. Mr Peng is a university graduate and holds a
Bachelor’s Degree in Economics. He is a Senior Accountant and
Senior Lecturer in Mainland China. He has spent a substantial
period of time in corporate management and has extensive
experience in corporate, financial and capital management. He
has previously assumed the positions of Director of the Teaching
and Research Section and Chief of the Academic Affairs Office
of Fujian Ningde Fianace and Economics School, Director
of Accounting Center, Deputy Chief Accountant, Assistant
General Manager and Chief Accountant of Fujian Investment &
Development Corporation, and Financial Controller of CNOOC
Fujian Natural Gas Co., Ltd. He is currently the General Manager
of Fujian Investment & Development Group Co., Ltd., and a
Director and the Chairman of Vigour Fine Company Limited,
both of which are substantial shareholders of the Company.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr Li Jin Hua, aged 51, acted as a Non-executive Director of
the Company from April to 12 August 2009, and has been re-
designated as an Executive Director of the Company following
his appointment as Deputy General Manager of the Company
on 13 August 2009. He has subsequently been appointed as the
General Manager of the Company since 16 June 2010. He is also
a member of the Executive Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr Li is a university graduate and
holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration. He is a
Senior Economist and Senior Engineer in Mainland China, and
has been engaged in industrial investment, project development
and corporate management for a substantial period of time.
He has extensive experience in corporate management and
investment, development and construction. He has previously
assumed the positions of Deputy General Manager of Fujian Raw
Materials United Development Company, General Manager of
Zhong Min Leasing Company, General Manager of Fujian Hongfa
Economic Development Company, Deputy General Manager
of CNOOC Fujian Gas Power Co., Ltd., and Deputy General
Manager of the Planning and Development Department and
General Manager of the Gas Department of Fujian Investment &
Development Corporation. He is currently a Director of Xiamen
International Bank, the Chairman of Min Xin Insurance Company
Limited and the Chairman and General Manager of Fujian
Minxin Investments Co., Ltd. He is also a Director of both Vigour
Fine Company Limited and Samba Limited, both of which are
substantial shareholders of the Company.

Mr Zhang Rong Hui, aged 55, has been appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company since June 2011, and has
been re-designated as an Executive Director of the Company
since 8 June 2013. Mr Zhang is an Engineer in Mainland China.
He has extensive experience in real estate development,
construction, investment management and corporate
management. He has previously assumed the positions of
General Manager of the Zhangzhou Branch of Zhong Min C&D
Company, General Manager of Zhong Min C&D Property Co.,
Ltd., General Manager of Zhong Min C&D Decoration Company,
Deputy General Manager of Xiamen Zhong Min Company and
Xiamen Zhong Min Ju Hao Real Estate Company, and General
Manager and Chairman of Fujian Zhi He Investment Co., Ltd. He
is currently a Director of Sanming Sanyuan District Minxin Micro
Credit Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Liu Cheng, aged 53, has been appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company since June 2013. He is a Senior
Economist in Mainland China. He has extensive experience in
investment management, corporate management and logistics
management. He has previously assumed the positions of
Assistant General Manager and Deputy General Manager of
Fujian Zhong Min International Trade Development Company,
General Manager of Fujian Zhi He Trading Co., Ltd., Director
of the preparatory group for Fujian Zhong Min Natural Gas
Vehicle Filling Station, leader of the preparatory group for the
urban natural gas project, General Manager of CNOOC Fujian
Gas Co., Ltd., and General Manager of the Gas Investment and
Management Division of Fujian Investment & Development
Group Co., Ltd. He is currently the General Manager of the
Energy Investment and Management Division of Fujian
Investment & Development Group Co., Ltd., and a Director of
Vigour Fine Company Limited, both of which are substantial
shareholders of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Ip Kai Ming, aged 62, has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since July 1998. He is
the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member
of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee of
the Company. He is currently the Chairman of the Supervisory
Board of both Xiamen International Bank and Luso International
Bank. He is a fellow member of both the Hong Kong Institute
of Bankers and the Hong Kong Institute of Directors, and has
over 40 years' extensive experience in banking and finance. He
is also a Director of the Macao Chamber of Commerce and the
Vice Chairman of the Executive Board of the Macao Institute
of Financial Services. Mr Ip has a Master of Science Degree in
Corporate Governance and Directorship from the Hong Kong
Baptist University.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr Sze Robert Tsai To, aged 73, has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
May 1999. He is the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee of the Company. He is a Fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and was a partner
of an international firm of accountants with which he practised
for over 20 years. He is currently a Non-executive Director to a
number of Hong Kong listed companies.

Mr So Hop Shing, aged 66, has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
September 2004. He is a member of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of
the Company. He is a practising solicitor and senior partner
of Tang and So, Solicitors and Notaries. Mr So is the holder of
Bachelor of Laws Degree from the University of London, Master
of Laws Degree from the City University of Hong Kong and The
People’s University of China, and Doctor of Laws Degree from
Peking University.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms Cai Xiao Hong, aged 59, joined the Company as Deputy
General Manager in June 1995. She holds a Master’s Degree in
Business Administration from the University of California, Los
Angeles and has previously worked for various large companies.
She has over 20 years’ extensive experience in financial and
investment management. She is currently a Director of Min Xin
Insurance Company Limited.

Mr Zhang Fan, aged 41, joined the Company as Deputy
General Manager in August 2013. Mr Zhang graduated from the
Xiamen University in International Finance, holds a Bachelor of
Economics Degree. He is an Economist in Mainland China and
has 20 years’ extensive experience in financial management and
investment management. He is currently a Director of Min Xin
Insurance Company Limited, Sanming Sanyuan District Minxin
Micro Credit Company Limited and Fujian Minxin Investments
Co., Ltd., and is also a Director of Samba Limited, a substantial
shareholder of the Company.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Mr Chan Kwong Yu, aged 43, appointed as Deputy General
Manager and Financial Controller of the Company in March
2014. Mr. Chan joined the Company in April 2000 and was
appointed as Deputy Financial Controller in July 2004 and
Financial Controller in January 2008 respectively. He holds a
Bachelor of Commerce Degree in Accounting, and is a Certified
Public Accountant and a Fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Before joining the Company, he has
worked for various listed companies in Hong Kong. He has over
15 years of experience in accounting and financial management.
He is currently a member of the Remuneration Committee
of the Company, the Chief Representative of the Fuzhou
Representative Office of the Company, and also a Director of
Fujian Minxin Investments Co., Ltd. and Sanming Sanyuan
District Minxin Micro Credit Company Limited.

Ms Wu Yu Qi, aged 48, joined the Company as Group Chief
Auditor in August 2013. Ms Wu has a Master of Business
Administration Degree from the Xiamen University, she is a
Senior Accountant in Mainland China and a Certified Internal
Auditor. Ms Wu has over 25 years’ extensive experience in
risk management and control, audit, assets management and
financial management.

Mr Chan Kwok Kwong, aged 55, joined Min Xin Insurance
Company Limited (“MXIC”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, in 1999 and has subsequently been appointed as
Chief Executive and Director of MXIC since October 1999 and
September 2003 respectively. He holds a Master’s Degree in
Business Administration from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong and a Master’s Degree in Engineering (Civil & Structural
Engineering) from the Sheffield University of England. He has
acquired extensive experience from various multi-national
insurance and reinsurance companies for over 25 years.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Board of the Company is committed to achieving a high
standard of corporate governance. The Company has applied
the principles and code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with
the code provisions set out in the CG Code for the year ended 31
December 2013 save as disclosed below:

CG Code A.4.1 provides that non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. The Non-
executive Directors of the Company are not appointed for a
specific term, but they are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at annual general meetings in accordance with the
Company's Articles of Association.

CG Code A.6.7 provides that independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors should attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the
views of shareholders. Independent Non-executive Director, Mr
Ip Kai Ming and the then Non-executive Director, Mr Zhang Rong
Hui, were unable to attend the extraordinary general meeting
of the Company held on 28 February 2013 as they had overseas
engagements.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of the Company currently comprises a total of eight
Directors, with four Executive Directors, one Non-executive
Director and three Independent Non-executive Directors.

The three Independent Non-executive Directors possess
appropriate academic and professional qualifications or related
financial management expertise and have brought a wide range
of business, banking, accounting, legal and financial experience
to the Board. Brief biographical particulars of the Directors
are set out in the “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” section of this Annual Report.

The Board considers its diversity is vital to the sustainable
success of the Company. The Board adopted its Board Diversity
Policy in August 2013 with the aims of enhancing corporate
governance. Board diversity has been considered from a number
of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional skills, experience,
knowledge and length of service. The Nomination Committee of
the Company will monitor the implementation of this policy and
report annually.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has made an
annual confirmation of independence to the Company pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all the Independent Non-executive Directors meet the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules and are
independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

The Board determines the Group’s overall objectives and
strategies, monitors and evaluates its operating and financial
performance. It also decides on matters such as annual budgets
and business plans, major transactions, director appointments
or re-appointments, and dividend and accounting policies.
The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing its business strategies and managing the daily
operations of the Group’s businesses to senior management
under the supervision of the General Manager and the Executive
Committee of the Board.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board meetings are normally scheduled in advance to facilitate
fullest possible attendance. Each Director is invited to present any
businesses that he wishes to discuss or propose at such meetings.
All Directors have access to appropriate business documents and
information about the Company on a timely basis. The Board
and each Director has separate and independent access to senior
management of the Company. Directors may choose to take
independent professional advice at the Company’s expenses, if
necessary. Drafts and final versions of minutes are circulated to all
the Directors for their comment and records respectively. In 2013,
six board meetings, one extraordinary general meeting and the
annual general meeting for the year 2013 were held. The individual
attendance of each Director is set out below:

BRI
HE BT
Number of Meetings
attended/held
BR T
B8 BEIXE BEXE
Extraordinary Annual
Board General General
Meeting Meeting Meeting
HITES Executive Directors
SERELE () Mr Weng Ruo Tong (Chairman) 5/6 0N 1/1
TMHEE (BIEE) Mr Peng Jin Guang (Vice Chairman) 3/6 11 0/1
KERETE Mr Zhu Xue Lun 3/3 0/1 0N
(RZF—=FNHLHRF)  (retired on 7 June 2013)
TIRES L (18455 ) Mr Li Jin Hua (General Manager) 6/6 11 1”1
REBEAE Mr Zhang Rong Hui 6/6 0N 11
(RZZF—=FFA/NHHIE)  (re-designated on 8 June 2013)
kHITES Non-executive Director
BE Sk Mr Liu Cheng 23 N/A N/A
(RZF—=F HANAZE)  (appointed on 8 June 2013)
BUFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
SEBEE Mr Sze Robert Tsai To 6/6 1/1 11
(BEZEELE) (Chairman of the Audit Committee)
ERERE Mr Ip Kai Ming 6/6 0/1 n
(HNZES+/E) (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
A EAE Mr So Hop Shing 5/6 11 11
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than
the required standard set out in Appendix 10 — Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) of the Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has been made
to all the Directors of the Company who confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code and the Company’s code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant.

During the year under review, the Company has arranged for the
Directors a seminar covering the topics concerning corporate
governance reporting in the future and update on Listing Rules
led by a professional organisation.

The training record of each existing Director received for the
year ended 31 December 2013 is summarised below:

EIER
Types
of Training
HITES Executive Directors
SERLE (£/EF) Mr Weng Ruo Tong (Chairman) AB
TN E (BIEE) Mr Peng Jin Guang (Vice Chairman) A B
IRIE LA (AAAFHE) Mr Li Jin Hua (General Manager) A B
REE AL Mr Zhang Rong Hui A B
FHITESE Non-executive Director
REEE Mr Liu Cheng A B
BYEHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
S B SAE Mr Sze Robert Tsai To A B
ERBALE Mr Ip Kai Ming A B
e KL Mr So Hop Shing A, B

A HEREER/LENE

Attending seminars and/or briefing sessions

B MEAMER ZR SRERE ULEERAERETZTEH

Reading materials relating to management, legal, finance and investment and directors’ duties and responsibilities and so on

1
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The positions of the Chairman of the Board (“Chairman”) and
the existing General Manager (acting in the capacity of Chief
Executive) of the Company are held by separate individuals with
a view to maintain an effective segregation of duties regarding
management of the Board and the day-to-day management
of the Group’s business. One of the important roles of the
Chairman is to provide leadership to the Board to ensure that
the Board acts in the best interests of the Group. The Chairman
ensures that the Board works effectively and discharges its
responsibilities, and that all key and appropriate issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely manner. The Chairman has
delegated the responsibility for drawing up the agenda for each
Board meeting to the General Manager. Senior management is
responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Group under
the leadership of the General Manager of the Company. The
General Manager, working with the Executive Committee and
supported by other management, is responsible for managing
the businesses of the Group, including implementation of
strategies adopted by the Board and assuming full accountability
to the Board for the operations of the Group.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held
meetings with the Independent Non-executive Directors without
the presence of Executive Directors in 2013.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Non-executive Directors of the Company have not been
appointed for a specific term as required by CG Code A.4.1; but
they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the Company’s annual general meeting in accordance with the
Company'’s Articles of Association.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for implementing its business strategies and managing the
daily operations of the Group’s businesses to the Executive
Committee which currently consists of three Executive Directors
of the Board, namely Mr Weng Ruo Tong, Mr Peng Jin Guang
and Mr Li Jin Hua. These members meet frequently as and when
necessary.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises the three Independent Non-
executive Directors and is chaired by Mr Sze Robert Tsai To who
was a partner of an international firm of accountants with which
he practiced for over 20 years.

The Audit Committee is responsible for the appointment of
external auditor, reviewing the Group’s financial information
and providing oversight of the Group’s financial reporting and
internal control system. It is also responsible for reviewing the
interim and final results of the Group prior to recommending
them to the Board for approval. It meets regularly to review
financial reporting and internal control matters and to perform
such duties it has unrestricted access to both the Company’s
external and internal auditors.

During the year, the Audit Committee has performed, inter alia,
the following:

e reviewed the annual results for the year ended 31
December 2012 and the interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2013 respectively with the external
auditors;

e reviewed the activities of the Group’s internal audit
functions and its findings and recommendations as laid
down in the internal audit report;

* reviewed the 2013 annual audit plan;

* considered the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programs

and budget;

®  approved the internal audit program for 2014.

1
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

In 2013, the Audit Committee held two meetings, and the
attendance records of individual committee members are set
out below:

SRRE

HiE BT
Number of
Meetings
attended/held

SLBMELE (FE)
EREALE
BAmEE

B B

FNEESRAERARTNFIEEK - UK
RATLNRBEZARRNATEETRFRERE
AERBEEHMNGE  nEFSRHES -

FTWEZEEMAMOKE RBIIERITE
T ABYFRTEFERASLSELREE
o HMRBEBELBHELE  HAKE
£ FRELAENRETRE

REA - FHZEEFR T ARAESTHNE
EULRBARENRE TERENEH  IIF
REZTABAARFEIHFMARNESE -
ST E FHEZEEREFSRLERE
RIAMESKER -

Mr Sze Robert Tsai To (Chairman) 2/2
Mr Ip Kai Ming 2/2
Mr So Hop Shing 2/2

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board regarding the Company’s
remuneration policy, and the formulation and review of the
specific remuneration packages of all Executive Directors and
senior management of the Company.

A majority of the members of the Remuneration Committee
are Independent Non-executive Directors. The Committee is
chaired by Mr Ip Kai Ming who is an Independent Non-executive
Director. The other members are Mr Sze Robert Tsai To, Mr So
Hop Shing, Mr Li Jin Hua and Mr Chan Kwong Yu.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the fees
of the Directors, and payment of bonus to the management staff.
It also reviewed the Company’s proposed salary adjustments
to its employees. In this regard, the Remuneration Committee
made recommendations to the Board for final approval.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

In 2013, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting, and
the attendance records of individual committee members are
set out below:

=P8

HE BT

Number of

Meetings

attended/held

ERALE (F8) Mr Ip Kai Ming (Chairman) 11
sEW L Mr Sze Robert Tsai To 1/1
BE KL Mr So Hop Shing 11
FRERE Mr Li Jin Hua 11
PREF L4 Mr Chan Kwong Yu 11

RATEE

REZBEHAESTS IR A =MIBYIFNTT
BEFEMK - YREFEETFETER -

REZBENIERA/RITEFTEIR
B A AREZTE DEABRER
AREEEHALT  URFRBIIFERNTE
=k AVA

RER REZESNEFSEIBHZAE
—EBHEENEH °

REZBEEGN_Z—=ZFRNRTTRRE
o BKE Z @R B F LS

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises the Chairman of the
Board and three Independent Non-executive Directors, and is
chaired by the Chairman of the Board.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board,
identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of the
Board, and assess the independence of the Independent Non-
executive Directors.

During the year, the Nomination Committee made recommendation
to the Board on the appointment of a new director.

In 2013, the Nomination Committee held two meetings, and the
attendance records of individual members are set out below.

SRR

g BT

Number of

Meetings

attended/held

SERKE (FE) Mr Weng Ruo Tong (Chairman) 2/2
EREALE Mr Ip Kai Ming 2/2
s EMEE Mr Sze Robert Tsai To 2/2
BaKEE Mr So Hop Shing 2/2

1
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for determining the policy for the
corporate governance of the Company and performing the
corporate governance duties as below:

® To develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

® To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

e To review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

®* To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the Directors and
employees; and

®* To review the Company’s compliance with the code of
corporate governance and disclosure requirements in the
Corporate Governance Report.

During the year under review, the Board approved the Inside
Information Disclosure Policy and the Board Diversity Policy.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has the responsibility to ensure that the Group
maintains sound and effective controls to safeguard the Group's
assets.

The internal control system is designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or
loss; to manage rather than completely eliminate the risk of
system failure; and to assist in the achievement of the Group's
objectives.

The Internal Audit Department plays a major role in monitoring
the internal control of the Group and reports directly to the
Audit Committee and the Board. It has unrestricted access to
review all aspects of the Group’s activities and internal controls.
It also conducts special audits of areas of concern identified by
the Audit Committee or management. The Audit committee
has free and direct access to the Head of the Internal Audit
Department without reference to the Chairman or management.



A 0 B 42 (4

R-ZE—=F EFEKEERZEGLNA
ERTERRERPT - RSB EERRETT
FERE - BB AAEE R BEZELPT
BE - BEBRSMEERE RS EBNEELNM
#EITEBAHE - RERE AP R E R E &
BRETEINRERRFT T BENR
AERCAEZZEERESTSER -

B LB R R YE 2 AR

EXREEESAVBRYEEARAENG
H - CAREIR % BR B RSB B AR b [ BR 5%
HEAKEMBOORN - RERFSRE - K
NREERERRAMEBR LR LA ER
G ERRS c EFEEEREREENER
EREE 2 GFTBRARMEHBEMSEH
HPR B AR ET o

A% ST 2 P <5

HE_E—=F+-_A=+—8HIFE "
N E B X sk R T AN EE A £ A B 0 i R
BRT - &% TIE(B B AR R/ 58 % 7R
) BFTEEEMFERBEUALRBRBE RZET
AR 7% 9 Bl & 7 ¥ 2,152,000 7T © 78 % 300,000
7T 781 390,000 7T & B # 210,000 7T © .

N /=
KARIZRARMEDNARRZ2HBES - B

—E-=F RAWEEETLHRAE
3.29 IRAVRBI R R IFFNEK -

=% Annual Report 2013

S A5 /N EBE .
B TRHAS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTERNAL CONTROLS (Continued)

In 2013, the Board, through the Audit Committee and Internal
Audit Department, conducted an annual review of the Group’s
internal control system. The annual review was coordinated
by the Group’s Internal Audit Department, which, after senior
management and each business and operational unit had
performed their self-assessment, has carried out independent
examination and other post-assessment work on the review
process and results. The results of the 2013 review had been
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation
of the financial statements for each financial period with a
view to ensuring such accounts give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow for
that period. The Company’s financial statements are prepared
in accordance with all relevant statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Directors are responsible
for ensuring that appropriate accounting policies are selected
and applied consistently; and that judgments and estimates
made are prudent and reasonable.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the fees paid or payable
to the external auditor for statutory audit services, attestation
work (in relation to interim financial statements issued by the
Company), professional services for special engagement, and
tax and consultancy services were HK$2,152,000, HK$300,000,
HK$390,000 and HK$210,000 respectively.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is a full time employee
of the Company. In 2013, the Company Secretary has duly
complied with the relevant professional training requirement
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

1
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Convening an Extraordinary General meeting (“EGM”)

Shareholders(s) holding not less than 10% of the paid-up capital
of the Company may requisition an EGM of the Company.

The requisition must state the objects of the meeting, and must
be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered
office of the Company and may consist of several documents in
like form, each signed by one or more of the requisitionists.

The requisition must also state the name(s) of the requisitionist(s),
the contact details of the requisitionist(s) and the number of
ordinary shares of the Company held by the requisitionist(s).

If the Board does not proceed to convene an EGM within twenty-
one days from the date of the deposit of the requisition, the
requisitionist(s) or any of them representing more than one-half
of the voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene the
meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be held after
the expiration of three months from the date of such requisition.

A meeting so convened by the requisitionist(s) shall be
convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in
which meetings are to be convened by the Board.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

The Companies Ordinance provides that (i) shareholder(s)
representing not less than 2.5 percent of the total voting rights
of all the shareholders of the Company having a right to vote,
or (ii) not less that 50 shareholders who have a relevant right to
vote may put forward proposals for consideration at a general
meeting of the Company by depositing a requisition in writing
signed by the relevant shareholder(s) at the registered office of
the Company for the attention of the Company Secretary.

Further, a shareholder may propose a person other than a
retiring Director of the Company for election as a Director of
the Company at a general meeting. The procedures for such
proposal are available on the website of the Company (www.
minxin.com.hk).
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)
Putting Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries requiring the Board’s
attention in writing together with his/her contact details
addressing to the registered office of the Company or by
email to mxhl.enquiry@minxin.com.hk for the attention of the
Company Secretary.

SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Company adopted a Shareholders Communication Policy
which aims to enhance the corporate communication effectively
between the shareholders, the Board and senior management
of the Company through various official channels so that the
shareholders can access the Company’s public information
equally in a timely manner.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During 2013, there has been no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.

CHANGES IN THE INFORMATION OF
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in
the information of the Directors of the Company required to be
disclosed since the 2013 interim report of the Company are set
out below:

Mr Sze Robert Tsai To retired as Independent Non-executive
Director of QPL International Holdings Limited, a listed company
in Hong Kong, with effect from 23 September 2013.

Mr Zhang Rong Hui, an Executive Director of the Company,
has been appointed as a Director of Sanming Sanyuan District
Minxin Micro Credit Company Limited since November 2013,
and has resigned from his previous positions of Director and
General Manager of Fujian Minxin Investments Co., Ltd. with
effect from February 2014.

1
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The Directors hereby present their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are
set out in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations
of the operations of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year are set out in Note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013
are set out on page 42.

The Board has resolved to recommend at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 12 June
2014 the payment of a final dividend of 5 HK cents per share
totaling HK$22,971,433 for the year ended 31 December 2013
(2012: final dividend of 4 HK cents per ordinary share totaling
HK$18,377,146 and special dividend of 5 HK cents per share
totaling HK$22,971,433).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, net assets and total equity of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 3 to 4.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out on page 47 and in Note 33(b) to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group and the Company are set out in Note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.



SHZ LY EREAR

AEEREZEIBMFEEEFIBEEMNE 200
E o

A

RARZRAHBRAG AN ERETE
33(a) °

A] 0 BiC 2 Ak

RZZE—=%F+-"A=+—H  KQARIRE
BEARNEMEHIE7BIEZ R EFE Z IS
Fic (5% 1% /5 78 15 486,903,000 T( — & — — 4
751 389,913,000 7T ) ©

£

REERAHREARTER  EEFTZHNE
28 °

RBRARNRABERAMAE 94 R o5 IRRTE
PEBELE HAKEERFTRELES/RN
BRI ZERRAFA A LHESE IR
TINBEEE  FEBEEEE -

BRARARABEREAAE S HMRTE - BK
FER-ZE—=F A N\BEZER/ELRQF
B THEARRABETZRRBFK
SR WRRINBEEE  BEEESE -

BREERRBFAS LBEEE2EEZN
EEAANNRF L EMAEERFELREETAR
ARNATR—F AR IEZIRIFAH ©

ARRIEZRESBILIFNTEFTRIER AT
Z EWRAIE 313 R E R E B MEIRE
FHRBE  MARRTRRABEILIENT
SEEYRARRBIALT(EER EHHAD) -

W) —= =455 Annual R 2013 ¢
(B —= =443 Annual Report 2013 ¢H¢

EE s T
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD

Details of the principal property interests held by the Group are
set out on page 200.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in Note
33(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December
2013, calculated under section 79B of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, amounted to HK$486,903,000 (2012:
HK$389,913,000).

DIRECTORS

The names of the Directors serving during the year and at the
date of this report are set out on page 2.

In accordance with articles 94 and 95 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Messrs Weng Ruo Tong, So Hop Shing and Li Jin
Hua will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with article 85 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr Liu Cheng who was appointed as a Director
of the Company on 8 June 2013, shall hold office until the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company following
his appointment and, being eligible, offers himself for re-
election.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation.

The Company has received from each Independent Non-
executive Director an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange
and the Company considers all the Independent Non-executive
Directors are independent as defined in the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s
business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

At 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and Chief Executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code of the Listing Rules were as follows:

REQRBDEBRD 2R
Long Position in Ordinary Shares of the Company

BOFRA DL
FERHOEE Approximate
EspR EmME Number of percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interests shares held shareholding

HRA B AR
Ip Kai Ming Personal interest 666,000 0.14%
M ENFIEEEN R-E—=F+_A4 Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the

=t— 8 ARREFRTBAZMELER
NE S E AT EEEEE (RRE 5 M B R D6
XVESPTE RV E & ) AR (D ~ AR D R EZF
PR T ARERS RS RIS 352 1%
ATREFNELCMALERREFEETRA
HMEARNA NI ZEDEIRE + MAR
AZESHREFZEBHIBHATZFER
FANERBERENARBARRBNES
KEITEZFER -

Directors and Chief Executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code; and none of the Directors or their spouses
or children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for
the securities of the Company, or had exercised any such right
during the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

The register maintained by the Company pursuant to section
336 of the SFO recorded that, as at 31 December 2013, the
following corporations had interests (as defined in the SFO) in
the Company:

BAEREDET

BEERMEE Approximate
YNCIEZE BtaE Number of percentage of
Name of Corporation Notes shares held shareholding
Samba Limited (“Samba”) 144,885,000 31.54%
EEARAR(EE]D
Vigour Fine Company Limited (“Vigour Fine”) 1 220,580,600 48.01%
BREAREAEEEAREETAR([BEREERE]
Fujian Investment & Development Group Co., Ltd. (“FIDG") 2 220,580,600 48.01%
BiaE - Notes:
1. B BSambam L ERE R ABES 1. Vigour Fine was the controlling shareholder of Samba and

Samba A AN 2 &) Fr $5 144,885,000 % I& 17 Y
o EETMAEBEARRQRZ 75695600
REREAD ©

2. REERESBEERBBEEHNZIBEHEITR
AN ¥R B ER Samba RS ERAA T B
FT#5 144,885,000 % % 75,695,600 % % 12 Ky 8
T BEEREAARAREBER TR - R
“E—=ZF+"A=+—8 " ARAREEFH
NEIEIEDIE 336 IEMARE < BRI E
EA R ek o

BEA ~ B BRI B

ARRBRAEE R I &R EEA ARG 2K
o AARBRZMBRARRFANERA
S EEAIARRRZ A

was deemed to be interested in the 144,885,000 shares of
the Company held by Samba. Vigour Fine also directly held
75,695,600 shares of the Company.

2. FIDG directly holds the entire issued share capital of Vigour Fine
and was deemed to be interested in the 144,885,000 shares of
the Company held by Samba, and the 75,695,600 shares of the
Company held by Vigour Fine.

All the interests stated above represent long positions in the
ordinary shares of the Company. As at 31 December 2013, no
short positions were recorded in the register maintained by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the
year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during the year.

1
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year, the Company renewed the annual management
agreement with Vigour Fine, a substantial shareholder of the
Company, whereby Vigour Fine provides management services
to the Company which include the provision of Directors to the
Board of the Company. A management fee of HK$1,880,000 has
been paid to Vigour Fine during the year.

Messrs Peng Jin Guang, Li Jin Hua and Liu Cheng have interest in
the above transaction as directors of Vigour Fine.

Except for the above, no other contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details in respect of the Company’s Directors
and senior management are set out on pages 17 to 21.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group purchased less than 30% of its
products and services from its 5 largest suppliers and sold less
than 30% of its products and services to its 5 largest customers.

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of the bank borrowings of the Group and the Company
at 31 December 2013 are set out in Note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2013, which are not
required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules as connected
transactions, are disclosed in Notes 18(b), 19(e), 38(a), 38(b) and
38(f) to the consolidated financial statements.

Other related party transactions, which also constitute
connected transactions under the Listing Rules, are disclosed in
Notes 9, 28(c), 35(b), 38(c), 38(d) and 38(e) to the consolidated
financial statements.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as of the
date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR
The consolidated financial statements have been audited by

PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

WENG RUO TONG
Chairman

HONG KONG, 25 March 2014
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MIN XIN HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Min
Xin Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 42 to 199, which
comprise the consolidated and Company statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section
141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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Auditor’s responsibility (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2013 and of the Group's profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 March 2014

41

P -
=4%% Annual Report 2013 ¢H¢



OIO H{=EEAR AT MIN XIN HOLDINGS LIMITED OEO

%/T\ i=| fi %%
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

HZ2013F12531H1FF/E  Forthe year ended 31 December 2013

2013 2012
iR BMF T B F T
Note HKSs’000 HKS'000
EER Turnover 5 87,368 96,886
WA %258 Total revenues 5 102,026 93,599
H s — 588 Other gains - net 6 195,120 465,127
EEIW AL Total operating income 297,146 558,726
R EBEENEEFE Net insurance claims incurred and
RA<ER commission expenses incurred on
insurance business 7 (36,118) (35,580)
EEMEKAK Costs of properties sold (7,375) (35,237)
EFEENRAEEE Impairment loss on loans to customers 24 (835) —
B IR Staff costs (29,009) (29,710)
e Depreciation (850) (1,101)
B & RS Other operating expenses (16,148) (14,463)
SR AR Total operating expenses (90,335) (116,091)
=il Operating profit 8 206,811 442,635
A& B AR Finance costs 9 (4,678) (12,487)
N Share of results of joint ventures 5,556 390,575
(LBt E N RS Share of results of associates 366,925 38,079
RR ¢ A % A Profit before taxation 574,614 858,802
FriSfisz i Income tax expense 11 (18,260) (32,062)
REEERF Profit for the year 12 556,354 826,740
BE Dividend
—RHIR S — Final dividend 13 22,971 18,377
— R A — Special dividend 13 — 22,971
22,971 41,348
B Vil
HK CENTS HK CENTS
BREF Earnings per share
HARE#E Basic and diluted 14 121.10 179.95
BERRE Dividend per share
— REARR B — Final dividend 5 4
—EFRI IR B — Special dividend — 5
5 9
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B F2013F12531HIFF/Z  For the year ended 31 December 2013

2013 2012
BT BT
HK$000 HKS'000
RERERF Profit for the year 556,354 826,740
Hih 2 HE K Other comprehensive income
TEEHIEZEBRRR Items that will not be reclassified to
WIER : income statement:
HEREEMFERES Leasehold buildings revaluation reserve
MEZFEEEREYEESL  Unrealised surplus on revaluation of leasehold
HRE IR B R building transferred to investment property 1,294 —
EIEFTISH Deferred income tax (442) —
852 —
HETHEHRIEEEER  Items that may be reclassified subsequently
WIEHE : to income statement:
ARHEREEMRES Available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve
TR AR (k) F AR Fair value changes (charged)/credited
NFEES to equity (169,572) 161,454
HERD Release on disposal — (9,741)
HE—REENRIEOELR  Release on partial disposal of interest
O in a joint venture = (7,868)
—REERARAR—KEE Release on dilution of interest in a joint venture
N B R S R ) and an associate (4,545) (21,101)
FEIHEE AR MBI NBEH  Share of changes in equity of joint ventures
R &) X and associates
EmRIRAMAFERES  Fairvalue changes charged to equity (263,376) (74,328)
& B O Release on disposal (6,233) 112
EEFTISH Deferred income tax 66,797 18,269
(376,929) 66,797
SHEMERES Exchange translation reserve
BREBINHBAR - & Exchange differences arising on translation
NERHEE R R of the financial statements of foreign
WEMELENE R Z5 subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates 72,559 22,293
HE—RMB A RERR Release on disposal of interest in a
Aol \ subsidiary (70,034) —
HE—REERAHD Release on partial disposal of interest in a
Wz I ) joint venture — (27,768)
—REERA KRB Release on dilution of interest in a joint venture
N A e A S E R ] and an associate (10,473) (71,849)
(7,948) (77,324)
(384,877) (10,527)
RIORBIERNKREE Other comprehensive income for the year,
Htp2E Wz net of tax (384,025) (10,527)
AEEZHEIKFETE Total comprehensive income for the year 172,329 816,213
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

20131231 H4E  Asat 31 December 2013

2013 2012
T BT T BT T
Note HKS’000 HKS'000
ERBEE Non-current assets
E - Y Property, plant and equipment 15(a) 20,404 19,445
REYZE Investment properties 16 154,825 136,193
BENT] Joint ventures 18 — 64,901
=N Associates 19 2,468,663 2,237,071
AHHESRAE Available-for-sale financial assets 20 452,522 622,094
BREEE Reinsurance assets 23 2,097 2,523
EEFTISTHEE Deferred income tax assets 32 376 419
3,098,887 3,082,646
REEE Current assets
JRIEEVS A AN Deferred acquisition costs 21 9,983 10,811
1%5@[@51% Insurance receivable 22 10,372 10,275
BRBREE \ Reinsurance assets 23 3,078 3,666
XEERREKRER Loans to customers and loan receivable 24 158,955 —
HoAh FE AR 3K Other debtors 18(c) 11,254 418,438
i /NET N Dividend receivable from associates 97,014 —
HEMFEMAGRRIES Other prepayments and deposits 1,338 1,171
BERFEEBRRIIREN Financial assets at fair value through
TREE profit or loss 26 8,089 6,485
Be MIRITHETT Cash and bank balances 27 909,360 168,132
. 1,209,443 618,978
DEABFELENEE Assets classified as held for sale 28(a) — 547,786
1,209,443 1,166,764
REBEE Current liabilities
REE 4 Insurance contracts 29 39,907 43,466
IR BT 3R ‘ Insurance payable 30 4,709 6,061
HAth FEAS BR R S FE 7T B Other creditors and accruals 24,858 20,876
IRITEF Bank borrowings 37 200,000 50,000
I AR AT 18 Current income tax payable 35,651 62,372
305,125 182,775
EAEAFIENENEE Liabilities associated with assets classified
HEnaE as held for sale 28(a) — 209,358
305,125 392,133
RBEEEE Net current assets 904,318 774,631
HEERRBARS Total assets less current liabilities 4,003,205 3,857,277
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2013F12531H#4 Asat 31 December 2013

FRBEE
RERE A
EXFBHRAE

&EFE

V&N

HittfReE<E

REE R

BB

Hith

REAM 2 E R HEER R
NIRRT
HENEERBH

IR

RAFEHTE ARG
RSB

SER
EE
TR
EE

Non-current liabilities
Insurance contracts
Deferred income tax liabilities

Net assets

Share capital

Other reserves

Retained profits

Proposed dividend

Others

Amount recognised in other
comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity relating
to assets held for sale

Total equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company

Weng Ruo Tong
Director

Li Jin Hua
Director

2013 2012

iFE BETT BT T
Note HKs 000 HKs'000
29 21,896 14,554
32 45,577 37,972
67,473 52,526

3,935,732 3,804,751

33(a) 459,429 459,429
1,595,645 1,927,830

22,971 41,348

1,857,687 1,307,833

— 68,311

3,935,732 3,804,751

45



BABS IR P 2R

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

—1 S G -
0m) E(E5EARAT MIN XIN HOLDINGS LIMITED #H¢

20131231 H4E  Asat 31 December 2013

2013 2012
T BT T B F T
Note HKS’000 HKS'000
ERBEE Non-current assets
M - R NERE Property, plant and equipment 15(b) 3,963 4,135
BEYE Investment properties 16 100,110 89,193
by Subsidiaries 17 587,874 553,333
=N Associates 19 188,546 188,546
AEEeREE Available-for-sale financial assets 20 452,522 622,094
1,333,015 1,457,301
RBEE Current assets
U E X Loan receivable 24 118,030 —
H i e U BR X Other debtors 18(c) 10,321 417,240
B —KEE AR RE Dividend receivable from an associate 86,766 —
SELNE Y58 Prepayments and deposits 553 822
BATEEAERYIER Financial assets at fair value through
WEREE profit or loss 26 227 224
B& MIRTTHEF Cash and bank balances 27 439,514 38,368
655,411 456,654
REBEE Current liabilities
HAih e BRFK M EFTE M Other creditors and accruals 18,241 15,443
RITENK Bank borrowings 31 200,000 50,000
FEAH AR AR I8 Current income tax payable 35,487 62,352
253,728 127,795
REEERE Net current assets 401,683 328,859
BEEBRREBAERS Total assets less current liabilities 1,734,698 1,786,160
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
RSB E Deferred income tax liabilities 32 45,060 37,972
45,060 37,972
EEFE Net assets 1,689,638 1,748,188
&N Share capital 33(a) 459,429 459,429
Hinf#ZES Other reserves 33(b) 654,952 824,524
R A Retained profits
R I B Proposed dividend 22,971 41,348
HAth Others 552,286 422,887
RRBE Total equity 1,689,638 1,748,188
SEME Weng Ruo Tong
o Director
iR LiJin Hua
B5E Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

H22013%F 1231 HIFF/Z  Forthe year ended 31 December 2013

AfefiES Otherreserves

it 13 it

EA50E REEff EfifRE  HERE g
fife i3 i1 03 BEE  Leasehold Eix3 45 e I
Bx  RiEE Capital e L5 BB Investment  buidings  Exchange Tl REEH 48
Share Share  redemption Statutory General Capital  revaluation revaluation translation other Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserves profits equity

ERTR EETER BRFR ERTR BMTR BEFR ERFn BRTa 0 EMTR ERTR ERFn 0 BRTR
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000

RNnE1A18 At1 Janury 2012 45949 384620 47086 3205% 62679 483985 30415 9 BT 190407 617019 3006915
REERENGEE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - 66,797 - (1324) (10527) 826,740 816213
e Divdend - - - - - - - - - - (1837) (18377)
—“FHERAERL Capitalsation by an associate

(i 19(0) (Note 19/(c) - - - - - 16762 - - - 326762 (326762) -
HE-FAEDFBAHBEE  Release on partial dsposal o nterest

BH(HE180) in ajointventure (Note 18 () - - - (68503 (13401) (64992 - - - (1669%) 16699 -
-FRENARRRE R Release on dilution ofnterest

BE(E8) inajointventure (Note 18 () - - - (195638) (29589) (143500) - - - (68727) 368727 -
—“FRENTRERER Release on dilution ofnterest

RE(ER190) in an associate (Note 19(b)) - - - (35513) (5189) (55714 - - - (%416) %416 -
a5 Transfers - - - 3353 38100 - - - - 381638 (381639) -
R12512A318 At31 December 2012 45949 384620 47086 344380 52600 546541 /11 9 1863 196141 1349181 3804751
ARt Representing:
REMZEAERTRAEE  Amountrecognised in other comprehensive

B2 AL ENEE income and accumulated in equity elating

B3R to assetsheld forsale - - - - - - - - 68311 68311 - 68311
WEERRE 2012 proposed dividend - - - - - - - - - - 4348 4318
Efy Others 45949 384620 47086 344380 52600 546,541 /11 9 1538 197830 130783 369509
R012512A318 At31 December 2012 459429 384620 47086 344380 52600 546,541 /11 9 13653 199141 1349181 3804751
ROBEIAIR At1 Janury 2013 5949 384620 47,086 344,380 52,600 546,541 81212 9 183693 199141 1349181 3804751
RER2ENESE Total comprehensiveincome forthe year - - - - - - (376.929) 852 (7948)  (384025) 556,354 17329
& Dividend - - - - - - - - - - (41,348) (41,348)
—“FHERAEAL Capitalsation by an associate - - - - (54,641) 54641 - - - - - -
B LG Release on dilution of interest

RE(FE199) in an assocate (Note 19(d)) - - - (33762) (4933) (52965) - - - (91,660) 91,660 -
a8 Transfers - - - 54906 20283 - - - - 75,189 (75,189) -
20135128318 At31December 2013 459429 384620 47,086 365,54 13309 548,217 60,263 861 15745 1595645 1,880,658 3935732
ARt : Representing:
WEERRE 2013 proposed dividend - - - - - - - - - - 29N 29N
i Others 459429 384620 47,08 365,524 13309 548,217 60,263 81 5745 1595645 1857687 3912761
R13F12A318 At31 December 2013 059429 384620 47,086 365,524 13309 548,217 60283 81 5785 1595645 1880658 3935732
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HZ2013F12531H1FF/E  Forthe year ended 31 December 2013

2013 2012
iR BMF T B F T
Note HKS’000 HKS000

RETERS R BE Net cash outflow from operations 37(a) (48,112) (8,249)
B U F B Interest received 7,327 3,266
EAFE Interest paid (3,081) (12,477)
EAHRIE Tax paid (2,407) (5,021)
REXEKITHRESRH Net cash outflow from

HEE operating activities (46,273) (22,481)
REEE Investing activities
RIBREEEEEERT  Placement of bank deposits pursuant to

M2 RITIF K insurance regulatory requirements (2,361) (1,412)
RE (7R REHA B Withdrawal/(placement) of bank deposits

iBiE =8 A 2 IRTTIE with original maturity over three months 64,371 (64,839)
RE(FROBHFEE Withdrawal/(placement) of bank balance

MR E 2 RITIF K pending regulatory approval 18,339 (17,806)
BAYE - a5 ERE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (2,098) (265)
HE—KEGEQRED Net proceeds from partial disposal of a

Ea ﬁﬁfa *hlﬁa&a@ joint venture 384,809 —
HE—RWB QA Sale of a subsidiary 37(b) 273,090 —
HEAHHESREE Sale of available-for-sale financial assets — 17,415
HEME *%E%%& 51 Sale of property, plant and equipment — 4
REFHBESHRAN Net cash inflow/(outflow) from

() HEE investing activities 736,150 (66,903)
BMERMBERA Net cash inflow/(outflow) before

() 8 financing 689,877 (89,384)
mE Financing
IBIRITER Bank loans obtained 200,000 —
1&!3@@&1?%@\ Bank loans repaid (50,000) —
(ER),/ TREA R (Placement)/withdrawal of restricted

ZRITIFER bank deposits (217,404) 2,170
K EE AR S Dividend paid (41,348) (18,377)
BMEEESREEEE Net cash outflow from financing (108,752) (16,207)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HZ20137F 1231 HIEF/Z  Forthe year ended 31 December 2013

2013 2012
itFE BT BT
Note HKSs’000 HKS'000
REeRESEEY Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
#n, G ) equivalents 581,125 (105,591)
1A1R&FZRE Cash and cash equivalents
RESEEY at 1 January 40,066 145,977
EXEFHsE Effect of foreign exchange rates changes 7,429 (320)
12A3MB&REZES Cash and cash equivalents
RESZEY at 31 December 628,620 40,066
ReRREEEWER Analysis of the balances of cash and
wak il cash equivalents
We RRITHETT Cash and bank balances 27 909,360 168,132
Be MIB1T41F - DA Cash and bank balances classified
HIEHEEE as assets held for sale 28(a) — 15,078
e RIRITHTREE Total cash and bank balances 909,360 183,210
W IRIBIRBEEEHIE  Less: Bank deposits placed pursuant to
HIE M AF I $R1T insurance regulatory
e requirements 27 (25,636) (23,275)
BRI ZRITER Restricted bank deposits 27 (219,051) (1,639)
BREEHEE . Bank balance pending regulatory
RIT1ER approval 27 — (17,806)
JREIEAE BB =1E A Bank deposits with original maturity
ZIRITIER over three months (36,053) (100,424)
628,620 40,066
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Min Xin Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively refer to as the “Group”)
are principally engaged in financial services, insurance,
property development and investment and strategic
investment.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Hong Kong. The address of its registered office is 17th
Floor, Fairmont House, 8 Cotton Tree Drive, Central, Hong
Kong. The Company is listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange.

These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 March
2014.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collectively refer
to all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations (“Ints”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), and
have been aligned with accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention except that the
following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair value
as explained in the accounting policies set out below:

— available-for-sale financial assets

— financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative financial instruments) at fair value through
profit or loss

— investment properties

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale are
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
the HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. Although these estimates are based
on management’s best knowledge of current events and
actions, actual results may differ from those estimates.

Estimates and judgement made by management are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity or where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 3.

o
T
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies

The Group has adopted the following new standards and
amendments to standards issued by the HKICPA which had
insignificant or no effect on these consolidated financial
statements.

HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial
Statements

HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests

Amendments to
HKFRS 7

Amendments to

in Other Entities

Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Consolidated Financial

HKFRS 10, Statements, Joint
HKFRS 11 and Arrangements and
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests

in Other Entities —
Transition Guidance

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

During the year, the Group also adopted the following
new standards and amendments to standards issued by
the HKICPA which had the following impacts:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

The Amendments to HKAS 1 require the Group to present
separately the items of other comprehensive income that
would be reclassified to income statement in the future if
certain conditions are met from those that would never be
reclassified to income statement. The Group’s presentation
of other comprehensive income in these consolidated
financial statements has been modified accordingly.

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for all fair
value measurements required or permitted by HKFRSs. It
clarifies the definition of fair value as an exit price, which
is defined as a price at which an orderly transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability would take place between
market participants at the measurement date under
market conditions, and enhances disclosures about fair
value measurement.

The Group has applied the new fair value measurement
guidance prospectively. The adoption of HKFRS 13 affects
disclosures on investment properties, financial assets
and financial liabilities in the Group’s and the Company's
financial statements. To the extent that the requirements
are applicable to the Group and the Company, the Group
and the Company have provided those disclosures in
Notes 4 and 16. The adoption of HKFRS 13 does not have
any material impact on the fair value measurements of
these assets and liabilities.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of following
new standards and amendments to standards which
are not yet effective for the accounting year ended 31
December 2013 and which have not been early adopted in
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these consolidated financial statements:

— HKFRS9

— HKFRS9

—  Amendments to
HKAS 19

—  Amendments to
HKAS 32

—  Amendments to
HKAS 36

Financial Instruments

Financial Instruments
(Hedge Accounting and
amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKFRS 7 and HKAS 39)

Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions

Financial Instruments:
Presentation — Offsetting
Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

—  Amendments to Novation of Derivatives

HKAS 39 and Continuation of
Hedge Accounting

— Amendments to Mandatory Effective Date
HKFRS 9 and of HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 7 Transition Disclosures

—  Amendments to Investment Entities
HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011)

—  HK(IFRIC) = INT 21 Levies

— Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle

—  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these new standards and amendments
to standards is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the impact on
the Group's results of operations and financial position
for the first time adoption of these new standards and
amendments to standards is as follows:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 was issued in November 2009 and establishes
new principles for the classification and measurement
of financial assets. In December 2010, the HKICPA issued
additions to HKFRS 9 dealing with financial liabilities.
The main changes to the requirements of HKAS 39 are
summarised below:

All financial assets are classified into two measurement
categories: amortised cost or fair value on the basis of both
an entity’s business model for managing groups of financial
assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the individual assets. These two categories replace the
four categories under the current HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit
or loss, if they do not meet the criteria specified for
measurement at amortised cost or if doing so significantly
reduces or eliminates an accounting mismatch. An entity
has the option to designate all subsequent changes in
fair value of an equity instrument not held for trading
at fair value through other comprehensive income with
no recycling of gains or losses to the income statement.
Dividend income would continue to be recognised in the
income statement.

Financial assets which contain embedded derivatives
are to be classified in their entirety either at fair value or
amortised cost depending on whether the contracts as a
whole meet the relevant criteria under HKFRS 9.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

HKFRS 9 retains all the existing requirements for
derecognition of financial instruments and most of the
requirements for financial liabilities, except that for
financial liabilities designated under the fair value option
other than loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts, fair value changes attributable to changes in
own credit risk are to be presented in the statement of
other comprehensive income, and are not subsequently
reclassified to income statement but may be transferred
within equity.

In December 2011, the amendment to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS
7 issued by HKICPA provided relief from the requirement
to restate prior period comparative information and
required additional disclosures on transition from HKAS 39
to HKFRS 9.

In December 2013, the HKICPA issued HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (Hedge Accounting and amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and HKAS 39) to include the new general
hedge accounting model, allow adoption of the treatment
of fair value changes due to own credit on financial
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss,
and removed the 1 January 2015 effective date of HKFRS 9.
The new version of HKFRS 9 does not include an effective
date but is available for adoption and to be applied
prospectively (with some exceptions). The new mandatory
effective date will be determined once the classification
and measurement and impairment phases of HKFRS 9 are
finalised.

The Group is presently studying the implications of
applying HKFRS 9 but it is impracticable to quantify its
effect as at the date of issuance of these consolidated
financial statements.

Other than those disclosed above, the adoption of other
new standards and amendments to standards is not
expected to have material impact on the Group as those
changes do not affect the Group.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries
(together referred as the “Group”) and the Group’s
interests in joint ventures and associates made up to 31
December.

(a) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities)
controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity
when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive
rights (held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

Subsidiaries are consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control
commenced until the date that control ceases. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed, where
necessary, in the consolidated financial statements to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to
account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
value of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and
the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at fair value at the date of acquisition. For each
business combination, the Group can elect to measure
any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at their
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s identifiable net
assets.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(a) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the changes in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill
and no gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
the consolidated income statement. Any interest retained
in that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset (Note
2.7(a)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in a joint venture or an associate (Note
2.3(b)). In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in consolidated statement of comprehensive income in
respect of that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
consolidated statement of comprehensive income are
reclassified to the consolidated income statement or
transferred directly to retained profits when the Group
loses control of the subsidiary.

Intra-company transactions, balances and unrealised
profits arising from intra-company transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-
company transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised profits but only to the extent that there is no
evidence of impairment.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(a) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity holders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
income statement and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit
or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the equity holders
of the Company.

Loans from holders of non-controlling interests and
other contractual obligations towards these holders
are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position in accordance with Notes
2.18 or 2.19 depending on the nature of the liability.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses (Note 2.9(b)), unless the investments are
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group
that is classified as held for sale) (Note 2.15). The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)
(b) Joint ventures and associates

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the Group
and other parties are bound by a contractual arrangement
that gives those parties joint control of the arrangement
and rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant
influence, but not control or joint control over its
management, including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

Investments in joint ventures and associates are accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements under the
equity method, unless they are classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale) (Note 2.15). Under the equity method, the
investments are initially recognised at cost, adjusted
for any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-
date fair value of the investees’ identifiable net assets
over the cost of the investments (if any). Thereafter, the
investments are adjusted for the post-acquisition changes
in the Group’s share of the investees’ net assets and any
impairment losses relating to the investments (Notes 2.4
and 2.9(b)). The consolidated income statement includes
the acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group's share
of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees
and any impairment losses for the year, whereas the
Group's share of the post-acquisition, post-tax items of the
investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. The
accounting policies of the investees have been aligned,
where necessary, in the consolidated financial statements
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.
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ARAF MIN XIN HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)
(b) Joint ventures and associates (Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interests
in a joint venture or an associate, the Group’s interests
are reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the
Group's interests in a joint venture or an associate are
the carrying amount of the investments under the equity
method together with the Group’s long-term interests that
in substance form part of the Group’s net investments in
the joint venture or the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its joint ventures and associates
are eliminated to the extent of the Group'’s interests in the
investees, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in the consolidated
income statement.

When the Group ceases to have joint control over a joint
venture or significant influence over an associate, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
the consolidated income statement. Any interest retained
in that former investee at the date when joint control
or significant influence is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (Note 2.7(a)). In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in respect of that
investee are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)
(b) Joint ventures and associates (Continued)

When the ownership interest in a joint venture or an
associate is reduced but joint control or significant
influence is retained, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the interest reduced in that investee, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in the consolidated income
statement. In addition, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in consolidated statement
of comprehensive income relating to that reduction in
ownership interest is reclassified to consolidated income
statement where appropriate.

When an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate or an investment in an associate
becomes an investment in a joint venture, the Group
continues to apply the equity method and does not re-
measure the retained interest.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investments in joint ventures and associates are stated at
cost less impairment losses (Note 2.9(b)), unless they are
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group
that is classified as held for sale) (Note 2.15). The results
of joint ventures and associates are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

2.4 Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of:

()  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(ii) the Group's interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities measured
as at the acquisition date.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.4 Goodwill (Continued)

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement as a
gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash-
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (Note 2.9(b)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in
the calculation of the gains or losses on disposal.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment, including leasehold
land and land use rights held for own use, are stated
at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets.

Subsequent expenditure is included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with that asset will flow to the Group and
the cost of that asset can be measured reliably. All other
repair and maintenance costs are expensed in the income
statement during the period in which they are incurred.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined by
comparing the net proceeds with the carrying amount
and is recognised in the income statement on the date of
retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of property,
plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value,
if any, over their estimated useful lives at the following
annual rates:

(a) Straight line method
Leasehold land and land use Over the unexpired term

rights held for own use of the lease

Over the shorter of the
unexpired term of the
lease and 30 years

Buildings held for own use

Computer equipment 20% - 50%
(b) Reducing balance method

Furniture, fixtures and 10% - 20%
office equipment

Motor vehicles 20% - 25%

An asset’s residual value and useful life are reviewed,
and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date. An
asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.9(b)).

65



B0 BE%EARAT MINXIN HOLDINGS LIMITED ()

ARG PSR RE R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 EEEFEUR ()

[\

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.6 HEYE

XEMFREASRIE S WAREARIEE
AMERGMEEAFTE 2 LHHET
HMEREG - AXIFHAKEAN A A
16 - REMEBFEAEERNFEN
THRAREHERENET -

NEXHEOFAN L - WTFEREY
XEMRTER  SREBEVMENEEIR
REEWE - nBRAREMENEEH
HWTE LRI SREHE MK -

REMENRIZEK AT E - S50
IR B » NI TERIE - REWE
BANFEIR - 2 FERBEERMISE
RABEYEEFER - BERNEENE
B RN EMZERELAE -
IWRAMIRER - AEEFNBEMMGE
T PIAREAE BT 5 6 T BB AR =X
TRV RBAE - REBERIERKRE
YMEMEESERMIGCEFNEEN
REME  BERAFEHRE -

HEEMARBHEEZAR BB RKE
EMSEREAERANEE - MixAE
BVRCANBEF] SERT ERY - T AKEBEN
FBREES - B EMaE MERERAE
ELERHIRANERR A -

REMEN R FEZY N E RS E
BREAABRERMEMKE —F8E 1R

.
e

E-EFEERMERAREEME
MABERREMER  REFDBAR
BMEZB  HIEERMEEHIBRAR
REMERNEREERBETIE255
ENAFEMEANTERNEZSBERN
B

(Continued)
2.6 Investment properties

Investment properties are land or buildings, or both
which are owned or held to earn rental income or for
capital appreciation or both, and are not occupied by the
companies within the Group. They comprise land held
under operating leases and buildings held under finance
leases.

Land held under operating leases are classified and
accounted for as investment property on a property-
by-property basis when the rest of the definition of
investment property is met. The operating lease of land
classified as investment property is accounted for as if it
was a finance lease.

Investment properties are measured initially at their costs,
including related transaction costs. After initial recognition,
investment properties are carried at fair value. Fair value is
based on active market prices and adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of
the specific asset. If this information is not available, the
Group uses alternative valuation methods such as recent
prices on less active markets or discounted cash flow
projections. Investment property that is being redeveloped
for continuing use as investment property, or for which the
market has become less active, continues to be measured
at fair value.

Subsequent expenditure is included in the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repair and maintenance costs are expensed in the income
statement during the period in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair value and gain or loss on disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of “Other gains — net”.

When a property held for own use is reclassified to
investment property following a change in its use, any
differences arising at the date of reclassification between
the carrying amount of the property held for own use
immediately prior to the reclassification and its fair values
measured in accordance with Note 2.5 is recognised as
below:
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.6 Investment properties (Continued)

(@) If the carrying amount of the property is increased
as a result of the revaluation, the increase shall be
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the leasehold
buildings revaluation reserve.

(b) If the carrying amount of the property is decreased
as a result of the revaluation, the decrease shall be
recognised in the income statement.

On subsequent disposal of the investment property, the
revaluation surplus recognised in the leasehold buildings
revaluation reserve may be transferred directly to retained
profits.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as a property held for own use and its fair value
at the date of reclassification becomes its deemed cost for
subsequent accounting in accordance with Note 2.5.

2.7 Financial assets
(a) Initial recognition

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity and available-for-sale. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

The Group recognises financial assets on the date it
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Regular purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the assets.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value, which
normally will be equal to the transaction price plus, in
case of financial assets not held at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial assets. Transaction costs
of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
expensed in the income statement immediately.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.7 Financial assets (Continued)
(b) Classification and measurement
(i) At fair value through profit or loss

This category comprises financial assets held for trading,
and those designated at fair value through profit or loss
upon initial recognition, but exclude those investments in
equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Financial assets held for trading are financial assets
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short
term, or are part of a portfolio of identified financial assets
that are managed together and for which there is evidence
of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit taking.

Derivative financial instruments (“derivatives”) that do not
qualify for hedge accounting (Note 2.8) are accounted for
as trading instruments. Derivatives are initially recognised
at fair value on the date derivative contracts are entered
into by the Group and are subsequently re-measured at
their fair values. Changes in their fair values are recognised
immediately in the income statement within “Other gains
- net”.

Financial assets are designated at fair value through profit
or loss upon initial recognition when:

— the assets are managed, evaluated and reported
internally on a fair value basis ; or

— the designation eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch which would otherwise arise.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.7 Financial assets (Continued)
(b) Classification and measurement (Continued)
(i) At fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

If a financial asset contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the Group may designate the entire hybrid
contract as a financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss unless:

—  the embedded derivative(s) does not significantly
modify the cash flows that otherwise would be
required by the financial asset; or

— the separation of the embedded derivative(s) from
the financial assets is prohibited.

Financial assets under this category are subsequently
carried at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes
in the fair value are included in the consolidated income
statement within “Other gains — net” in the period in
which they arise. Upon disposal, the difference between
the net sale proceeds and the carrying value is included in
the consolidated income statement within “Other gains -
net” in the period in which they arise. Dividend income is
recognised in the consolidated income statement as part
of “Other revenues” when the Group’s right to receive
payment is established.

Financial assets in this category are classified as current
assets if they are either held for trading or are expected to
be realised within twelve months from the reporting date.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.7 Financial assets (Continued)
(b) Classification and measurement (Continued)
(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They arise when the Group provides
money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no
intention of trading the receivables.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less impairment losses, if any
(Note 2.9(a)(i)).

Financial assets in this category are classified as current
assets except for those with maturities greater than twelve
months after the reporting date or are expected to be
realised after twelve months from the reporting date
which are classified as non-current assets.

(iii)  Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturities that the Group’s management has the
positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.

Held-to-maturity financial assets are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less impairment
losses, if any (Note 2.9(a)(ii)).

Financial assets in this category are classified as current
assets except for those with maturities greater than twelve
months after the reporting date which are classified as
non-current assets.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.7 Financial assets (Continued)
(b) Classification and measurement (Continued)
(iv)  Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are either designated in this category
or not classified in any of the other three categories
above. They include financial assets intended to be held
for an indefinite period of time, but which may be sold in
response to need for liquidity or changes in the market
environment.

Available-for-sale financial assets are carried at fair value
except for investments in equity securities that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are carried
at cost less impairment losses, if any (Note 2.9(a)(iii)).
Unrealised gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the investment
revaluation reserve, except for impairment losses and
foreign exchange gains or losses on monetary items such
as debt securities which are recognised in the income
statement.

When the available-for-sale financial assets are sold, gains
or losses on disposal include the difference between
the net sale proceeds and the carrying value, and the
accumulated fair value adjustments which are previously
recognised in other comprehensive income shall be
reclassified from equity to the income statement.

Financial assets in this category are classified as non-
current assets unless management intends to dispose
of the financial assets within twelve months from the
reporting date.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.7 Financial assets (Continued)
(c) De-recognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

(d) Fair value measurement principles

The fair value of financial instruments is based on their
quoted market prices (bid prices) at the reporting date
without any deduction for estimated future selling costs.

If there is no publicly available latest traded price nor a
quoted market price on a recognised stock exchange or
a price from a broker/dealer for non-exchange traded
financial instruments, or if the market for it is not active, the
fair value of the instrument is estimated using valuation
techniques that provide a reliable estimate of prices which
could be obtained in actual market transactions.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used,
estimated future cash flows are based on management’s
best estimates and the discount rate used is a market rate
at the reporting date applicable for an instrument with
similar terms and conditions. Where other pricing models
are used, inputs are based on market data at the reporting
date.

2.8 Hedge Accounting
The Group does not adopt hedge accounting for

derivatives which may qualify as eligible cash flow hedges
or fair value hedges.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 Impairment of assets
(a) Financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the assets (a “loss event”)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about the following loss events:

—  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

—  abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

— the Group granting to the issuer or obligor, for
economic or legal reasons relating to their financial
difficulty, a concession that a lender would not
otherwise consider;

— it becoming probable that the issuer or obligor
will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

— the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties; or

—  observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a
group of financial assets since the initial recognition
of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be
identified with the individual financial asset in the
group, including:

— adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the group; or

— national or local economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on the assets in the

group.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 TImpairment of assets (Continued)
(a) Financial assets (Continued)
(i) Loans and receivables

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the financial asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate
for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairment loss on
the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account and the amount
of the loss is recognised in the income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit
rating), the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed by adjusting the allowance account. The amount
of the reversal is recognised in the income statement.

(i) Held-to-maturity

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on
held-to-maturity financial assets carried at amortised cost
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the financial asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. If a held-to-maturity financial asset
has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract. As a practical expedient,
the Group may measure impairment loss on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.



0By —Z— =443 Annual Report 2013

A BB R AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EEEFEOR (48)
2.9 EEWE (4)
(a) SRERE (5)

(i) FEZFEIH(E)

EEERSEBRERENERESMEE L
FREEAMR LN BERARER o

EEBRHE  RESENSERD
iz A & Al B B b L e SRR (B T 1 12
BEMNEHRBAEDINEEAGEERT
ME)  AINEHERAREBEEB
AEEMERED - OO BERBEER
Wﬁggfu °

(iii) AL E

HROBEAAIHHENBREES B
BEFATERNEESRAKSERE
RAE eREEREREFEEE&H
HRE

FEREERERTHLESREELY
HREE cERBEEGHRFESAERLN
R BREM D RERER - AIBAEX
MHERR B R 5t B 18 T i R AR (F0 B
TR ENKEH) ZERQFEN
ERRZEREE ARG R AR
MR EE RS

SRR PRI BR Y EB SR B A] 1 Lh B A RE
FME  OREBEBRRRERESNREE
HELEREERRAFTMERREFTE
ZEARKRREREMSHREOYT
BORERBERN)ZHE -

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 TImpairment of assets (Continued)
(a) Financial assets (Continued)
(i) Held-to-maturity (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account and the amount
of the loss is recognised in the income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit
rating), the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed by adjusting the allowance account. The amount
of the reversal is recognised in the income statement.

(iii)  Available-for-sale

In the case of equity securities classified as available-for-
sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of the equity securities below their cost is considered in
determining whether the assets are impaired.

When there is objective evidence that an available-for-sale
financial asset is impaired, the cumulative loss that had
been recognised in the investment revaluation reserve is
reclassified to the income statement. The amount of the
cumulative loss that is recognised in the income statement
is the difference between the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and amortisation) and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in the income statement.

For unquoted available-for-sale equity securities that are
carried at cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the equity
securities and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset, where the effect of discount is
material.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 TImpairment of assets (Continued)
(a) Financial assets (Continued)
(i)  Available-for-sale (Continued)

Impairment losses recognised in the income statement
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities are not
reversed through the income statement. Any subsequent
increase in the fair value of such assets is recognised
directly in statement of comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the investment
revaluation reserve. Furthermore, any further declines in
value after an impairment loss had been recognised in the
income statement should be recognised immediately in
the income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of an available-
for-sale debt securities increases and the increase can
be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in the income statement,
the reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement.

(b) Other non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is
an indication that a non-financial asset is impaired. Assets
that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet available
for use are not subject to amortisation and are at least
tested annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment
testing for a non-financial asset is required, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable
amount of an asset is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e., a cash-generating unit).
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 TImpairment of assets (Continued)
(b) Other non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised in the income statement
for the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the cash-generating unit and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less costs to sell, or
value in use, if determinable.

Previously recognised impairment losses on goodwill are
not reversed in subsequent periods. Previously recognised
impairment losses on other assets are reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount of an asset, however not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any amortisation or depreciation),
had no impairment loss been recognised against the asset
in prior periods. Reversal of impairment loss is credited to
the income statement in the period in which it arises.

(¢) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to prepare
an interim financial report in compliance with HKAS 34
“Interim Financial Reporting”, in respect of the first six
months of the financial year. At the end of the interim
period, the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition and reversal criteria as it would at the end of
the financial year (Notes 2.9(a) and 2.9(b)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities and
unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not reversed
in a subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss,
or a smaller loss, would have been recognised had the
impairment been assessed only at the end of the financial
year to which the interim period relates.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Insurance contracts classification
The Group issues contracts that transfer insurance risk.

Insurance contracts are those contracts that transfer
significant insurance risk. The Group defines significant
insurance risk as the possibility of having to pay benefits
on the occurrence of an insured event that are at least 10%
more than the benefits payable if the insured event did not
occur.

2.11 Insurance contracts
(a) Classification

Insurance contracts are classified depending on the
duration of risk and whether or not the terms and
conditions are fixed.

Short-term insurance contracts issued by the Group are
casualty and property insurance contracts.

Casualty insurance contracts protect the Group’s customers
against the risk of causing harm to third parties as a result
of their legitimate activities. Damages covered include
both contractual and non-contractual events. The typical
protection offered is designed for employers who become
legally liable to pay compensation to injured employees
(employers’ liability) and for individual and business
customers who become liable to pay compensation to a
third party for bodily harm or property damage (public
liability).

Property insurance contracts mainly compensate the
Group's customers for damage suffered to their properties
or for the value of property lost. Customers who undertake
commercial activities on their premises could also receive
compensation for the loss of earnings caused by the
inability to use the insured properties in their business
activities (business interruption cover).
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.11 Insurance contracts (Continued)
(a) Classification (Continued)

Claims and loss adjustment expenses are charged to the
income statement as incurred based on the estimated
liability for compensation owed to contract holders or
third parties damaged by the contract holders. They
include direct and indirect claims settlement costs and
arise from events that have occurred up to the reporting
date even if they have not yet been reported to the Group.
The Group does not discount its liabilities for unpaid
claims. Liabilities for unpaid claims are estimated using the
input of assessments for individual cases reported to the
Group and statistical analyses for the claims incurred but
not reported, and to estimate the expected ultimate cost
of more complex claims that may be affected by external
factors (such as court decisions).

(b) Deferred acquisition costs (“DAC”)

Commissions and other acquisition costs that vary with
and are related to securing new contracts and renewing
existing contracts are capitalised as an intangible asset,
DAC. All other costs are recognised as expenses when
incurred. The DAC is subsequently amortised over the life
of the contracts as premium is earned.

(c) Liability adequacy test

At each reporting date, liability adequacy tests are
performed to ensure the adequacy of the contract
liabilities net of related DAC assets. In performing these
tests, current best estimates of future contractual cash
flows and claims handling and administration expenses are
used. Any deficiency is immediately charged to the income
statement initially by writing off DAC and subsequently
by establishing a provision for losses arising from liability
adequacy tests (the unexpired risk provision). Any DAC
written off as a result of this test cannot subsequently be
reinstated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.11 Insurance contracts (Continued)
(d) Reinsurance contracts held

Contracts entered into by the Group with reinsurers under
which the Group is compensated for losses on one or
more contracts issued by the Group and that meet the
classification requirements for insurance contracts in Note
2.10 are classified as reinsurance contracts held. Contracts
that do not meet these classification requirements are
classified as financial assets. Insurance contracts entered
into by the Group under which the contract holder is
another insurer (inwards reinsurance) are included as
“Insurance contracts” in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The benefits to which the Group is entitled under its
reinsurance contracts held are recognised as reinsurance
assets. These assets consist of short-term balances due
from reinsurers, as well as longer term receivables that
are dependent on the expected claims and benefits
arising under the related reinsured insurance contracts.
Amounts recoverable from or due to reinsurers are
measured consistently with the amounts associated with
the reinsured insurance contracts and in accordance
with the terms of each reinsurance contract. Reinsurance
liabilities are primarily premiums payable for reinsurance
contracts and are recognised as an expense over the terms
of reinsurance contracts and are included as “Insurance
payable” in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The Group assesses its reinsurance assets for impairment
on a regular basis. If there is objective evidence that the
reinsurance asset is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount of the reinsurance asset to its recoverable
amount and recognises that impairment loss in the income
statement. The Group gathers the objective evidence
that a reinsurance asset is impaired and calculates the
impairment losses using the same processes adopted for
loans and receivables as described in Note 2.9(a)(i).
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.11 Insurance contracts (Continued)

(e) Receivables and payables related to insurance
contracts

Receivables and payables are recognised when due. These
include amounts due to and from agents, brokers and
insurance contract holders.

If there is objective evidence that the insurance receivable
is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount of
the insurance receivable to its recoverable amount and
recognises that impairment loss in the income statement.
The Group gathers the objective evidence that an insurance
receivable is impaired and calculates the impairment
losses using the same processes adopted for loans and
receivables as described in Note 2.9(a)(i).

(f) Salvage and subrogation reimbursements

Some insurance contracts permit the Group to sell (usually
damaged) property acquired in settling a claim (salvage).
The Group may also have the right to pursue third parties
for payment of some or all costs (subrogation).

Estimates of salvage recoveries are included as an
allowance in the measurement of the insurance liability for
claims, and salvage property is recognised in other assets
when the liability is settled. The allowance is the amount
that can reasonably be recovered from the disposal of the

property.

Subrogation reimbursements are also considered as an
allowance in the measurement of the insurance liability for
claims and are recognised in other assets when the liability
is settled. The allowance is the amount assessed that can
be recovered from the action against the liable third party.
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227 MIN XIN HOLDINGS LIMITED .E.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.12 Land use rights

All land in Mainland China is state-owned and no
individual ownership right existed. The Group acquired
the rights to use certain land in Mainland China which
are held for development for sale. The premiums paid
for those land use rights are classified as inventories in
accordance with HKAS 2 “Inventories” and measured at
lower of cost and net realisable value. Land use rights are
transferred to properties under development for sale upon
commencement of development.

2.13 Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale are included in
current assets and stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is determined by
reference to estimated sale proceeds of the properties sold
in the ordinary course of business less estimated variable
selling expenses and anticipated costs to completion, or
by management’s estimates based on prevailing market
conditions.

Development costs of properties comprise land use
rights, construction costs, capitalised finance costs and
professional fees incurred during the development
period of a normal operating cycle. On completion,
the development costs of properties are transferred to
completed properties held for sale.

2.14 Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are completed
properties remaining unsold at the reporting date and are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost comprises development cost attributable to the
unsold properties. Net realisable value is determined by
reference to estimated sale proceeds of the properties sold
in the ordinary course of business less estimated variable
selling expenses, or by management’s estimates based on
prevailing market conditions.



0By —Z— =443 Annual Report 2013

A BB R AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TG R EOR ()

215 FrfE R ER FE R B & (5
EHE)

HRRBDEE(KHEES)NKREET
E:Fid chrl-LACNTNE S ok F L dasE
B RZBEE(KHEHES)AERRTT
HEME - AIDBERFELERR -

EMmE o BRFHIELSRMA - JERS
BE(REHEEAANMEBREER
BENEREEREANEERNBRS
HAGE - BEVBRDBRBIELER
BIREEHE  EREBEEAT AL
ZETEERIN IHEASGAKRE
EXAFEHARHERAME T ZRE
EAR - RERBEE eMEER
MEBAR - @Z2RARRBERRNKRE
BRIN) - REAEHRIEYE  BIED
BARELE  TeMERERE2NE
AHERRETE ©

REBERBDEERDBERFTIELE - L
BINADBERFIELHEZHERS %
FERBEENTTEHETEEH -

FRAEDBAREHERRIERIIA
DERFIELE 2 HEHENIFRDE
ETBNA D RERRE - RNEEIAZ
BERDBABELERM A REE
(RPABRZEEBRRARDBEARKIELE
BRIMEE ARRNITE  BHREMD
BRE)IERRETNHEZBZREEN
AREEEmER ZBREEFE -

AEEGIFLEDBRFIELENIERE
BEREBRRETHEZH » EFEL
BAAEHR AN AMTAIFHRHE -

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.15 Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for
sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified
as held for sale if the carrying amount is recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through
a continuing use and the asset (or disposal group) is
available for sale in its present condition.

Immediately before the initial classification as held for
sale, the carrying amounts of the non-current assets (and
all individual assets and liabilities in the disposal group)
shall be measured in accordance with applicable HKFRSs.
Then, on initial classification as held for sale and until
disposal, the non-current assets (except for certain assets
as explained below), or disposal groups, are recognised
at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell. Deferred tax assets, financial assets (other
than investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates), insurance contracts and investment properties,
even if held for sale, would continue to be measured in
accordance with the policies set out elsewhere in Note 2.

As long as a non-current asset is classified as held for
sale, or is included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale, the non-current asset is not depreciated or
amortised.

If a non-current asset previously classified as held for sale,
or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale no longer met the recognition criteria stated above,
the Group measures that asset at the lower of its carrying
amount before that asset was classified as held for sale,
adjusted for any depreciation, amortisation or revaluation
that would have been recognised had that asset not been
classified as held for sale, and its recoverable amount at
the date of the subsequent decision not to sell.

The Group includes any required adjustment to the
carrying amount of a non-current asset that ceases to
be classified as held for sale in income from continuing
operations at the date of the subsequent decision not to
sell.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.16 Other debtors

Other debtors are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective
interest method, less impairment losses, if any.

2.17 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and in
hand, deposits held at call with banks, cash investments
with original maturity of three months or less from the
date of investment less bank overdrafts.

2.18 Financial liabilities — Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred. Transaction costs are
incremental costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial liability,
including fees and commissions paid to the borrowers.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost with
any difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value is recognised in the income
statement over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
date.

2.19 Financial liabilities — Creditors and payables

Creditors and payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured
in accordance with Note 2.20, creditors and payables
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.20 Financial guarantee liabilities

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e., the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for
a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the terms of
a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial
statements at fair value plus transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issue of the guarantees on the
date that the guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such guarantees
are measured at the higher of the present value of the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation determined in accordance with HKAS 37
“Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”
and the amount initially recognised less cumulative
amortisation recognised. Any changes in the liabilities
relating to financial guarantees are taken to the income
statement.

2.21 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount can be
reliably estimated. Where there are a number of similar
obligations, the likelihood that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision
is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow of
economic benefits with respect to any one item included
in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.21 Provisions (Continued)

Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, for
example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement
is recognised as a separate asset but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain.

2.22 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured
reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements. When
a change in the probability of an outflow of economic
benefits occurs so that the outflow is probable, it will then
be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
events not wholly within the control of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements when an
inflow of economic benefits is probable. When the inflow
is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

2.23 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollars, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.23 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains or
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at closing exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities, such as equity instruments held
at fair value through profit or loss, are reported as part
of the fair value gain or loss in the income statement.
Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as
equity investments classified as available-for-sale financial
assets, are included in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the investment
revaluation reserve.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from
the Company'’s presentation currency are translated into
the presentation currency as follows:

— assets and liabilities in their statement of financial
position are translated at the closing rate at the date
of that statement of financial position;

— income and expenses in their income statement
are translated at average exchange rates, unless
these average exchange rates are not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing at the transaction dates. In such case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of
the transactions; and

— allresulting exchange differences are recognised as a
separate component of equity.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.23 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(¢) Group companies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising from the translation of the
net investments in foreign operations are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the exchange translation reserve. When a
foreign operation is partially disposed of or sold, the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences relating
to that foreign operation is reclassified from equity to the
income statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.

2.24 Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in the income statement except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
they are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantially
enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.24 Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the assets can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary differences or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused
tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken
into account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they
are not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or
in the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable
that they will reverse in the future.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.24 Income tax (Continued)

Where investment property is carried at its fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note 2.6,
the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using
the tax rates that would apply on sale of that investment
property at its carrying value at the reporting date unless
that investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in that
investment property over time, rather than through sale.
In all other case, the amount of deferred tax recognised
is measured based on the expected manner of realisation
or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted
at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
each reporting date and is reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group has
the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— inthe case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on the same taxable entity.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.25 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

2.26 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised on the following basis provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount can be measured reliably:

(a) Sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties in the ordinary course of
business is recognised when the risks and rewards of the
respective properties are transferred to the purchasers,
which is when the construction of relevant properties has
been completed and the properties have been delivered
to the purchasers and collectability of related receivables
is reasonably assured.

Deposits and installments received from purchasers prior
to the date of revenue recognition are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as “Customer
deposits from sale of properties” under current liabilities.

(b) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method. When a receivable
is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to
its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash
flows discounted at original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as
interest income.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)
(c) Rental income from investment properties

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in the income statement in equal installments
over the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in the income
statement as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable.

(d) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholder’s
right to receive payment is established.

(e) Short-term insurance contracts

Gross premiums from the sale of short-term insurance
contracts are recorded when written.

Earned premiums are recognised as revenue proportionally
over the period of coverage. The portion of premium
received on in-force contracts that relates to unexpired
risks at the reporting date is reported as the unearned
premium liability. Premiums are shown before deduction
of commission.

(f) Management fee

Management fee is recognised upon the provision of
services.

2.27 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the income statement in
the period in which they are incurred, except to the extent
that they are capitalised as being directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.27 Borrowing costs (Continued)

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceased when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sale are interrupted or completed.

2.28 Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Payments made under operating
leases (including those for leasehold land) net of any
incentives received from the lessor are charged to the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease
periods.

2.29 Employee benefits
(a) Short-term employee benefits

Salaries and annual bonuses are paid or accrued in the
year in which the associated services are rendered by
employees. When payment or settlement is deferred and
the effect would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

93



7 o e -
B0 RIEEEARAT MIN XIN HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢H¢

ARG PSR RE R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= B ()

2.29 fg B 18 A (#E)
(b) FBIRAE A A

REBUARGIE - SHMEHBRETR
[ F il A B IR B R IRET IR < 1t
FETEIR AN B S B E R0 SE
FORKETE - ARBEERHRER - &
BIMIAREL - ERESAEFEEH
BERMAEREREREEE P RAEIE
M BRI F] - AR IR TE S
E RIS TRIMEFR ©

AEBNHFERNEEZSREEREN
Fx - BRI 28R E HKATRER A 3
& B PTIR My kIR A o TR 3R
# A3 & R SRk TR A AR SR AN R AU RE R

BREEZENEBENRRAA TRERERE
R BEERBACHEREECRMR
BMERZFBASIBNGEARE-

BREERZANBRBEOBEBNELRS
T ARER ©

(d) DA G BRE 0 £

AREE—REERR(ZAT RS K
BERREE-HRSEENRN X
et (AR EERT &) - RIFEZ
atEl - BB EEA S EEREFFHIAN
B BR A5 M 22 B AR T SR AE R IF DAR S RIAT
- ZMERRAENBEN R T ES
PENHEBRRAER -

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.29 Employee benefits (Continued)
(b) Retirement benefit costs

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension plans on a mandatory, contractual
or voluntary basis. These pension plans are defined
contribution schemes which the Group pays fixed
contributions and has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets
to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee
services rendered in the current and prior periods.

The Group’s contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due and are reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave the
scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent
that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is
available.

(c) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the reporting date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

(d) Share-based compensation

An associate (previously recognised as a joint venture) of
the Group sets up a cash-settled share-based payment
plan, namely Share Appreciation Rights (“SAR”). According
to the plan, SAR is not vested until fulfilling services in
the vesting period and meeting required performance.
The changes in fair value of liability incurred have been
recognised in the income statement by that associate.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.29 Employee benefits (Continued)
(e) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated before the normal retirement date, or
whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed
to either terminating the employment of current
employees according to a detailed formal plan or
providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made
to encourage voluntary redundancy without realistic
possibility of withdrawal. Benefits falling due more than
twelve months after the reporting date are discounted to
present value.

2.30 Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in these consolidated financial
statements, are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources to,
and assessing the performance of, the Group’s various
lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products or services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

2.31 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the equity holders of the
Company is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved for distribution.
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2 & EHEOR (48) 2  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
2.32 BB TT 2.32 Related parties
TERRBIAGR S B TSR - B85 fg For the purposes of these consolidated financial
AEEE@ELALTHERS - statements, a related party is a person or entity that is

related to the Group.

(@) FATHEFLBRREKXEREA (@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family,

RSB BME WAL is related to the Group if that person:

() BAREEA TGN ILRE (i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
4

(i) BAKEEEATXEN K (i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) AAREBEHAE UNGILED (iii) is a member of the key management personnel

ZEBRABMKE - of the Group or the Group's parent.
(b) WMF/FEEMTIER  XEEBW (b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

RABHEAEBEBME : following conditions applies:

() REBEAEEEAR % (i)  the entity and the Group are members of the
EHKE(ESEEMEARF - same group (which means that each parent,
MEBARKRRMBARE subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
HBEEE=E) - the others).

(i) XEBRSEBROBEN (i) one entity is an associate or a joint venture
AIHEEAR(HREEEK of the other entity (or an associate or a joint
8 HY B é—f RAHEE RN venture of a member of a group of which the
mME—ERAZEBNK other entity is a member).

g)e

(il MEEBERR—F=78 (iii) both entities are joint ventures of the same
BERA] e third party.

ivy XREBRF-"EENEEQ (iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
Al - ME—ERBRZE=E and the other entity is an associate of the third
BHEE QT - entity.

(v) ZEBRRHEMNTAEEH (v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
EEXANEEHBABERNE for the benefit of employees of either the

BRBEBEENETE - Group or an entity related to the Group.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.32 Related parties (Continued)

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in Note 2.32(a).

(vii) a person identified in Note 2.32(a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENT

The preparation of financial statements requires
management to make estimates and assumptions
concerning the future that affect the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses in these
consolidated financial statements. The application of
assumptions and estimates means that any changes of
them, either due to changes of management’s judgement
or the evolvement of the actual circumstances, would
cause the Group's financial position and results to differ.

Estimates and judgement are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. The Group
believes that the assumptions and estimates that have
been made in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are appropriate and that these
consolidated financial statements therefore present fairly
the Group’s financial position and results in all material
respects.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next twelve months are
discussed below.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value of investment properties
held by the Group is current prices in an active market
for similar lease or other contracts. In the absence of such
information, the Group determines the amount within a
range of reasonable fair value estimates. In making this
judgement, the Group considers information including
current prices in an active market for properties of different
nature, condition or location (or subject to different lease
or other contracts), adjusted to reflect those differences
or recent prices of similar properties in less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the date of the transactions that occurred
at those prices. As at 31 December 2013, the fair value of
the Group's investment properties was approximately
HK$154.83 million (Note 16).

(b) Investment in Xiamen International Bank
(“XIB”)

The Company holds approximately 16.9333% shareholding
in XIB. The Company considered that it has the ability
to exercise significant influence over the financial
and operating policy decisions of XIB through its two
representations on the board of directors of XIB as well
as the participation in policy-making processes through
the representations in committees set up by the board of
directors of XIB even though the Company holds less than
20% of the voting power of XIB. Accordingly, the Company
considers that XIB will continue to be classified as an
associate of the Company and the Company’s interest in
XIB will continue to be accounted for using equity method
in accordance with the HKFRSs (Note 19).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(c) Impairment allowances on loans and advances

The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment
losses regularly, and would further assess impairment
losses when there are indications of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment includes observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows from an individual loan,
observable data indicating that there has been an adverse
change in the payment status of borrowers in a group
(e.g., payment delinquency or default), or national or
local economic conditions that correlated with defaults
on assets in the group. The individual impairment loss is
based upon best estimate of the present value of cash
flows which are expected to be received discounted at
the original effective interest rate. When assessing the
impairment losses of a loan portfolio under the collective
evaluation method, management of the Group uses
estimates based on historical loss experience, which
subjects to adjustments according to observable data
to reflect the current economic conditions, for assets
with credit risk characteristics and objective evidence
of impairment similar to those in the portfolio when
estimating expected future cash flows. The methodology
and assumptions used for estimating both the amount
and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to
reduce any differences between loss estimated and actual
loss experience. As a practical expedient, the Group may
assess the impairment losses of a loan portfolio under the
collective evaluation method on the basis of the market
historical experience.
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SEBR2AF MIN XIN HOLDINGS LIMITED ...

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Casualty and property insurance contract
liabilities

For casualty and property insurance contracts, estimates
have to be made for both the expected ultimate costs of
claims reported at the reporting date and for the expected
ultimate costs of claims incurred but not reported (“IBNR”)
at the reporting date. It may take a significant period of
time before the ultimate claims costs can be established
with certainty and for some type of policies, IBNR
claims form the majority of the insurance liability in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The ultimate
costs of outstanding claims are estimated by using a range
of standard actuarial claims projection techniques, such as
the Bornhuetter-Ferguson (“BF”) method.

The main assumption underlying these techniques is
that past claims development experience can be used to
project future claims development and hence ultimate
claims costs. As such, these methods extrapolate the
development of paid and incurred losses, average cost
per claim and claim numbers based on the observed
development of earlier years and expected loss ratios.
Historical claims development is mainly analysed by
accident year, as well as by significant business lines and
claim types. Large claims are usually separately addressed,
either by being reserved at the face value if loss adjustor
estimates or separately projected in order to reflect their
future development. The assumptions used are those
implicit in the historical claims development data on
which the projections are based. Additional qualitative
judgement is used to assess the extent to which past
trends may not apply in future (for example to reflect one-
off occurrence, changes in external or market factors such
as public attitudes of claiming, economic conditions, levels
of claims inflation, judicial decisions and legislation, as well
as internal factors such as portfolio mix, policy conditions
and claims handling procedures), so as to arrive at the
estimated ultimate costs of claims that present the likely
outcome from the range of possible outcomes, taking into
account of all the uncertainties involved.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(e) Current income tax and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income tax in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the
amounts of the provision for income tax and the timing
of the payment of the related income tax. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the provisions for current
income tax and deferred income tax in the period in which
such determination is made. As at 31 December 2013, the
Group had deferred income tax liabilities of approximately
HK$45.58 million (Note 32). The deferred income tax
liabilities will increase or decrease by approximately
HK$1.59 million if the actual applicable tax rate differs by
1%.

(f) Critical accounting estimates and judgement of
an associated financial institution

The Group’s major associated financial institution, Xiamen
International Bank and its subsidiaries (“XIB Group”), is
principally conducted banking business in Mainland
China and Macao (Note 19). In preparing its statutory
consolidated financial statements in accordance with the
PRC Accounting Standards, certain critical accounting
estimates and judgement have been applied as described
below:

—  Fair value of financial instruments

The fair values of financial instruments that are not quoted
in active markets are determined by XIB Group using
valuation techniques. Valuation techniques used include
discounted cash flows analysis and models. To the extent
practical, models use only observable data, however
areas such as credit risk (both own and counterparty),
volatilities and correlations require management of XIB
Group to make estimates. Changes in assumptions about
these factors could affect reported fair values of financial
instruments.
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AND JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(f) Critical accounting estimates and judgement of
an associated financial institution (Continued)

—  Impairment allowances on loans and advances

XIB Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment
losses regularly, and would further assess impairment
losses when there are indications of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment includes observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows from an individual loan,
observable data indicating that there has been an adverse
change in the payment status of borrowers in a group
(e.g., payment delinquency or default), or national or
local economic conditions that correlated with defaults
on assets in the group. The individual impairment loss is
based upon best estimate of the present value of cash
flows which are expected to be received discounted at
the original effective interest rate. When assessing the
impairment losses of a loan portfolio under the collective
evaluation method, management of XIB Group uses
estimates based on historical loss experience, which
subjects to adjustments according to observable data
to reflect the current economic conditions, for assets
with credit risk characteristics and objective evidence
of impairment similar to those in the portfolio when
estimating expected future cash flows. The methodology
and assumptions used for estimating both the amount
and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to
reduce any differences between loss estimated and actual
loss experience.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(f) Critical accounting estimates and judgement of
an associated financial institution (Continued)

—  Valuation of long-term equity investments

An unlisted equity investment held by XIB Group was
measured at cost in accordance with the PRC Accounting
Standards. For the purpose of financial reporting of the
Group in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in Note 2.3(b), the Group has appointed an independent
professional valuer to assess the fair value of that equity
investment held by XIB Group and re-measured at fair
value in these consolidated financial statements.

The fair value of that equity investment has been
estimated using a market comparison approach by an
independent professional valuer. Based on the market
ratio (e.g., price/earning and price/book ratios) of a
number of listed companies engaged in similar industries
as the investee and the investee’s historical financial
information, management of the Group makes estimates
and judgement on the appropriate adjustments required
to reflect the circumstances of the investee, including
the liquidity discount applicable to the paid-up capital
of the investee as compared to those of the shares of a
listed company, for fair value estimation purposes. The
Group’s share of fair value changes is accounted for in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the investment
revaluation reserve. As at 31 December 2013, the Group's
attributable share of the fair value gain (after deferred
income tax adjustment) arising from this investment was
approximately HK$57.41 million. To the extent that the
liquidity discount rate increases or decreases by 1%, the
Group's investment revaluation reserve (after deferred
income tax adjustment) will decrease or increase by
approximately HK$1.08 million respectively.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors

The Group's business activities expose it to a variety of
insurance risk and financial risks including market risk
(including foreign exchange risk, price risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. This note summarises the
Group's exposure to these risks, as well as its objectives,
policies and processes for managing and the methods
used to measure these risks.

The Group’s investment policy is to prudently invest its
funds in a manner which satisfies the Group's liquidity
requirements and generates optimal returns to the Group
within a manageable risk level. The Group’s overall risk
management focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group's performance.

The Board, representing the interest of shareholders, is the
highest decision making authority of the Group and has
the ultimate responsibility for risk management. The Board
has adopted procedures for evaluating and approving
significant investment decisions. Given the nature of the
Group's financial assets and liabilities, their risk exposures
are monitored by the Group primarily on a qualitative
basis.

The General Manager (“GM”") is responsible for managing
the Group's various types of risks, approving detailed
risk management policies, and approving material risk
exposures or transactions within his authority delegated
by the Board. The other members of the management
team assist the GM in fulfilling his responsibilities for the
day-to-day management of risks.

The Group has put in place an internal control system,
including establishment of the Group’s organisation
structure that sets adequately clear lines of authority and
responsibility for monitoring compliance with policies,
procedures and limits. Proper reporting lines also provide
sufficient independence of the control functions from the
business areas, as well as adequate segregation of duties
throughout the organisation which helps to promote
appropriate internal control environment.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk

The Group issues contracts that transfer insurance risk.
This section summarises these risks and the way the Group
manages such risks.

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility
that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of
the amount of the resulting claim. By the very nature of
an insurance contract, this risk is random and therefore
unpredictable.

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory
of probability is applied to pricing and provisioning, the
principal risk that the Group faces under its insurance
contracts is that the actual claims exceed the carrying
amount of the insurance liabilities. This could occur
because the frequency or severity of claims and benefits
are greater than estimated. Insurance events are random
and the actual numbers and amounts of claims will
vary from year to year from the level established using
statistical techniques.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar
insurance contracts, the smaller the relative variability
about the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more
diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected across the
board by a change in any subset of the portfolio.

Factors that aggravate insurance risk include lack of
risk diversification in terms of type and amount of risk,
geographical location and type of industry covered.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)
(i) Frequency and severity of claims

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by
several factors. The most significant are the increasing
level of awards for the damage suffered and the increase
in number of cases coming to court that were inactive or
latent for a long period of time. Estimated inflation is also a
significant factor due to the long period typically required
to settle these cases.

The Group manages these risks through its underwriting
strategy, adequate reinsurance arrangements and claims
handling.

The underwriting strategy attempts to ensure that the
underwritten risks are well diversified in terms of type and
amount of risk, industry and geographical location.

Underwriting limits are in place to enforce appropriate risk
selection criteria. For example, the Group has the right to
re-price, cancel or not to renew a contract, it can impose
deductibles and it has the right to reject the payment
of fraudulent claim. Insurance contracts also entitle the
Group to pursue third parties for payment of some or all
costs (subrogation). Unless the legislation requires, the
Group's strategy limits the total exposure of any individual
policy to a certain amount.

The reinsurance arrangements include facultative,
proportional treaties and excess of loss coverage. The
effect of such reinsurance arrangements is that the Group
should not suffer total net insurance losses more than the
prescribed amount. In addition to the overall reinsurance
program, additional reinsurance protection for any
individual risk will be arranged when necessary.
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DR B S B s el e A B (4 4 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 PRB K B B R 2= (48) 4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) PrBoalFy (48) (a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(i) BEEMIEEREEEE(E (i)  Frequency and severity of claims (Continued)
BB T 2R EREREBRE The concentration of insurance risk before and after
Al 2 RRERASERERMNAT - I reinsurance by territory in relation to type of insurance
iR EREEANRBRET(EELE accepted is summarised below, with reference to the
R FE)NEREBEIERE - carrying amount of the insurance liabilities (gross and net

of reinsurance) arising from insurance contracts:

2013
- B
EREME 533
"E General  Accident Hitr )
Motor liability  and health Others Total

BETT  BEFT  BETT  BEFn BEFn
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000
E ] Gross
B Hong Kong 28,466 20,322 1,335 128 50,251
BF Macao 949 792 766 9,045 11,552
RBREAAE 8 Total insurance liabilities, gross 29,415 21,114 2,101 9,173 61,803
FE Net
&b Hong Kong 24,950 19,731 1,333 61 46,075
R Macao 846 760 724 8,223 10,553
RBERT4E T8 Total insurance liabilities, net 25,796 20,491 2,057 8,284 56,628
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(i) Frequency and severity of claims (Continued)

2012
—# B
ERRME Rigg
a2 General Accident i aE
Motor liability  and health Others Total

T4 Gross

&H Hong Kong

5 Macao

ReEfeE £8 Total insurance liabilities, gross
FH Net

&b Hong Kong

B Macao

ReELaE 38 Total insurance liabilities, net

108

BT EETT  EETT  ERTT BRI
HKSO00  HKSOOO  HKSOOO  HKSOOO  HKSOOO

33457 9,068 5583 276 48,384
674 705 803 7454 9,636
34131 9773 6,386 7,730 58,020
28,266 8,980 5583 93 42922
599 701 766 6,843 8,909
28,865 9,681 6,349 6,936 51,831
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(i) Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future
claims payments

Claims on insurance contracts are payable on a claim-
occurrence basis. The Group is liable for all insured events
that occurred during the term of the contract even if the
loss is discovered after the end of the contract term. As a
result, liability claims are settled over a long period of time
and a larger element of claims provision relates to incurred
but not reported claims. There are several variables that
affect the amounts and timing of cash flows from these
contracts. These mainly relate to the inherent risks by
individual contract holders and the risk management
procedures adopted. The compensation paid on these
contracts is the monetary awards granted for bodily injury
suffered. Such awards are lump-sum payments that are
calculated as the present value of the lost of earnings and
rehabilitation expenses that the injured party will incur as
a result of the accident.

The estimated costs of claims include direct expenses
to be incurred in settling claims, net of the expected
subrogation value and other recoveries. The Group takes
all reasonable steps to ensure that it has appropriate
information regarding its claims exposures. However,
given the uncertainty in establishing claims provisions, it is
likely that the final outcome will prove to be different from
the original liabilities established. The liabilities for these
contracts comprise provisions for IBNR, provisions for
reported claims not yet paid and provisions for unexpired
risks at the reporting date.

In calculating the estimated costs of unpaid claims (both
reported or not), the Group's estimation techniques are
a combination of loss-ratio-based estimates (where the
loss ratio is defined as the ratio between the ultimate cost
of insurance claims and insurance premiums earned in
a particular financial year in relation to such claims) and
estimates based upon actual claims experience using
predetermined formulae where greater weight is given to
actual claims experience as time passes.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(i) Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future
claims payments (Continued)

The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a greater
degree of uncertainty than the estimation of the costs
of settling claims already notified to the Group, where
information about the claim event is available. In
estimating the amounts of IBNR which make reasonable
provisions for the claims and the unexpired risks, it is
necessary to project future claims costs and associated
claims expenses and simulate the outcomes of claims
liabilities using models. These models are simplified
representation of many legal, social and economic
forces and may not be entirely appropriate for the types
of insurance business being analysed. It is certain that
actual future claims and claims expenses will not develop
exactly as projected and may vary significantly from the
projections.

In estimating the liabilities for the costs of reported
claims not yet paid the Group considers any information
available from loss adjusters and information on the costs
of settling claims with similar characteristics in previous
periods. Large claims are assessed on a case-by-case basis
or projected separately in order to allow for the possible
distortive effect of their development and incidence on
the rest of the portfolio.

Where possible, the Group adopts multiple techniques
to estimate the required level of provisions. This provides
a greater understanding of the trends inherent in the
experience being projected. The projections given by
the various methodologies also assist in estimating
the range of possible outcomes. The most appropriate
estimation technique is selected taking into account the
characteristics of the business class and the extent of the
development of each accident year.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)
(iii)  Process used to decide on assumptions

The Group uses several statistical methods to incorporate
the various assumptions made in order to estimate the
ultimate costs of claims. The choice of selected results
for each accident year of each class of business depends
on an assessment of the technique that has been most
appropriate to observed historical developments. In
certain instances, different techniques or combination
of techniques have been selected for individual accident
year or group of accident years within the same class of
business.

In estimating the claims liabilities of the Group’s motor,
employees’ compensation and domestic helpers’ insurance
portfolio, the paid and incurred loss development methods
supplemented by BF method are applied. For other classes
of insurance portfolio, the incurred loss development
method is used to project the claim liabilities.

The paid and incurred loss development methods are
used to project the ultimate costs of the claims, and the BF
method relies on a gradual transition from an estimated
loss ratio to an experience-rated development. BF method
is applied to the more recent accident years, for which the
paid and incurred loss development methods may yield
less accurate results.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(iv)  Sensitivity analysis — sensitivity of insurance claims
development tables

The reasonableness of the estimation process is tested by
an analysis of sensitivity around different scenarios. The
change in the monetary awards granted for bodily injury
suffered and also the employers’ liability claims is the most
critical to the assumptions used to estimate the liabilities
for these insurance contracts.

The Group believes that the liabilities for these claims
carried at the reporting date are adequate. However, an
increase of 10% in the costs of these claims would require
the recognition of an additional loss of approximately
HK$2.9 million (2012: approximately HK$2.6 million) net of
reinsurance.

The impact on the profit before taxation described
above does not take into account of changes in other
variables, as they are considered to be less material. Such
an assessment and the relative materiality of individual
variables may change in the future.

In addition to scenario testing, the development of
insurance liabilities provides a measure of the Group's
ability to estimate the ultimate value of claims. The top
half of the table below illustrates how the Group’s estimate
of total claims outstanding for each accident year has
changed at successive reporting dates. The bottom half of
the table reconciles the cumulative claims to the amount
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(iv)  Sensitivity analysis — sensitivity of insurance claims
development tables (Continued)

REEFEE — EBE Insurance claims - gross
EHEE Accident year 2009 2010 2011 012 013 HETotal
BETr BT BETr BEFr BETL | RRTx
HKSO00 — HKSOOO  HKSODD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD | HKS000
[ RARENA Estimate of ultimate claims costs
REHEE atend of accident year 34938 27,004 2634 25738 26,867
—l one year ater 2,839 18255 13814 12201
ZF two years later 25762 20,889 14,768
=i three years later 26,767 24347
mEE four years later 29,451
EHET 2 EE Current estimate of cumulative claims 29451 24347 14768 12201 26867 | 107,634
EEESF Cumulative payment to date @B)  (2158) (12,758) 9.221) 3914 | (75.209)
1720 2762 2010 2,980 2953 32,425
NOEFAZEE Liabilites i respect of prior years
before 2009 990
33,415
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK

MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 FRBg KBS Ry R =R (48) 4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) PrBoalFy (48) (a) Insurance risk (Continued)
(iv) BREE 7T — (R B B 18 3 /R 7Y & (iv)  Sensitivity analysis — sensitivity of insurance claims
REEIRZ (B) development tables (Continued)
g Insurance claims - net
EHEE Accident year 2009 2010 2011 2012 013 BETotal
BETr  BEFr BETT B%Fr BT | BETx
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
ErRRRENA Estimate of ultimate claims costs
RENER atend of accident year 31,190 24,844 21529 21,073 25
—Fl one year later 21,954 16,149 11,949 10306
“F two years later 23,036 18411 12,835
=FR three years later 23,750 21,805
Mk four years later 26,385
BRI B RE Current estimate of cumulative claims 26385 21805 1283 10306 257 93,858
ELEHR Cumulative payment to date (4665 (19043)  (10829) (7326) 370 | (65,564)
1,720 2,762 2,006 2,980 18,826 28,294
NOEEAZEE Liabilites i respect of prior years
before 2009 764
29,058
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The Group has in place a series of effective reinsurance
covers on a number of short-term insurance products that
have remained unchanged in recent years.

(b) Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss that results from movements
in market rates and prices. The Group is exposed to market
risk because of its investments classified as available-for-
sale financial assets or financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. The risk includes potential losses arising
from changes in foreign exchange rates, interest rates and

equity prices.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)

The Group's risk management objective is to enhance
shareholder’s value by maintaining risk exposures within
acceptable limits. The Group’s control of market risk is
based on restricting individual operations to invest within
a list of permissible instruments authorised by the Board to
ensure all risks arising are thoroughly identified, properly
measured and adequately controlled.

(i) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk of loss due to adverse
movements in foreign exchange rates relating to
investments denominated in foreign currencies. The Group
mainly operates in Hong Kong and Mainland China and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from recognised
assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations denominated in various currencies, primarily
with respect to Renminbi (“RMB”).

In respect of receivables, payables and cash balances held
in currencies other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate, the Group ensures that the
net exposure is kept to an acceptable level, by buying and
selling foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary to
address short-term imbalances.

Change in the fair value of forward foreign exchange
contracts that economically hedge monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the income statement. The net fair value of
forward foreign exchange contracts used by the Group as
economic hedge of cash balances held in currency other
than the functional currency of a subsidiary to which
it relates at 31 December 2013 was HK$615,000 (2012:
Nil), which has been recognised as derivate financial
instruments (Note 26).
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)
(i) Foreign exchange risks (Continued)

The Group's borrowings are denominated in the functional
currency of the entity taking out the loan. Given this,
management does not expect that there will be any
significant currency risk associated with the Group’s
borrowings.

The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s
exposure to foreign exchange risk arising from recognised
assets and liabilities denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the entity to which they relate at
the reporting date:

RE b N
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
ANREFT | N\EEFIL| A\R¥FT | ARETT
RMB 000 RMB 000 | RMB ‘000 RMB ‘000
Al E S R Available-for-sale
BE financial assets 353,257 500,156 353,257 500,156
FEWE K Loan receivable 92,139 — 92,139 —
JEUN — KB Dividend receivable
UNEI S from an associate 67,733 — 67,733 —
o fE Y BR X Other debtors 8,226 335,677 8,098 335,446
B4 MIBIT41F  Cash and bank balances 331,821 36,143 315,633 20,443
HibEBRF N Other creditors and
FEETE R accruals (7,264) (5,435) (7,249) (5,430)
FET A BRI Current income tax payable (27,702) (50,130) (27,702) (50,130)
818,210 816,411 801,909 800,485
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)
(i) Foreign exchange risks (Continued)

The following table indicates the approximate change
in the Group’s and the Company’s profit after taxation
(and retained profits) and other components of equity in
response to reasonably possible changes in the foreign
exchange rates to which the Group and the Company have
significant exposure at the reporting date:

2012
MERBE  HRHERAR i 0 NEXAZ  HEHEENR HEREL
A/ (TH)  REEANZE  ARFINEE A/ (FK)  REBEAGHZE  ABsnTE
Increase / Effecton Effecton Increase / Effect on Effecton
(decrease) profit after other (decrease) profit after other
in foreign taxation and components in foreign taxation and components
exchangerate  retained profits of equity exchange rate retained profits of equity
A7k BRTr Vi Bl BT BT
% HKS 000 HKS 000 % HKS 000 HKS 000
A5H The Group
AEE Renminbi 5 29,780 22,626 5 19,668 31,105
5 (29,780) (22,626)) e (19,668) (31,105)
O] The Company
N Renminbi 5 28736 22,626 5 18677 31105
(5 (28,736) (22’626)l I (18677) (31,105)
FRSRESTNREEZEFH N2 The sensitivity analysis above has been determined

HREBERNERERAE E%ﬁu‘fﬂzﬁﬁ Ed
BENERMT A ZINERB  MATEH
1 5 B (R R R FI 2R ) BI 451 o

assuming that the change in foreign exchange rate had
occurred and had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose
to foreign exchange risk at the reporting date, and that
all other variables, in particular interest rate, remained
constant.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)
(i) Foreign exchange risks (Continued)

The stated change represents management’s assessment
of reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange
rate over the period until the next reporting date. In this
respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate between the
Hong Kong Dollars and the United States Dollars would
be materially unaffected by any changes in movement
in value of the United States Dollars against other
currencies. Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of the effects on
profit after taxation and equity of each of the Group's
entities measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into Hong Kong Dollars at the exchange rate
ruling at the reporting date for presentation purposes. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2012.

The Group is also exposed to foreign exchange rate risk
from its investments in investees which are denominated
in Renminbi.

(i) Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk on investments
held by the Group classified in the consolidated statement
of financial position as available-for-sale financial assets or
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group's equity investments held for trading are listed
on the Stock Exchange. Decisions to buy or sell trading
securities are based on the performance of individual
securities compared to that of the index and the Group's
liquidity needs. Investments held in the available-for-
sale portfolio comprise equity investments listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange. The listed equity investments
have been chosen based on their long term growth
potential and are monitored regularly for performance
against expectations.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)

(i)  Price risks (Continued)

The following table indicates the approximate change

in the Group’s and the Company’s profit after taxation
(and retained profits) and other components of equity in

ﬁ?é)ﬁ?ﬁ”(&ﬁ R s ) ) Ko 4 2 EL At 4B B response to reasonably possible changes in the relevant
DEENRKNTE stock market index for listed investments to which the
Group and the Company have significant exposure at the
reporting date:
2013 2012
BBEREE HRAKENR HERHEM BERREY  HRHEENR HEnEh
L#/ (TH) REEANYE ARSingE H#/ (TH) RERF0NTE  AxPonse
Increase / Effecton Effect Increase / Effect on Effect
(decrease) profit after on other (decrease) profit after on other
inthe relevant taxation and components inthe relevant taxationand components
riskvariance retained profits of equity riskvariance  retained profits of equity
Aalt BEFL BEFT A7l BT BT
% HKS 000 HKS 000 % HKS 000 HKS 000
A5H The Group
LHREZHEE  Stockmarketindexin
Rake respect of listed
investments
3L Hang Seng Index 5 367 - 5 3% -
(5 (367) = ) (324) -
PBGAEE  Shanghai Composite Index 5 - 22,402 5 - 31322
(3 = (22,402) ) — (31322
O The Company
LHREZHEE  Stockmarketindexin
RS respect of listed
investments
RS Hang Seng Index 5 1 - 5 11 -
(5) (1) - () (1) -
ES5A%E Shanghai Composite Index 5 - 2402 5 - 31322
(5 = (22,402) e = (31322

1)
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)
(if)  Price risks (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the reasonably possible changes in the stock market
index had occurred and had been applied to the exposure
to equity price risk in existence at the reporting date.
It is also assumed that the fair values of the Group's
and the Company’s equity investments would change
in accordance with the historical correlation with the
relevant stock market index, that none of the Group's and
the Company’s available-for-sale investments would be
considered impaired as a result of a reasonably possible
decrease in the relevant stock market index, and that all
other variables remained constant. The stated changes
represent management’s assessment of reasonably
possible changes in the relevant stock market index over
the period until the next reporting date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2012.

(iii)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the
risk that future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group’'s interest bearing assets and liabilities
mainly comprise bank deposits and bank borrowings
denominated in floating rates which expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk. The Group manages these risks
primarily through maintaining the maturity profile of these
assets and liabilities within a short period and monitoring
the market interest rate movements so that the Group
can react accordingly when there are adverse interest rate
movements.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)
(iii)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks (Continued)

The following table details the interest rate profile of
the Group’s and the Company’s net borrowings at the
reporting date. For this purpose the Group defines “net
borrowings” as being interest-bearing financial liabilities
less interest-bearing investments (excluding cash held for
short-term working capital purposes):

2013 2012
BRA=E BREE ViR RHEE
Effective Carrying Effective Carrying
interest rate amount interest rate amount
E BT E BT T
% HK$’000 % HKS 000
rEE The Group
FENFIE Variable rate
BILRITER HK Dollars bank borrowings 2.0-22 200,000 24 50,000
- B Less: Renminbi bank
ANEEFR deposits pledged 3.15-3.6 (219,051) —
(19,051) 50,000
& 5E A &= Fixed rate
—FERFEH Renminbi borrowings from
AREBE (a) a substantial shareholder (a) 10.0 — 10.0 111,942
(19,051) 161,942
NN The Company
FENFIE Variable rate
BILIRITER HK Dollars bank borrowings 2.0-22 200,000 24 50,000
- B Less: Renminbi bank
ANEEFR deposits pledged 3.15-3.6 (219,051) —

(19,051) 50,000
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)
(iii)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks (Continued)

(@) The Renminbi borrowings from a substantial
shareholder were reclassified to liabilities associated
with assets classified as held for sale at 31 December
2012 and derecognised from these consolidated
financial statements following the completion of the
disposal of 100% equity interest in Minxin Suzhou
during the year.

At 31 December 2013, it is estimated that a general
increase or decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates
of variable rate bank borrowings, with all other variables
held constant, would decrease or increase the Group’s and
the Company’s profit after taxation and retained profits
by approximately HK$0.81 million (2012: approximately
HKS$0.5 million).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the changes in interest rates had occurred
and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk
for financial instruments with variable interest rate held by
the Group and the Company at the reporting date. The 100
basis points increase or decrease represents management'’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates over the period until the next reporting date. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2012.

(¢) Creditrisk

The Group is exposed to credit risk, which is the risk that a
customer or counter-party will be unable to or unwilling
to fulfill its repayment obligations for amounts due to the
Group. The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to
loans to customers and loan receivable, insurance related
receivables and other receivables.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Credit risk (Continued)

Transactions involving derivative financial instruments are
with counter-parties of sound credit standing, the Group
does not expect any investment counterparty to fail to
meet its obligations given their high credit standing.

In respect of the insurance related receivables and other
receivables, the Group limits its exposure to credit risk by
screening the counterparties, on-going monitoring and
acquiring collateral from counterparties.

Those receivables are required to meet the Group’s
established financial requirements and the Group
will obtain third party guarantees when it considered
necessary.

The Company has provided a shareholder advance to
Minxin Suzhou, a former wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group, of approximately RMB92.14 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$118.03 million) in prior years. Pursuant
to the loan agreement dated 14 January 2013 entered
into by the Company and Minxin Suzhou in relation to the
outstanding advance due to the Company, the loan will
be matured on 30 June 2014. At the same date, Citichamp
Dartong Co., Ltd. (“Citichamp”), the buyer of 100% equity
interest in Minxin Suzhou (“Equity Interest”), has agreed
to guarantee the payment of the outstanding loan and
interests accrued from the date on which the Equity
Interest is transferred to Citichamp (22 April 2013) to 30
June 2016. The Group has reclassified the shareholder
advance as loan receivable on 22 April 2013 and its
maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date
was the carrying amount of the outstanding loan and
interest receivable. The Group has monitored periodically
its exposure to non-payment of the outstanding loan
and interest receivable, included but not limited to the
assessment of the company development, operating
results and financial health of Citichamp. At 31 December
2013, the Group considered that there is no objective
evidence of loss events that will result in a provision to be
made in these consolidated financial statements.

o
T
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Credit risk (Continued)

The Group commences the micro credit business in
Mainland China during the year. In order to mitigate the
Group's exposure to credit risks and counter-party risks from
loans to customers, the Group has set out its objectives,
credit policies, processes for monitoring and managing
those risks as well as the detailed policies and procedures
for credit approval process.

By the nature of the micro credit business, the Group has
set up three Credit Committees for the approval of loans
with different authorisation limits. Business Department
is responsible for the daily monitor and management of
loans with reference to the various criteria such as the
operating results, financial health and creditworthiness
of the clients, guarantee provided, type and amount of
collateral pledged, and risk concentration of the clients as
well as the regular site visit according to the credit policies.
The Risk Control Department is responsible for the monitor
and evaluation of credit risks of clients, the registration of
the guarantee and collateral provided by clients as well as
the irregular site visit and debts collection for the disputed
loans. The Internal Audit Department of the Group is
responsible for the internal review of the loans approval
process and the efficiency of the credit control policies and
procedures.

As at 31 December 2013, bank balances were placed with
reputable financial institutions with diversification.

The Group or the Company does not provide any
guarantees which would expose the Group or the
Company to credit risk other than those provided in the
ordinary course of business (Note 34).
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Credit risk (Continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the
financial year without taking into account of any collateral
held or other credit enhancements is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial assets in the
consolidated statement of financial position after
deducting any impairment allowance. A summary of the
maximum exposure is as follows:

2013 2012

BMF T BT T

HKS’000 HKS'000

AEHEEHEE Available-for-sale financial assets 452,522 622,094

IR B2 e R Insurance receivable 10,372 10,275

BREBEE Reinsurance assets 5,175 6,189

XEERMEKRER Loans to customers and loan receivable 158,955 —

H fth pE Y AR X Other debtors 11,254 418,438

JrE A Bt 2N BIRR B Dividend receivable from associates 97,014 —
BRATEBEBERIER Financial assets at fair value through

WERLEE profit or loss 8,089 6,485

We RIRITETF Cash and bank balances 909,360 168,132

1,652,741 1,231,613

ERAEERBEWRN  BEFERNE
WEREERBRAE—LEEHED R
BN 22 Mg 24

Note 22 and Note 24 respectively.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from insurance receivable
and loans to customers and loan receivable are set out in

1)
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter
difficulty in raising funds to meet its cash flow needs or
commitments. Liquidity risk may result from either inability
to sell financial assets quickly at their fair value, a counter-
party failing on repayment of a contractual obligation or
an insurance liability falling due for payment earlier than
expected.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants,
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash,
readily realisable marketable securities and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including the
short-term investment of cash surpluses and the raising of
loans to cover expected cash demands.

At the reporting date, the forward foreign exchange
contracts held as cash flow hedging instruments by the
Group will be matured within one year with an outflow
amount of approximately HK$337.03 million and inflow
amount of approximately RMB264.97 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$339.43 million) respectively based on
the contractual undiscounted cash flow.
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4.1 PRB M s JE B R & (48) 4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(d) B Ee R () (d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

THRINTREHRBAEERAQRINE The following table details the remaining contractual
REREERERABEREAORTERERS maturity value at the reporting date of the Group’s and
m(BRERE NN RSB FERE the Company’s reinsurance assets and financial liabilities
ERBABITHNEFEZFE) G éZ which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows
FIHEHNEE  UEAKEREAR (including interest payments computed using contractual
FBEEBBRIB T BHFE : rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the reporting

date) and the earliest date the Group and the Company
can be required to pay:

2013 2012
Fo5F Fo57
BHANE ETFR BHRTTE FhER
FEikE  E-EA (BF BEineE  FER (8%
Total  HEEX  BERE) Total  REEX  EEWE)
SREE  contractual  Withinone In the second EEE  contactial  Withinone I the second
Carrying  undiscounted yearor  tofifthyear Camying  undiscounted yearor  tofifth year
amount  cashflow ondemand  inclusive amount cashflow — ondemand inclusive
AeTIn BT BEFn BETR BeTT  BETr  BEFT BEFn
HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
158 The Group
&E Assets
BRREE Reinsurance assets 5175 5175 3078 2097 6,189 6189 3666 2523
- Liabilities
RBAH Insurance contracts 61,803 61,803 39907 21,89 58,020 58020 43466 14554
REENH Insurance payable 4,709 4709 4709 - 6,061 6061 6061 -
EtEMETRENEB  Other creditors and accruals U858 24858 24858 - 94408 94408 94408 -
BIER Bank borrowings 200,000 200,288 200,288 - 50,000 50158 50158 -
—TEREEAR Loan and advance from a
83 substantial shareholder - - - - 111,942 117353 117353 -
291,370 291,658 269,762 21,89 320431 326,000 311446 14554
27 The Company
& Liabilities
HWEHEE AREER  Other creditors and accruals 18,241 18241 18241 - 15443 15443 1543 -
GGt Bank borrowings 200,000 200,288 200,288 - 50,000 30158 50158 =
218241 218529 218529 - 65,443 65,601 65601 -
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(e) Financial risk management of associated
financial institution

The financial risks exposure and management objectives
and policies of the Group's associated financial institutions,
XIB Group, are summarised as below:

(i) Overview

The activities of XIB Group expose it to a variety of financial
risks including credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk
(including foreign exchange risk, price risk and interest
rate risk). XIB Group continuously identifies, evaluates
and monitors these risks. XIB Group's aim is to achieve an
appropriate balance between risk and return and minimise
potential adverse effects on its financial performance.

The Board of Directors of XIB Group (“XIB Board”)
provides strategy for overall risk management. Its senior
management establishes related risk management policies
and procedures under the strategy approved by the XIB
Board, including written policies covering specific areas,
such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk,
use of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative
financial instruments. Those risk management policies
and procedures are implemented by various departments
after XIB Board’s approval. In addition, its internal audit
department is responsible for the independent review of
risk management and control environment.

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk is one of the main risks that XIB Group faces
in its operations which arises primarily from loans and
advances, investment portfolios, trade finance, guarantees
and other payment acceptance.

The credit approval policies and procedures of XIB Group
are standardised. Credit rating, credit measurement,
economic capital, various post-lending management,
indicator control, collective assessment, risk warning and
risk reporting are measures for managing credit risks.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(e) Financial risk management of associated
financial institution (Continued)

(iii)  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that XIB Group is to ensure the
availability of adequate funding to meet its needs to fund
deposit withdrawals and other liabilities as they fall due,
as well as being able to meet its obligations to fund loan
originations and commitments and to take advantage of
new investment opportunities.

XIB Group has set up a series of liquidity indices to assess
and monitor its liquidity risk and reviewed such indices on
a timely basis.

(iv) Market risk

XIB Group's market risk arises from open positions in the
trading book and banking book in interest rate, foreign
exchange rate, equities and commodities. The trading
book consists of financial instruments and commodities
that are free of any restrictive covenants on their
tradability and held with trading intent, and in order to
or for the purpose of hedging market risk of the trading
book. The banking book consists of financial instruments
not included in the trading book (including those financial
instruments purchased with surplus funds and managed in
the investment book).

XIB Group has established a structural system of limit
controls including regulatory limits, position limits and
risk limits to identify, monitor and control market risk. XIB
Group performs sensitivity analysis on a regular basis to
assess the interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk of its
trading book and banking book.

1)
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(e) Financial risk management of associated
financial institution (Continued)

(iv)  Market risk (Continued)
—  Foreign exchange risk

XIB Group conducts the majority of its business in
Renminbi, with other transactions denominated in
foreign currencies, therefore XIB Group is exposed to the
fluctuations in the prevailing foreign exchange rates on its
financial position and cash flows. XIB Group manages its
exposures to foreign exchange risk through management
of its net foreign currency position.

—  Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that XIB Group's assets, revenue
and economic value would suffer losses or have the risk of
contingent losses due to fluctuations of interest rates and
changes of interest rates structure. The re-pricing risk, the
primary and most common interest rate risk, arises from
the difference between maturity terms (for fixed interest
rates) or between the re-pricing terms (for floating interest
rates) of XIB Group'’s assets, liabilities and off balance sheet
commitments. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that
the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

XIB Group mainly manages its exposures to the interest
rate risk arising from fluctuations in the prevailing market
interest rates on re-pricing, fair value and cash flows. XIB
Group's business in Mainland China operates under the
interest rate scheme regulated by the People’s Bank of
China. XIB Group controls its interest rate risk primarily
through controlling the distribution of the maturity date or
re-pricing date of loans and deposits and the asset-liability

re-pricing gap.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(e) Financial risk management of associated
financial institution (Continued)

(v)  Capital management

XIB Group’s objectives when managing capital are:
(i) to comply with the capital requirements set by the
regulators of the markets where the entities within XIB
Group operate; (ii) to safeguard the ability to continue as
a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns
for equity holders and benefits for other stakeholders;
and (iii) to maintain a strong capital base to support the
development of its business.

Capital adequacy and regulatory capital are monitored by
XIB Group’s management, employing techniques based on
the guidelines developed by the China Banking Regulatory
Commission (“CBRC"), for supervisory purposes.

4.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for equity holders of
the Company and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as total borrowings and advances divided by
total net assets. For this purpose the Group defines total
borrowings and advances as total bank borrowings and
short-term advances (if any) as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position. Total net assets comprise
all components of equity attributable to equity holders of
the Company as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

1)

131



B0 RIEEEARAT MIN XIN HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢H¢

ARG PSR RE R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R o K% S 75 e o B (4

4.2 EARJE R E M (48)

20136 @ AEBERREEE2012F —
BRI BOBERNE R RER
E2B5% Mo BT HFHABRERE
B AEBAEEAN DR T AA RS
BEANRKRBERE  B7HKkH - 85
FHESRE S HEEENRDER

MR2013F K 2012912 A31H » AEE

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

During 2013, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged
from 2012, was to maintain the gearing ratio within 25%.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to equity
holders of the Company, issue new shares, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

The gearing ratio of the Group at 31 December 2013 and

WERBBELERAT : 2012 were as follows:
2013 2012
BEFT B TT
HKS$’000 HKS'000
BEE Total borrowings and advances 200,000 161,942
HEEFRE Total net assets 3,935,732 3,804,751
EAREBER Gearing ratio 5.1% 43%

EARBEBELEREAFER2013F128
BMMTAMARERRITEREINFRE -
TR FRREEFNEITEFEE 28
TR EERITERE 50008 T (2
31)FTEL »

BEESREEEERTHANERR
E o ARA—RKBRAR - BEHRE -
FBREBURE 2RO R E - #HF
HEAREBEFETVDRBE 20008
T BRFEEBRT - BERERAEHA
EVE DR T AR AR AR B 5k B 1 TR AR (D
TARRNA] o BRAEBERRAREEERF]
MERET  REBEEEE A EHBEE
IRBRHY 58 T LABR Il ©

The increase in the gearing ratio resulted primarily from
the net increase in bank loans outstanding at 31 December
2013 due to the drawdown of new bank loans of HK$200
million and the repayment of bank loan of HK$50 million
during the year (Note 31).

Pursuant to the capital requirements imposed by the
Office of the Commissioner of Insurance in Hong Kong,
a subsidiary of the Company, MXIC, should maintain at
least HK$20 million in its adjusted net assets calculated
according to the requirements set out in the Insurance
Ordinance. In order to fulfill these requirements, MXIC may
adjust the dividend paid to the Company or issue new
shares to the Company. If MXIC cannot maintain the capital
requirements imposed, the Commissioner of Insurance
may place restrictions on the operations of MXIC.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.3 Fair value of financial instruments
(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature,
and are made as of a specific point in time based on the
characteristics of the financial instruments and relevant
market information. The Group measures fair values using
the following hierarchy of methods:

—  Level 1: fair value measured using only unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical
instruments at the measurement date.

— Level 2: fair value measured using inputs other
than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly
(i.e., derived from prices). This category includes
instruments valued using: quoted market prices in
active markets for similar instruments, quoted prices
for identical or similar instruments in markets that
are considered less than active; or other valuation
techniques where all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly observable from market data.

—  Level 3: fair value measured using inputs that are
not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs). This category includes all instruments where
the valuation technique includes inputs not based on
observable data and the unobservable inputs have a
significant effect on the instrument’s valuation. This
category includes instruments that are valued based
on quoted prices for similar instruments where
significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions
are required to reflect differences between the
instruments.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.3 Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value
(Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as held for trading and available-for-sale
equity securities) is based on quoted market prices at the
reporting date. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group and the Company is the current
bid price. These financial instruments are included in Level
1 of the fair value hierarchy.

The fair values of forward foreign exchange contracts held
by the Group are based on the quoted prices provided
by the issuer as at the reporting date. These financial
instruments are included in Level 2 of the fair value
hierarchy.

During the year there was no transfer of financial
instruments between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value
hierarchy. The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.3 Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value
(Continued)

The following table presents the carrying value of financial
instruments held by the Group and the Company at the
reporting date measured at fair value across the three
levels of the fair value hierarchy, with the fair value of each

AENATERESLE financial instrument categorised in its entirety based on
the lowest level of input that is significant to that fair value
measurement:

2013 2012
£-%8 £2E4 g F-%0 £-58 ]
Level 1 Level 2 Total Level1 Level2 Total
BETr BETT BETr YT BETT B8
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
BEMMATE  Recurring fairvalue
it measurement

A%H The Group

BE Assets

TEEESE  Availableforsalefinancial

£E assets 152,522 - 152,522 622,094 - 622,094

BEBBMLT  Listed equity securities

Rigzs held for trading 7474 - 7474 6,485 - 6,485
EHEERZ  Forward foreign exchange

contracts = 615 615 = = =

45999 615 460611 628579 = 628579

] The Company

BE Assets

ARIESE  Availablefor-sale financial

BE assets 452,522 = 452,522 622,094 = 622,094

BIEEEMLT  Listed equity securities

iR % held for rading 27 - 27 24 = 24
452,749 - 452,749 622318 = 622318

1)
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.3 Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Fair value of financial instruments carried at
other than fair value

The carrying value of trade receivables less impairment
losses (if any) and trade payables are assumed to
approximate their fair value. The fair value of financial
liabilities is estimated by discounting the future contractual
cash flows at the current market interest rate that is
available to the Group for similar financial instruments.

Estimates and judgement are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

In the Directors’ opinion, the fair values of financial assets
and financial liabilities of the Group approximate their
carrying values at the reporting date.
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INFORMATION

recognised during the year is as follows:

The amount of each significant category of revenue

2013 2012
BEFTT B F T
HKS'000 HKS'000
B Turnover
FREBRA Gross insurance premiums 50,536 47314
B ERFEWA Interest income from loans to customers 422 —
YIS SHE A Proceeds from sale of properties 8,427 37,067
KEMEHSWA Rental income from investment properties 9,423 8,118
At EeHEE Dividend income from available-for-sale
g BUA financial assets 18,560 4387
87,368 96,886
R RERE Movement in unearned insurance premiums (2,204) 299
BRESERBR Reinsurance premiums ceded and
Bz A JE b R m A reinsurers’ share of movement in
REEF unearned insurance premiums (5,724) (7,364)
Hibug A Other revenues
BB Management fees 120 120
RITE AR EWA Interest income from bank deposits 9,534 3,377
B E F A B A Interest income from loan receivable 7,837 —
FEEER EhRE Dividend income from listed equity
B B A securities held for trading 84 103
Y B 2 4 35 128 B Recovery of bad debts written off 4,765 35
HAth Others 246 143
22,586 3,778
PNt Total revenues 102,026 93,599
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group identifies its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed internally by the chief operating decision-
makers which include the Executive Board Committee and
General Manager that are used to make strategic decisions,
allocate resources and assess performance.

The reports to the chief operating decision-makers are
analysed on the basis of business entities, investments
held and investees. For business entities and investments
held, operating performance evaluation and resources
allocation are based on individual business activities
operated and investments held by the Group. For
investees, operating performance evaluation is based on
individual investee of the Group.

The Group has the following reportable operating
segments:

—  Financial service: this segment includes the Group's
interest in XIB Group which conducts banking
business in Mainland China and Macao, and the
micro credit business in Mainland China.

— Insurance: this segment includes the Group’s general
insurance business in Hong Kong and Macao.

—  Property Development and Investment: this segment
includes the development and sale of residential
properties and leasing of high quality office space in
Mainland China.

—  Strategic Investment: this segment represents the
Group’s investment in A-Share of Huaneng Power
International, Inc. (‘Huaneng”).

—  Others: this segment includes results of operations
not directly identified under other reportable
segments and head office activities. Head office is
also considered to be a segment as discrete financial
information is available for the head office activities.
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION (Continued)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s chief
operating decision-makers monitor the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Revenues derived from customers, products and
services directly identifiable with individual segment
are reported directly under respective segments. All
direct costs incurred by different segments are grouped
under respective segments. Indirect costs and support
functions’ costs related to head office activities that
cannot be reasonably allocated to other segments,
products and services are grouped under head office.
Transactions between segments are priced based on
similar terms offered to or transacted with external parties.
Inter-segment income and expenses are eliminated on
consolidation. The measure used for reporting segment
profit is “profit for the year”, i.e. profit after taxation of the
business entities, net income generated from investments
held and share of results of investees.

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible and current
assets held by the business entities, net book value of
investments held and share of net assets of and loans to
investees. Segment liabilities include insurance liabilities,
creditors and accruals, income tax payable and deferred
tax liabilities attributable to individual segments and
bank borrowings managed directly by the segments
or directly related to those segments. An asset and a
liability are grouped under same segment if the liability
is collateralised by the asset. Dividend payable to equity
holders of the Company is treated as unallocated liabilities
in reporting segment assets and liabilities.
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(a) rERES - BE LAEE) (a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)
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BRSO AR (4]) 5 TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION (Continued)
(a) rERES - BE LAEE) (a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)
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BRI E R () 5 TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) Hil® &R (b) Geographical information
TREINEAONDAEBRBINREP The following table sets out the information about the
B A R () ANEB R E - #eS k& geographical location of (i) the Group's revenues from
H BREDERKRESERTIRBER external customers and (i) the Group's property, plant and
AEEERBEE ] MEHENE equipment, investment properties and investments in joint
Ko BEFTEEIZIRERE K EY= ventures and associates (“specified non-current assets”).
EMEE D o BEFRBEEMTH The geographical location of customers is based on the
BHED - MFE  ERRBRERRED location at which the services were provided or the goods
EREEBERMEMES  REGER delivered. The geographical location of the specified non-
AIREEE N R AL BB S o current assets is based on the physical location of the
assets, in the case of property, plant and equipment and
investment properties and the location of operations, in
the case of investments in joint ventures and associates.
B FEIR 15 &a
Hong Kong Mainland China Macao Consolidated
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
BRTT | BETT | BRFT | BE T | BRTT | BETFT | BEFT | AEFL
HK$'000 HKS000 | HKS'000 HKS'000 | HKS'000 HKS000 | HKS'000 | HKS'000
HZ12831HLLFE  Yearended31December
MREPKA Revenues from external
customers 35,660 34,490 33,312 46,365 18,396 16,031 87,368 96,886
M12831R At 31 December
NS YN The Company and subsidiaries 70,699 65236 | 104,454 90,323 76 791 175229 | 155638
RERERR Investments in joint ventures - — - 64,901 — = - 64901
RABENRT Investments in associates - — | 2,468,663 | 2237071 - — | 2,468,663 | 2237071
EEERBEE Specified non-current assets 70,699 65236 | 2,573,117 | 2,392,295 76 79 | 2,643,892 | 2457610
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oA 5 — AR 6 OTHER GAINS - NET
2013 2012
BT BT T
HKSs’000 HKS000
RATFEEBERYIRL Fair value (losses)/gains on listed equity
EikEES AT E securities measured at fair value
(E518), Wz through profit or loss (985) 792
REEERZEATE Fair value gains on forward foreign
Wz exchange contracts 615 —
REMFESEHATE Fair value gains on revaluation of
Wz investment properties 17,067 13,737
HE—KKMEB AR Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
Wegs (1% 28(a)) (Note 28(a)) 122,967 —
HE—RALRFIEOMEZE  Gain on partial disposal of interest in a
Hydas (FERE 18(c) joint venture (Note 18(c)) — 108,135
—RAEENREREEE Gain on dilution of interest in a joint venture
iR (GERE 18(d)) (Note 18(d)) — 284,928
— KB E AR RS Gain on dilution of interest in an associate
s (FERE 19(b K2 d)) (Note 19(b &d)) 41,186 46,373
HEHEESHEE Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
W as (3272 20(b)) financial assets (Note 20(b)) = 10,682
R Net exchange gains 14,270 480
195,120 465,127

B ERE L RESEE &M 7 NET INSURANCE CLAIMS INCURRED

] AND COMMISSION EXPENSES INCURRED
ON INSURANCE BUSINESS
2013 2012
BT T BT T
HKS’000 HKS'000
IRER TG E R BRE Net insurance claims incurred on

SHEA (a) insurance business (a) 17,866 15,972

REFEBEENRAR Commission expenses incurred on
Z F(b) insurance business (b) 18,252 19,608
36,118 35,580
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(a) PREREP5 A LR Y 5 1 1

NET INSURANCE CLAIMS INCURRED

AND COMMISSION EXPENSES INCURRED
ON INSURANCE BUSINESS (Continued)

(a) Net insurance claims incurred on insurance business

2013
EE BRE B
Gross Reinsurance Net
BEFT EETT EB¥Frn
HKSs’000 HKS’000 HK$’000
REERERBAAE Current year claims and loss
4] adjustment expenses 6,621 (29) 6,592
TFERERBRAE Additional cost/(run-off savings)
EHMEEINK A, for prior years’ claims and
(REEEFER) loss adjustment expenses 10,553 (2,658) 7,895
BRLERERNRE Increase/(decrease) in claims
#hn,7 Crid) incurred but not reported 4,173 (228) 3,945
RomEARE b 2 TEET RS (E Decrease in the expected cost of
PR AR > claims for unexpired risks (566) — (566)
20,781 (2,915) 17,866
2012
e BiRk FRE
Gross Reinsurance Net
BEFoT B TTT  BETT
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000
REBHRERBLAARE Current year claims and loss
ZH adjustment expenses 9,299 17) 9,282
TFERERIBRFAE Additional cost/(run-off savings)
ERMEINKA, for prior years’ claims and
(BEEEEFEER) loss adjustment expenses 7,621 (1,579) 6,042
ERAEREFRNRE Increase in claims incurred
0 but not reported 1,318 385 1,703
Rom ARk < TRET RS (E Decrease in the expected cost of
AR > claims for unexpired risks (1,055) — (1,055)
17,183 (1,211) 15,972
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NET INSURANCE CLAIMS INCURRED

AND COMMISSION EXPENSES INCURRED
ON INSURANCE BUSINESS (Continued)

(b) Commission expenses incurred on insurance business

2013 2012
EBEFT BT T
HK$’000 HKS000
BN RENBEER Gross commissions paid and payable 18,548 20,209
B B R R Less: Commissions received and
REEAFE receivable from reinsurers (296) (601)
HEEBRFE Net commission expenses 18,252 19,608
& 2 1t 8 OPERATING PROFIT
2013 2012
BT JBEF T
HKS$’000 HKS000
&R E T AR Operating profit is stated after crediting
T5I %8 and charging the following:
A Crediting
R G Net exchange gains 14,270 480
KEMFEDWELEWHES - Rentals received and receivable from
HREZEA investment properties less direct
outgoings 7,933 6,912
kR Charging
HE BRI 2 AR Cost of completed properties sold 5,967 27,464
e Depreciation 862 1,116
HEME - #aERF Loss on disposal of property, plant
B8 and equipment 13 18
FEihE 2 EXMAOHEE Operating lease rentals in respect of
land and buildings 180 442
= EREN B & Auditor’s remuneration 2,607 2,445
—EFEE — provision for current year 2,152 2,145
—HFEE LI E — under provision for prior years 155 —
—HEIEET (E — interim attestation work 300 300
ERE (7HE38(d) Management fee (Note 38(d)) 1,880 1,880
RREFIPA (a) Retirement benefit costs (a) 881 870
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8 EEmA (4E) 8  OPERATING PROFIT (Continued)
(@) 7E20004F 11 A 30 BRI KNEEM (@) The Group contributed to a defined contribution

—IB R EH—RETEI([ A E HRE
BIDHR TEREBRZEBRE
BEA2M. RIksHE 2 EEH
AEBZEENHABAE BB
EEESIRE c EE2000F11 A
308 RERAGEHBREE SR
Bl AN FE 2 5 &K FI A L /9 58
MREEFTE((RELTE DAY
BRREHL AEBREEHA
FRFFE2HAEBAREER
AFHzaEn 2 +thH:E -

AEEFARMBESFTE ZHR
HOEaFI KB IREEEARRH
B 21200099 530 HEMA
MEB 2HRBAAEEKRAF
BRZN)SEEFSABRKANE
ARZAURESERBEFEURS
HE B E 2000 BR) - EEFE
EY 15 2 S 53R A1) 25 AT Bl B AR AR 5T
21 B4 R W 2 4t 3k B8 AT LA B VEIRL
DAEBRAREHKEE R AEE
©ETEI 2R ° R 2013 F K& 2012
FNRANBYEARNEARBA
ZIRURBETR

ATFEANBNEEMS - ANKE
NEREEFEAN S ERLES
53 [ 2 008 0 T BT /Y8 B R
Retdl - AEBiZREEHESZH
DAt EREEL ® AR
& 3 ™ B IR B AR A R
FrERERMRKENEL -

scheme (“DC Scheme”) which was available to all
eligible Hong Kong employees prior to 30 November
2000. The assets of the scheme were held separately
from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. Contributions to the scheme by
the Group and employees were calculated at 15% of
the employees’ basic salary until 30 November 2000
when the DC Scheme was replaced by a mandatory
provident fund scheme (“MPF Scheme”) set up under
the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance.

The Group’s monthly contributions (mandatory and
voluntary) to the MPF Scheme for each employee are
calculated at the higher of 10% (or 6% for employees
who joined after 30 September 2000) of the monthly
basic salary and 5% of the monthly total income,
subject to a maximum contributions of HK$4,000.
The Group’s contributions to the DC Scheme
and MPF Scheme can be reduced by the Group’s
voluntary contributions forfeited in relation to those
employees who leave the schemes prior to vesting
fully in the contributions. At 31 December 2013 and
2012, there were no material unutilised forfeited
contributions.

For Mainland China employees, the Group
participates in the employee pension schemes
administered by the respective municipal
government in various locations in Mainland China
where the Group operates. The Group makes
monthly contributions calculated at a percentage
of the monthly payroll costs to these schemes and
the respective municipal government undertakes
to assume the retirement benefit obligations of the
employees of the Group.
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Al B A 9  FINANCE COSTS
2013 2012
JBMEF T BT
HKS’000 HKS'000
IRITERF B Interest on bank loans 1,870 1,228

—FTERREPERN Interest on short term loan and advance

BT BT H from a substantial shareholder 2,808 11,259
4,678 12,487

EARATELN B4 KR 4 B e 10

P <= 2 A1 N

SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ EMOLUMENTS

AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

(a) EFHME (a) Directors’ emoluments
& EE
R H A2 -
REYFIZH
Salaries,
EZHE  housing, other 2013
Directors’ allowances and k]
fees benefits in kind Total
BYFT BEFT BYFT
HKS'000 HKs'000 HKS’000
HITES Executive Directors
SERTE(EE) Mr. Weng Ruo Tong (Chairman) 60 — 60
CWHREEEE) Mr. Peng Jin Guang (Vice Chairman) 60 — 60
REBMESE Mr. Zhu Xue Lun' 26 — 26
FRELLE Mr. Li Jin Hua 100 1,196 1,296
SRR MBI A2 Mr. Zhang Rong Hui? 60 577 637
FHTES Non-executive Director
S AES Mr. Liu Cheng? 34 — 34
BUEHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
REREALE Mr. Ip Kai Ming 250 — 250
LEMmELE Mr. Sze Robert Tsai To 350 — 350
BREKTE Mr. So Hop Shing 250 — 250
1,190 1,773 2,963

1 R2013F6 A7HETES
2 R2013F6 A8 AT AMITES
3 MN2013F6 AsAETAES

1
2
3

Retired as Director on 7 June 2013

Re-designated as Executive Director on 8 June 2013

Appointed as Director on 8 June 2013
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10 SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ EMOLUMENTS
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(Continued)

10 ERMATEN BB G K H A e
Pl 4 2 A A N (48)

(a) FEFMw (FH) (a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

¥k EBE
K E M2
REYF R
Salaries,
EEME  housing, other 2012
Directors’  allowances and kS
fees benefits in kind Total
BEFT BEFT BT
HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000
HITES Executive Directors
SERTE(EE) Mr. Weng Ruo Tong (Chairman) 60 — 60
CWHRE(FEE) Mr. Peng Jin Guang (Vice Chairman)' 32 — 32
TeREE(GER) Mr. Wang Hui Jin (Vice Chairman)? 28 — 28
REMEE Mr. Zhu Xue Lun 60 — 60
FHRELE Mr. Li Jin Hua 100 1,119 1,219
FHTES Non-executive Director
REIESLE Mr. Zhang Rong Hui 60 517 577
BYFHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
EREALE Mr. Ip Kai Ming 250 — 250
LBEmEE Mr. Sze Robert Tsai To 350 — 350
BEKiEE Mr. So Hop Shing 250 — 250
1,190 1,636 2,826

1 R2012%F 6 A18HETARIEFENES
2 R2012%6 A18ABIRIEENES

Appointed as Vice Chairman and Director on 18 June 2012
Resigned as Vice Chairman and Director on 18 June 2012
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BRATEN B4 M A& &G 10 SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ EMOLUMENTS
P4 2 AR A N = (7)) AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(Continued)
(b) T4 fx = Pl 2 AR (b) Five highest paid individuals
Lilisk (@) 2 MW ARETAZE E AN The analysis in note (a) above does not include those
EME R AR AZZa e 2 @5 individuals who are not directors but whose emoluments
AL XNTHFALTZHMEFBENR are among the five highest in the Group. Details of the
N emoluments paid to those individuals are as follows:
2013 2012
JBEETF T BT T
HKS$’000 HKS'000
e - BE N EMERL Salaries, housing and other allowances,

LEWMH == and benefits in kind 4,369 5,038
RIKEFIFTEIHE IR Contributions to retirement benefit scheme 96 96
TE4L Bonus 3,440 5,730

7,905 10,864

<& E Emoluments Band 2013 2012

A& A

Number of Number of

Individuals Individuals

751,000,001 7T - 7% 1,500,0007C HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 2 2

751,500,001 7T - % %2,000,0007T HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 3 1

753,000,001 7T - A %53,500,0007T HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000 — 2
(c) RHEHANE (c) Senior management

X TERREBABZMEFBRT - Details of the emoluments paid to senior management are

as follows:

& EE Emoluments Band 2013 2012

AZ A&

Number of Number of

Individuals Individuals

PBHE1 7T - B %500,0007T HK$1 - HK$500,000 1 —

7B #500,0017T - 75 %1,000,0007T HK$500,001 - HK$1,000,000 — 1

75 %£1,000,0017T - /5% 1,500,0007C HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 5 3

75%1,500,0017T - /& %2,000,0007C HK$ 1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 2 —

751#3,000,0017T - /& %£3,500,0007C HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000 — 2
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11 Brfadisc
EERABRRI B BENT :

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated
income statement represents:

2013 2012
BT BT T
HKS$’000 HKS'000
EHABIE Current tax
BEBFEH Hong Kong profits tax 438 316
3 At 1 b 3B A R Mainland China land appreciation tax 147 139
FR B A D TR SR AT 1S AR Mainland China withholding tax 10,425 26,471
R IE Macao taxation 43 20
11,053 26,946
EFEEEHBRD Under provision in prior years
AR B (A 1 ZE TS FR Mainland China corporate income tax — 3,436
SRR Macao taxation 1 1
1 3,437
EERIE Deferred tax
TR E R ELA KER Relating to the origination and reversal
of temporary differences 7,206 1,679
B8Rz Income tax expense 18,260 32,062

BB NG D RBF A ERT &
K B E16.5%(20124F : 16.5%) 1e & %

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2012: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for

o

B A TS R IR IR AhETIE
SRR i R R R 259% (2012 F : 25%) 51

B o
A

f B A IS E R R T EE AR E
A RETTI TR 30% £ 60% 15 - EB{EXE
AU EEERSIORAI IR Y H (B 1E
THE RN A FBEREEER) o

the year.

Mainland China corporate income tax has been calculated
at the rate of 25% (2012: 25%) on the estimated taxable
profits for the year.

Mainland China land appreciation tax is levied at
progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from sale
of properties less deductible expenditures including
costs of land use rights, development and construction
expenditures.
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1SR (48)

FA PR B A 1 K 37 Y 35 35T SR Bk 2008 4 1
A1BERDNOFMETEIRER K&
B 78 L A% B AR 10% 8545 o B b T8
IRETISHR -

MRFIE R 2 B K AR IR F WE‘HE R
/mﬂ{&/ F?ZfﬁfTTR+EJr

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Mainland China withholding tax is levied at 10% on
dividend income received from investees incorporated in
Mainland China when these investees declared dividend
out of profits earned after 1 January 2008.

Taxation on Macao profits has been calculated on the
estimated taxable profits for the year at the rates of

RER BB BRI A 2 BIR B RS R
ABEBIREMABE 2 ERRBLER

taxation prevailing in Macao.

The taxation on th

e Group's profit before taxation differs

from the theoretical amount that would arise using the

wm taxation rate in Hong Kong as follows:
2013 2012
BT BT T
HKS’000 HKS'000
BR3¢ A A Profit before taxation 574,614 858,802
B E16.5% T & 2 Fi1E Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% 94,811 141,702
Hib BRI RHE 2 Effect of different taxation rates in other
& tax jurisdictions 3,519 2,442
HIATRT 2 WA Income not subject to taxation (88,209) (146,630)
AR HIRR 2 S i Expenses not deductible for taxation
purposes 2,203 1,558
ANHE R N AT R By Increase in unrecognised tax losses and
Z= RN deductible temporary differences 5,904 3,596
EH AT EAAR R 2 1B Utilisation of tax losses previously not
B8 recognised (106) (202)
TFEEEERD Under provision in prior years 1 3,437
Hith Others (10) (12)
18,113 5,891
REERLEERERNE Mainland China withholding tax on the
R N RS AR EY Group's share of the capitalisation
A TEIRFT1S 51 of retained profits by XIB
(G 19(0)) (Note 19 (c)) — 26,032
B b £ b (B Mainland China land appreciation tax 147 139
FiEfix Income tax expense 18,260 32,062
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14

AR F R A A A ik A

ARARERFEAREEA RN EE
BT AR DR B RER K m FEE

15,237 &0 (20124F : BEE 37,878 B T) °

12

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company includes a profit of HK$152.37 million
(2012: HK$378.78 million) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company.

i d5) 13 DIVIDEND
2013 2012
BT BT T
HKS’000 HKS'000
REHABRERRRE Final dividend proposed after the
BT BB 5L reporting date of 5 HK cents
(20124 : BEa(l) (2012: 4 HK cents) per ordinary share 22,971 18,377
REWB BRI EEIR No special dividend proposed after the
FERIAE B (2012 4F - reporting date (2012: 5 HK cents
BRI BB SIL) per ordinary share) — 22,971
22,971 41,348

25 AR FR I E I BN AL E B
BHREAIERE  EBREE2014
F12 A 31 BIEFEIERBGEM AR ©

B I A

FRERNZNZREEZE2013F12
B3R FEARRBERZER AENL
i F 75 ¥ 5563548 (20124 : B
86748 L) K FRNBEHITRHD
ook S 15 £0459,428,656 (2012 4F
459,428,656) %=t & o

AEEAFRGBEFREYEEHTA
BEEHEBE  AHRNEREFEN
FREERNEGRERBNAER -

14

The dividend proposed after the reporting date has
not been recognised as a liability in these consolidated
financial statements, but will be reflected as an
appropriation of retained profits for the year ending 31
December 2014.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2013 of HK$556,354,000
(2012: HK$826,740,000) and the weighted average of
459,428,656 (2012: 459,428,656) ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

The Group has no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue
during the current and prior years and therefore diluted
earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per share
for the years presented.
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15 W3 ~ HEES ikt

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(a) The Group

b RE

HELHR MERR
TP RE FifE BRI
Leasehold BRET Fumiture,
land and Buildings fixtures, office E
land use held for  and computer Motor B
rights own use equipment vehicles Total
BEFT BT BT BT BT
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
R2012%1 418 At 1 January 2012
A Cost 29,504 9,004 8,637 3,328 50,473
ZETERAESE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (12,807) (7,266) (7,223) (2,723) (30,019
BRIE#(E Net book value 16,697 1738 1414 605 20,454
HZ 20125 Year ended
12A31BIEFE 31 December 2012
HREE Opening net book value 16,697 1,738 1414 605 20,454
B% Additions - - 265 - 265
TEERE Charge for the year (324) (290) (300) (202) (1,116)
ENNEARELE Reclassified as held for sale
(i7228(0) (Note 28(a) - - s 2 (136
HE Disposals = — (22) — 22)
HREREFE Closing net book value 16,373 1,448 1,253 371 19,445
72012812 A31A%  At31December 2012 and
201341418 1 January 2013
A Cost 29,504 9,004 8,384 2,000 48892
ZETELAESE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (13,131) (7,556) (7,131) (1,629) (29,447)
BRE#(E Net book value 16,373 1,448 1253 371 19,445
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15 W3k - Heas M sty (48) 15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

(a) ALEMH (%)

(a) The Group (Continued)

B 85
HELHE WEER
TifERE B ENEE
Leasehold BREF Fumniture,
land and Buildings fixtures, office AE
land use heldfor and computer Motor H“m
rights own use equipment vehicles Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HKS$'000 HKS$000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$000
BZ22013% Year ended
12A31HLEE 31 December 2013
HRmEE Opening net book value 16,373 1,448 1,253 371 19,445
Eapas Translation differences - - 1 1) -
1R Additions — - 1,184 914 2,098
KEEHE Charge for the year (322) (83) (291) (159) (855)
TAREREER Fair value gains credited to
EEes D TE leasehold buildings
Wz (o) revaluation reserve (c) 1,127 167 - — 1,294
ENHERRE Reclassified to investment
EL0) properties (¢) (1,271) (294) - — (1,565)
HE Disposals - - (13) - (13)
BREATE Closing net book value 15,907 1,238 2,134 1,125 20,404
®2013%12A31A At 31 December 2013
A Cost 29,313 8,727 9,273 2,914 50,227
ZAMERRESSE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (13,406) (7,489) (7,139) (1,789) (29,823)
REFE Net book value 15,907 1,238 2,134 1,125 20,404




15 W3¢ ~ #dn Kkt (A)

‘A — = — & 1
0!0 —Z— =443 Annual Report 2013 0!0

AR B WP R AT R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)
(b) AL (b) The Company
i - 545 -
HETHR =
TifE A e BRE
Leasehold BREF Fumniture,
land and Buildings fixtures, office AE
land use held for  and computer Motor fok
rights own use equipment vehicles Total
BT BB BB BT BT
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
20121718 At 1 January 2012
%N Cost 4,053 1,186 2,849 2,000 10,088
ZHMERRESE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (1,342) (628) (2,204) (1,537) (5,711)
BREFE Net book value 2711 558 645 463 4377
HE201F Year ended
12ANBLEEE 31 December 2012
HRE#E Opening net book value 271 558 645 463 4377
R Additions - — 16 - 16
TEERE Charge for the year (39) (34) (91) (92) (256)
HeE Disposals — = 2 = (2)
BAEEFE Closing net book value 2672 524 568 371 4135
72012812 A31H%  At31December 2012 and
201341418 1 January 2013
KR Cost 4,053 1,186 2,839 2,000 10,078
ZEERAEER Accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (1,381) (662) (2,271) (1,629) (5,943)
BREFE Net book value 2672 524 568 371 4135
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15 W3¢ ~ #edn ekt ()

(b) AT (48)

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

(b) The Company (Continued)

B 5
HELHR WEER
TifERE B Bk
Leasehold BRET Fumniture,
land and Buildings fixtures, office AE
land use held for and computer Motor H“m
rights own use equipment vehicles Total
BETT BEFT BETT BETT BETFT
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BZE2013%F Year ended
12A31HLEE 31 December 2013
BEmHE Opening net book value 2,672 524 568 371 4,135
R Additions - - 7 - 7
KEEHE Charge for the year (41) (32) (84) (75) (232)
HeE Disposals - = (1) = (11)
MR BREFE Closing net book value 2,631 492 544 296 3,963
R2013F12A31H At 31 December 2013
A Cost 4,053 1,186 2,803 2,000 10,042
ZEERAESE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (1,422) (694) (2,259) (1,704) (6,079)
RERE Net book value 2,631 492 544 296 3,963
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15 W - o Kkt (48)

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

(0 FHRSBERFTFAMRFTEAMA @]
—HEXTERFEVEET OB
RIEEMENH A FEEMGBK
@ A FERSZENREEER
15%1&%@%%\ °©

The amount represents the fair value gain on
revaluation of an owner-occupied residential flat
located in Mainland China immediately before the
reclassification from owner-occupied property to
investment properties during the year. The fair
value gain was recognised in leasehold buildings
revaluation reserve.

(d) MELkLiFERENKRAETF (d) The net book value of leasehold land and land use
BT : rights is analysed as follows:
rEE N
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
BT | EEFT| B¥Fr| EEFT
HKs'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
EEBRFERLD Leases held in Hong Kong
50 F LA E Over 50 years 4,426 4,447 2,139 2,142
10FE504F Between 10 and 50 years 10,958 11,217 — —
FEBEBAINEEFAL Leases held outside Hong Kong
50 F A Over 50 years 31 179 — —
10FE504F Between 10 and 50 years 492 530 492 530
15,907 16,373 2,631 2,672
RNEBE R E - % 4w A& The cost of the leasehold land and land use rights

B K 7R & B 29318 (2012

1

#2950 8 7T) °

of the Group was HK$29.31 million (2012: HK$29.5

million).

T
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16 REYE 16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
REH b NN
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
BETT| BEFT| BETT| E¥FT
HK$’000 HKS'000 |  HK$’000 HK$'000
NEE At fair value
»m1A1H At 1 January 136,193 122,456 89,193 81,456
BYE - HeEE R Reclassified from property,
BREEF LR plant and equipment
(F7ER15(0) (Note 15(c)) 1,565 — — —
NEERE Fair value gains 17,067 13,737 10,917 7,737
M12A318 At 31 December 154,825 136,193 100,110 89,193

AEERARNRRNRE Y E S IREE

The analysis of the Group’s and the Company'’s interests

SR in investment properties at their carrying amount is as
follows:
REE AT
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
BETFT| EETT| EBEFT| EETT
HKs’000 HKS000 HK$’000 HKS000
EEERARED Leases held in Hong Kong
10F Z50F Between 10 and 50 years 53,000 47,000 — —
FERBLAINEETH  Leases held outside Hong Kong
505 A E Over 50 years 1,715 — — —
105 Z50F Between 10 and 50 years 100,110 89,193 100,110 89,193
154,825 136,193 100,110 89,193

— R BARFENRFESEES5300

e —

E0(20124F : B 47008 )M — I8
URBENIEENENFEERZLYBDEE
REEERRTE  URNEESHED

BRARTE °

e —

The title deeds in respect of an investment property in
Hong Kong with a fair value of HK$53 million (2012: HK$47
million) held by a subsidiary are placed in the custody of
the Office of the Commissioner of Insurance in Hong Kong
pursuant to the relevant regulatory requirements.
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16 HEYEHH)

B 3 AT HRT B
(a) NVEZEHE

TRE25R2013F12 A31 BIREE T
HEEAENARERRARD T&ﬁ%%ﬁ’]

NFHE BENRFERA=EDBE
(R R EBE IS WS EAE 135ﬁf

TEHE])HB(EEAI) - ATE
HE DS RIS E S EIT AR AR
BOTHEERSBERERE -

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement of investment properties
(a) Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of investment
properties held by the Group and the Company measured
at 31 December 2013 on a recurring basis, categorised into
the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS
13, Fair Value Measurement (Note 4.3(a)). The level into
which a fair value measurement is classified is determined
with reference to the observability and significance of the
inputs used in the valuation technique.

1)

TEEH PN
Group Company
BT T B F T
HKS$’000 HK$’000

REMHALETE Recurring fair value measurement

FZER Level 3

PEEYENRBEN - BEAH  Commercial and car parks — Mainland China 100,110 100,110
EEZ/E S0 Commercial - Hong Kong 53,000 —
EEME TR Residential - Mainland China 1,715 —
154,825 100,110

K%&ﬁ@ﬂ%ﬁﬁi@qzﬁﬂﬁ%ﬂ’]ﬁﬁ
BREMELERAAFERBNE=
AEtE - FAARANRAFER T%E’J
—FRRE_FHRHEL - INRF
BERBE=-FANEL - XEBHBEK
RARBEEEBN 2 RAKRERR FER
BEERMENEE -

reporting period in which they occur.

All the investment properties carried at fair value held by
the Group and the Company were measured using Level
3 of the fair value hierarchy. During the year there was
no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value
hierarchy, or transfers into or out of Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy. The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy at the end of the
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16 HEWE () 16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

BEY A PERHE ()

(b) ATEHHEE =5

WEYERBLEETHE - F—KF
B EERBEEMER A 8 MK
HEENHEMBR AT - £20134F
NRANENAFEERESMH AEEH
ERSHHRFER2RAETHERE
B BT HRN A R A B A E R R
BHER -

AP BRI EEDERBEMHNAF
BERBBABTMOEET - ZEBWED
ERBMNNEETAERIBAERL
ERMIEARS  BmEMENERNEE
56.5%  mHEAREAEFEHRARE
13070 * BEUMEREEE3S%  miH
Al ABBENARKS70T - AFE
TEEENMERERNEE BB A
& 2EERE -

R EBNEEYMEN R FERAT
BHEORERE Y2 EA LY FRLY
BEVTHREEFENHEER - A5
ZRER [ WO W) 3% B AT LE B 3K L B 0
EEZBIMREEPLRRAEERE)
EHEERITRENFE - FrExPA
NFHEBE - BRRGEERER @ TE
RNEET A BREBIEN S 26.5%

Fair value measurement of investment properties
(Continued)

(b) Information about Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy

The investment properties were revalued based on
their fair values at 31 December 2013 by independent
professional valuers, namely Savills Valuation and
Professional Services Limited and Vigers Appraisal &
Consulting Limited. The Group has discussion with
the independent professional valuers on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is
performed at each interim and annual reporting date.

The fair value of commercial properties and car parks
located in Mainland China was determined by income
capitalisation approach. The significant unobservable
inputs are capitalisation rates and market monthly rent of
which 6.5% and RMB130 per square meter for commercial
properties and 3.5% and RMB870 per unit for car parks
respectively. The fair value measurement is negatively
correlated to the capitalisation rate and positively
correlated to the market monthly rent.

The fair value of commercial properties located in Hong
Kong was determined by market comparison approach by
reference to recent sales price of comparable properties
on a price per square foot basis, adjusted for a premium or
a discount specific to the factors such as the longer period
of tenancy and the larger floor area while compared the
Group's properties to the comparable properties. Larger
discount with result in a lower fair value measurement.
The significant unobservable input for discount applied in
valuation measurement was approximately 26.5%.
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16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement of investment properties
(Continued)

(b) Information about Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy (Continued)

The fair value of residential property located in Mainland
China was determined by market comparison approach by
reference to recent sales price of comparable properties
on a price per square meter basis, adjusted for a premium
or a discount specific to the factors such as the location
and quality of the Group's property while compared
to the comparable properties. The unobservable input
for discount applied in valuation measurement was
immaterial.

E~el —1
=3k Annual Report 2013 0!0

FAZERATERBE=FRNERY The movements during the year in the balance of these
E N Level 3 fair value hierarchy are as follows:
[SEZ/ES
REN
Commercial FEEWE wE
and car parks  Residential Total
BEFT BT T BT T
HKs’000 HKSs’000 HK$’000
7R 201341 A1H At 1 January 2013 136,193 — 136,193
B - s RRE Reclassified from property, plant
BSO8R and equipment — 1,565 1,565
N EWRE Fair value gains 16,917 150 17,067
2013412 A31H At 31 December 2013 153,110 1,715 154,825
FARGEBRRD Total unrealised fair value gains
[ B b Yz — 558 | for the year recognised in
Wﬁﬁ VAREI “Other gains - net” on the
N EW =B face of the consolidated
income statement 16,917 150 17,067
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S0 J& 2 ] 17 SUBSIDIARIES
¥ /NG|
Company
2013 2012
BB TF T B F T
HKS$’000 HKS'000
JE LR - A Unlisted shares, at cost 498,085 118,605
BEXRTHBAR AR Loans to subsidiaries, interest bearing 19,700 279,700
BERTHEBERT &8 Loans to subsidiaries, interest free 128,324 68,324
WEARIRE BB Amounts due from subsidiaries, interest free 16,551 204,256
164,575 552,280
662,660 670,885
B R EE R Less: Impairment losses (74,786) (117,552)
587,874 553,333

RTHBRRMER R E R KRG EE A
NBARARE+ B R AER - 4T
BARNERERRBETRESHEM
BEHEQNE  RETKEERN X
MEE  BARITRFXFEMEZEHA
FHRZ10ENEENXAE) -

LATFHERBEN20134F12 A31 B
AREBWEEL BEIABAEATE
R B AR - BR BB - FIEEZ
M0 B @A -

The loans to and amounts due from subsidiaries are
unsecured and are not repayable within the next twelve
months. The interest bearing loans to subsidiaries are
charged at a spread over Hong Kong Dollar prime rate
(2012: at a spread over Hong Kong Dollar prime rate, at a
spread over Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate or at fixed
rates of 10% per annum).

The following list contains the particulars of those
subsidiaries at 31 December 2013 which principally
affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The
class of shares held is ordinary shares unless otherwise
stated.
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ot J8 2 ) (% 17 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
3119 ERTR AKE
Benk BRREHE oz
Place of Particulars  Group's FTEEE
incorporation of issued and equity Principal
INCEA Name of company and operations paid up capital interest activities
EERE Directly held
ZEIERBRAR Dorfine Development Limited 5 RERES 1T 100% MEERE
Hong Kong 2 shares Property
of HK$1 each investment
RREERE Fujian Minxin Investments hEARLAM AMER 100% RERR
ARAF0L Co, Ltd. 02 BEIET
B 630087
The People’s Registered capital Investment
Republic of China of HK$300 million holding
Paid-in capital
of HK$63 million
BiE(RE)&E Min Xin (China) Investment KBRS 1RER1ET 100% REER
BRAHE Limited
British 1 share of US$1 Investment
Virgin Islands holding
BERRERATF Min Xin Insurance Company BA 5,500 &% 100% IR
Limited BRAE% T —RIRIR R
Hong Kong 55 million shares Writing of general
of HK$1 each insurance business
CHACTREEE Sanming Sanyuan District Minxin REARLNE ZfER 100% NEER
BERERAR Micro Credit Company Limited® ARE3IRT %
The People’s Registered capital Micro credit
Republic of China ~ of RMB300 million business
RBBRAA Take Chance Company Limited B REBRES 1T 100% MERE
Hong Kong 2 shares Property
of HKS1 each investment
EBEERAR Thousand Limited 5 1REREE 1T 100% REER
Hong Kong 1share Investment
of HK$1 each holding
hEERARAT Welljet Development Limited BE  REBRAE%IT 100% MERE
Hong Kong 2 shares Property
of HKS1 each investment
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17 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

K EBTR A&H
ik BRRAFHE FbER
Place of Particulars  Group's TEEK
incorporation of issued and equity Principal
ATEHE Name of company and operations paid up capital  interest activities
BERE Indirectly held
HEHEBRAT Min Xin Properties Limited BB 500 B 100% REER
BRAE® 1T
Hong Kong 5 million shares Investment
of HK$1 each holding

(1) WHBRARMYERERLIEHRE K
KXEBEEFTENEEFTEZ - BIGIH AR
ZEEFEREEBRDHNGAREER
4R HEEE 7 0.02% 12 0.08% ©

2 RPBRIAMKILIREEZIIEEE L

(1) The financial statements of this subsidiary are not audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers. The net assets and turnover
attributable to this subsidiary represent approximately
0.02% and 0.08% respectively of the Group's consolidated
totals.

(2)  Wholly foreign-owned enterprises incorporated and

£ operated in Mainland China
/N 18 JOINT VENTURES
K& ¥ NN
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
BT | B¥For| EB¥TFT| BEFT
HKs'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
JEETARD - Unlisted investments,
AR at cost — — — 205,800
EXTF—K Loan to a joint venture (b)
AENT] (b) 16,334 16,334 — —
R EEFE Share of net assets 56,865 | 2,296,005 — —
73,199 2,312,339 — 205,800
HE LD HEZ (o) Partial disposal of interest (c) — (305,774) — (28,000)
HHERERS (d) Dilution of interest (d) — 206,243 — —
EFOBE A Reclassified to associates
~AEl(dXe) (d&e) (73,199)] (2,147,907) — (177,800)
15 & 4813 (a) Total investments (a) — 64,901 — —
JEETARD - Unlisted investments,
B at cost — —
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BN (48) 18 JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
@ AEBREEQFAIZERENTN (@) The Group’s investments in joint ventures are
™ analysed below:
XIB Group Others Total
BT BT BT
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$000
7201241818 At 1 January 2012 1,895,333 68324 1,963,657
PE N ERE Translation difference 21,556 (201) 21,355
JE(GBR T 18 )3 A Share of profit after taxation
BR 75 AL A Profit before taxation 511,551 3,855 515,406
Fris#i sz i Income tax expense (123,627) (1,204) (124,831)
wRESHHES Decrease in investment
Ve revaluation reserve (57,375) (5,873) (63,248)
HE DML (o) Partial disposal of interest (c) (305,774) — (305,774)
g (d) Dilution of interest (d) 206,243 — 206,243
EFOEAEZAB](d)  Reclassified to associates (d) (2,147,907) — (2,147,907)
2012612 A31H At 31 December 2012 and
K2013F1 818 1 January 2013 — 64,901 64,901
PE N =XE Translation difference — 461 461
FEAE BR B 1% 3 A Share of profit after taxation
BR A5 A& A Profit before taxation — 5,875 5,875
FTfSHi s i Income tax expense — (319) (319)
HESEHHEHRED Increase in investment
30 revaluation reserve — 2,281 2,281
EFOIEAEIS ATl (e)  Reclassified to associates (e) — (73,199) (73,199)
M2013%F12831H At 31 December 2013 = = =

b) LERRASEHZEELEL (b) The loan represented the Group's investments in
K& WHAEIKR RENE that joint venture and was unsecured, interest free
PR EETE - and had no fixed repayment terms.
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18 H&~nl (#) 18 JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

ARARE—FILE=HR201 (c) The transaction contemplated under the sale and

~—

(c

FeRAFVUEEHELEER%
AL BIHETHRSER
2012F 11 AFERK » LRFAREE
BswR AR EENINERE
FECREEEHRESHBE
3,564 BT + ANEEN 2012 F 8%
B—RMERREHERZHEE
10,8148 T (T E6) - AEBRK
15 B 85 5% PR AN 7 25 FE A 89 V5 °E /A
e TREBESREAFHES
& H LB 16,700 8 T B B @
REBEF -

R2012%12 831 H » XEES F
7 EL fth 8 UK BR 5K K% FE S AN BB R IR
BRAGTAEKE FHRERIELD
41,723 B T R AH R TR IR
FTiS R B 481 3,6328 7T ©

RER - BEFERARAZHH
BIETEIRFT B R FKIE ° 722013
5 AEBHEANMA RS #IE
&% ARRARBEWERHERE
AAREE30,625 Bt (ZENEE
38,5388 7T) °

purchase agreement to dispose of 5% equity interest
in XIB to an independent third party entered into
by the Company in August 2011 was completed
in November 2012. The Group recorded a one-
off after-tax gain on disposal of approximately
HK$108.14 million (Note 6) in 2012, taking into
account the release of exchange translation reserve
and investment revaluation reserve attributable
to the 5% equity interest in XIB of approximately
HK$35.64 million, and transferred directly to retained
profits in total of approximately HK$167 million from
statutory reserve, general reserve and capital reserve
attributable to the 5% equity interest in XIB.

At 31 December 2012, the consideration receivable
from the purchaser of approximately HK$417.23
million and related withholding tax payable of
approximately HK$36.32 million were recognised
in other debtors and current income tax payable
respectively.

During the year, the withholding tax payable was
fully settled by the purchaser on behalf of the
Company. The Company had received the after-
tax consideration of RMB306.25 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$385.38 million) when the
approvals from the relevant governing authorities in
Mainland China were obtained in May 2013.
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)

EHRER202F1MARE=ZH
BITHBROANERERA(E —
HRR R ) - BEARRRIFTH
ERRRER3.75% R B BEL
20.71% ° FH It - AEBE R 20124
11 A 8515 858 Yo 25 40 78 %5 28,493
Br(iEe) » WRIBGERMNK
S E 4920.71% FB(HEEE
FEe TERESRENREE
A K4 B 36,8738 T H B
BRI o

B —HZEERKRE  AAFE
BV B 5T 1 H P % [E 2R 49 20.71% %
HRERESSREEL L RARN
NAIBREERAY [ 24 -
BNHERBERTE N A
It 72012F11 A » KRARIHE
FHESEAERREFTSEA
BE NG WIRBEBYERE
BRI ERSEEAR ©

RER HEEEREERAA
((HEEBDHNELEBHER
ZERBRRNBRR T - LEH
EEEAE LN 3SRt ]
) [ 3R 16 o 1R SR A B A R = 2 1B
N ARAKBENEEESES
EAREN AURFAGEIE
EENREBRERREN N
RBERT]

18 JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

(d)

XIB has issued new shares to third parties to enlarge
its share capital (“First Share Issue”) in November
2012, which resulted in the dilution of the Company’s
shareholding in XIB from 31.75% to approximately
20.71%. Accordingly, the Group recorded a gain on
dilution of approximately HK$284.93 million (Note 6).
The Group also transferred directly to retained profits
in total of approximately HK$368.73 million from
statutory reserve, general reserve and capital reserve
attributable to the dilution of the shareholding in XIB
to approximately 20.71% in November 2012.

The Company has evaluated the applicable
accounting treatment in respect of its approximately
20.71% shareholding in XIB immediately after the
First Share Issue and considered that the Company
has ceased to have joint control over XIB but still
has significant influence over XIB. Accordingly, the
Company’s interest in XIB was reclassified from
joint venture to associate in November 2012 and
accounted for using equity method in accordance
with the HKFRSs.

During the year, the joint venture partners of
Min Faith Investments Limited (“Min Faith”) have
reviewed and re-negotiated the terms of the
shareholders’ agreement signed several years
ago. According to the terms of the newly signed
shareholders’ agreement and other facts and
circumstances, the investment in Min Faith was
reclassified from joint venture to associate during
the year as the Group can still exercise significant
influence over Min Faith.

e
1)
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19 B\

19 ASSOCIATES

rEE VNN
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
BEFT BT BEFT BETT
HKS'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS 000
LR - BHRA Unlisted investments, at cost — — 188,546 10,746
EIHEEFE Share of net assets 2,395,464 89,164 — =
BRERAENIE Reclassified from joint venture
(7F&18) (Note 18) 73,199 2,147,907 - 177,800
HERE @) Total investments (a) 2,468,663 2,237,071 188,546 188,546
EEMRG - BRAK Unlisted investments, at cost 188,546 188,546 188,546 188,546

@ AEBRBEATZEEDHTN (@ The Group's investments in associates are analysed
N below:
EREE Hity ok
XIB Group Others Total
BEFT BEFT BEFT
HKS000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
#2021 718 At1 January 2012 - 13,879 13,879
BENRENNE Reclassified from joint venture
(;F&18) (Note 18) 2,147,907 — 2,147,907
R Translation difference (2,313) 110 (2,203)
FElLBR B2 R T Share of profit after taxation
BREG AR A Profit before taxation 43,699 255 43,954
BB M Income tax expense (5,776) (99) (5,875)
RESHEHEES Increase in investment revaluation
20 reserve 7,301 = 7,301
HEHER (b) Dilution of interest (b) 32,108 — 32,108
R2012F12A318K At 31 December 2012 and
2013F1 A1 H 1 January 2013 2,222,926 14,145 2,237,071
fE H AR Translation difference 65,387 871 66,258
FE(GRRB R &R Share of profit after taxation
FRAEAT & A Profit before taxation 462,179 7,244 469,423
e Income tax expense (102,141) (357) (102,498)
EERRE Dividend declared (85,689) (10,176) (95,865)
RESHHEES Decrease in investment revaluation
D reserve (200,602) (4,491) (205,093)
Bigs () Dilution of interest (d) 26,168 - 26,168
BEERAENIE Reclassified from joint venture
(s%18) (Note 18) - 73,199 73,199
R2013F12A31H At 31 December 2013 2,388,228 80,435 2,468,663
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o] (48)

EEER2012F 12 AZKRAE=
FEITHBROBERERAN(SE
“HAEER ) 0 LABRAR R AIFT
FFERAIRAE R 4920.71% 88
E#18.7739% © F It 0 KEER
2012F 12 AR S EEBE N R BT
46378 LT Ee6)  WRIKEE
IR A AR HE o B £ 40 18.7739% &
HREERES  TRFEES R
BARGEESE RN BE6428 T
BHEBRRBEH -

AAREERTERE - BHIEE R
f1% - EENRREEEIFERLY
18.7739% (R HEME A ST BEIE S
o RBARRRBEBEHERN
MBREERRETFEEATE
TEeen - Bt - ARERABE
IRBEEWSEARNRRINBE
AR MEMBERMERIGE
BIZRBRB BV ERE LR A
SHEAARE o

EIRER2012F 12 AR AREE
RABEAERMHDER AR - BRI
FREAMKHRE  EREEES
20124 11 A 30 HRB &AL A
R#1267 8T (ZELBE1577
BJT) &AL WHKR2012F 12 A
BZBEARZEARER - &
EEBEGEERNEN RSB G
R 476 832,676 8 L0 A &5 &
BEEHERNELAFEEEA - A
B 3t B R 200851 A1H &
BEMERNMEREBEF - NAF]
7 FE < ZN B 7 I8 BR (R B 3R 12 10%
SRR TEIRFTS R4 AR 2,093
B (EEXNEK26038TT) ° 1
2013412 A31H » ZFEREH
TAREE - BEAE 2,681 E7T
WIERAMEBHE T ABM AR
HERA ©

19 ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(b)

XIB has completed the issuance of new shares to third
parties to further enlarge its share capital (“Second
Share Issue”) in December 2012, which resulted
in the dilution of the Company’s shareholding in
XIB from approximately 20.71% to approximately
18.7739%. Accordingly, the Group recorded a gain on
dilution of approximately HK$46.37 million (Note 6).
The Group also transferred directly to retained profits
in total of approximately HK$96.42 million from
statutory reserve, general reserve and capital reserve
attributable to the dilution of the shareholding in XIB
to approximately 18.7739% in December 2012.

The Company has evaluated the applicable
accounting treatment in respect of its approximately
18.7739% shareholding in XIB immediately after
the completion of the Second Share Issue and
considered that the Company will continue to
have the ability to exercise significant influence
over the financial and operating policy decisions of
XIB. Accordingly, the Company considers that XIB
will continue to be classified as an associate of the
Company and the Company'’s interest in XIB will
continue to be accounted for using equity method in
accordance with the HKFRSs.

XIB had changed from a limited liability company
to a joint-stock limited company in December 2012.
Pursuant to the requirement of Mainland China, XIB
had capitalised its retained profits at 30 November
2012 of approximately RMB1,267 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$1,577 million) and transferred
such amount to capital reserve in December 2012.
The Group’s share of the capitalisation of retained
profits by XIB of approximately HK$326.76 million
was credited to capital reserve in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. At the same time,
a withholding tax calculated based on 10% of the
capitalised profits generated by XIB after 1 January
2008 of approximately RMB20.93 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$26.03 million) was recognised
by the Company in current income tax payable. The
withholding tax has not been settled at 31 December
2013 and an amount of approximately HK$26.81
million was included in current income tax payable.

e
1)
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19 BN+ (58) 19 ASSOCIATES (Continued)

M2013FE1A318 E#H 2
KRE=ZFETHRODBEKX
ERA(TE=ZBHELEER]) -
AR AR TR E SR A9 AR B 4
18.7739% 1 # 55 = 49 16.9333% ©
Bt NEBRFARSSEEK
WHHEE41198 T(7FE6) » It
TR EAREEE £20134F 1 A 31
HIEWRGEEZEETBHER K
ERGEEHEZE2013F1 83181tk
WAREEZGEEMBERGTE
KABNFTEASEBEN K
R o A& E RS E R RER
38 2 4916.9333% E 15 HY A T fE
He ETBREBESRELRRFEESD
A KA HER 9,166 8 T EHZ B DR
Bim A o

ARABEERTHE LR
% BRI EEMIEERD
16.9333% AR R E A ST EIE S
o REARRRBEEHERN
HBEREBEIARBETEEATE
TR - Bt ARERBE
RS EN DI BA R R R &
AR MEMPFEROERIGE
BIRRE B SRE LR AR
= DN

AREBRARARELEEEKE&HE
RIFERERITERRERIZH € R
g WEFEREEERS MR
THEFRAGGERE38() °

On 31 January 2013, XIB has completed the issuance
of new shares to third parties to further enlarge its
share capital (“Third Share Issue”), which resulted in
the dilution of the Company’s shareholding in XIB
from approximately 18.7739% to approximately
16.9333%. Accordingly, the Group has recorded a
gain on dilution of approximately HK$41.19 million
(Note 6) during the year based on the unaudited
consolidated financial information of the Group
for the period ended 31 January 2013 and the
unaudited consolidated financial information of XIB
for the period ended 31 January 2013 as adjusted to
conform with the Group’s accounting policies. The
Group has also transferred directly to retained profits
in total of approximately HK$91.66 million from
statutory reserve, general reserve and capital reserve
attributable to the dilution of the shareholding in XIB
to approximately 16.9333%.

The Company has evaluated the applicable
accounting treatment in respect of its approximately
16.9333% shareholding in XIB immediately after the
completion of the Third Share Issue and considered
that the Company will continue to have the ability
to exercise significant influence over the financial
and operating policy decisions of XIB. Accordingly,
the Company considers that XIB will continue to
be classified as an associate of the Company and
the Company'’s interest in XIB will continue to be
accounted for using equity method in accordance
with the HKFRSs.

Bank deposits placed by the Group and the Company
with associated financial institutions in the normal
course of business are included in cash and bank
balances (Note 38(a)).
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AT EREHENR2013F12 A31 B
AEBNEEREEREATENEE
NA) e WEERE2EHRIELTRAR
AR S EHAAER ©

19 ASSOCIATES (Continued)

The following list contains the particulars of those
associates at 31 December 2013 which principally affected
the results or assets of the Group. All of these entities are
unlisted corporates and are accounted for using equity

method.
R ERTR ZKEH
REwH BRERAFE BWER
Place of Particulars  Group's TEEK
incorporation ofissuedand effective Principal
BENTAE Name of associates and operations paid up capital interest activities
EERE Directly held
EFIRFRRIT - Xiamen International Bank, hEEARHLA 20043BER  169333%  HITRIZREER
REMBAF and its subsidiaries BRARBIT
The People’s  2,004.3 million shares Banking and
Republic of China of RMB1 each investment holding
RPIBIRRTT Luso International B 1,280,000f%  16.9333% |7
Banking Limited FRRF 1,000 7T
Macao 1,280,000 shares Banking
of MOP1,000 each
EFERRE Xiamen International BB 18K 169333% REER
BRAT] Investment Limited SRE® 1T
Hong Kong 10,000 shares Investment
of HK$1 each holding
RERAERFERR Fujian Hua Yuan City FE AR AAE AMER 25% EIK RALR
B ERDRO Construction Environment AR 42678 TT 212 iR 7%
Protection Co., Ltd. "
The People’s Registered capital Sewage and
Republic of China  of RMB42.67 million waste treatment
services
RS Indirectly held
BEEERE Min Faith Investments Bk 100 % 40% REZRRK
BRARO Limited AT
Hong Kong 100 shares Investment
of HK$1 each holding

() WEBERFNGEAMEHRRILIES
REBIGERT R EEMER © BIS
It B R B) 2 BB A S BR B A
M BIAMEREBIRE AT 2 1.6% K
2.2% °

(1) The consolidated financial statements of these associates
are not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers. The aggregate
net assets and profit before taxation attributable to
these associates represent approximately 1.6% and 2.2%
respectively of the Group’s consolidated totals.
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19 ASSOCIATES (Continued)

financial statements, are disclosed below.

Summarised financial information of the material associate,
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, and
reconciled to the carrying amounts in the consolidated

EREE
XIB Group
2013 2012
BT B F T
HK$’000 HKS000
B NT T 5B IEARE Gross amount of the associate’s
BiE Assets 334,572,037 257,378,549
BE Liabilities (320,468,303)! (245,538,037)
e Equity 14,103,734 11,840,512
WA Revenue 16,097,683 9,662,685
5B A T s ) Profit from continuing operations 2,106,523 1,238,692
H b 2 e Other comprehensive income (1,228,202) (121,592)
ZEK SRR Total comprehensive income 878,321 1,117,100
R = N RIAR B Dividend receivable from the associate 85,689 —
HEREEAEER Reconciled to the Group’s interest
B N\ T RE R in the associate
B AR B EFHEERE Gross amount of net assets of the associate 14,103,734 11,840,512
REENERER Group's effective interest 16.9333% 18.7739%
A BHRERMREE Carring amount in the consolidated
financial statements 2,388,228 2,222,926
I FE M Bl EE K B Bk 8 2 5] B BEE 48 58 KL Aggregate information of associates that are not
BT - individually material is disclosed below.
2013 2012
BEFT B F T
HK$’000 HKS000
RERE B3k R NI IEMEBI  Aggregate carrying amount of individually
BRI E A RNRAEE immaterial assocates in the consolidated
FEEE] financial statements 80,435 14,145
AEBEEGZER 2 QA Aggregate amounts of the Group's share of
T3 & IB4%E those associates’
FEICE TG =T Profit from continuing operations 6,887 156
B 2wk Other comprehensive income (4,053) —
2EW =LA Total comprehensive income 2,834 156
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20 FIHEH R E 20 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS
rEH KA E]
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
BT | EEFT| EB¥Fr| EEFT
HK$'000 HKS000 HKS$’000 HKS000
N EBFESZ ST Equity securities listed on the
LETHREES Shanghai Stock Exchange,
BRAFE at fair value
®m1A18 At 1 January 622,094 477,114 622,094 477,114
RIEEEHFEES  Fair value (loss)/gain
EL /N K| recognised in investment
(B518), M revaluation reserve (169,572) 161,454 |  (169,572) 161,454
15 (b) Disposal (b) — (16,474) — (16,474)
Mm12H831H At 31 December 452,522 622,094 452,522 622,094
201312 A318 » XEEHE 3 The Group held the following available-for-sale equity
A EREES securities as at 31 December 2013:
T {3t 2 TEXR ARENENEZR
Place of Principal Group's
ATFEHE Company name incorporation activities effective interest
ZERERE Nk Huaneng Power International, Inc. hEAREA BERHEEE S 0.5%
BRAR( ) ("Huaneng”) (476,995 B ARY)
The People’s  Generation and sale (approximately

Republic of China of electric power  69.95 million A-Share)

FE AR IE R RLS B 2012 F (@) The tax bureau in Beijing, Mainland China had issued

(a)

HEBRBAAARIEEERAKRNE certificate of tax exemption for the gain from the

Yok ) S B ER o R A
QA E 5 M 28 PO TR
WEREBEREESNS B R
AT ESBIRBBIRER -

disposal of A-Share of Huaneng by the Company
in 2012. Accordingly, the Group has not provided
any tax provision against the fair value movements
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in the investment
revaluation reserve.
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20 AIEHEEREE (F) 20 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS (Continued)

(b) F2012F + ARBR EBBHFR (b) In 2012, the Company sold approximately 2.05
SETHEX 205 BRER AR - € million A-Share of Huaneng on the Shanghai Stock
BFEHNARK14298 T (FE Exchange for a net consideration of approximately
WAEE1728TT) - KEFAEE RMB14.29 million (equivalent to approximately
ZECLHERMDEML ZRIREE HK$17.42 million) and the Group recorded an
EMFEEENERNRFATE after-tax gain on disposal of approximately
2ER AEEHENHELEEN HK$10.68 million, taking into account the release
A B 1,068 BT © of accumulated fair value changes attributable to

the shares disposed of previously recognised in
investment revaluation reserve.
21 RIEHUS A 21 DEFERRED ACQUISITION COSTS

rEH

Group
2013 2012
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS'000

W1 A1H At 1 January 10,811 12,637

FRIBM Increase during the year 9,661 9,714

FREE Release during the year (10,489) (11,540)

M12A31H8 At 31 December 9,983 10,811

22 PREE YK 22 INSURANCE RECEIVABLE

rEH

Group
2013 2012
BT T BT
HKS$’000 HKS000
RIB - EFLERFEN ARK Due from agents, brokers and intermediates 9,103 10,261
B REEE Less: Impairment losses (23) (28)
9,080 10,233
BHFEB AR Due from contract holders 1 40
BRER AR Due from reinsurers 1,281 2
10,372 10,275
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22 PRER B ( 22 INSURANCE RECEIVABLE (Continued)
REB WA 2 EEHIR —AZH 90 The credit period for the majority of insurance receivable
RXE120KTE 1% B KR EEIG normally ranges from 90 to 120 days. The credit terms
FEERRRERE=ELEER)H of insurance receivable, including whether guarantees
=BRE f@/\ﬁﬁim ® from third parties are required, are determined by senior
management.
201312 A31 8« REBEKKAER At 31 December 2013, the ageing analysis of insurance
RO GREZEAENT - receivable by invoice date was as follows:
rEH
Group
2013 2012
BT B F T
HKSs’000 HKS000
30HA Within 30 days 5,480 3,186
31260H 31-60 days 2,276 3,233
61290H 61-90 days 1,499 1,911
iBim 90 H Over 90 days 1,117 1,945
10,372 10,275
2013F12A318 ' EBHERRE At 31 December 2013, the ageing analysis of the past due
AR FE WA BRI D AT ZA TS - but not impaired insurance receivable was as follows:
rEEH
Group
2013 2012
BT T BT T
HKS’000 HKS'000
90BN Within 90 days 3,181 2,726
iBiE o0 H Over 90 days 4 69
3,185 2,795
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23

24

PR B & 23 REINSURANCE ASSETS
REH
Group
2013 2012
BT T BT T
HKS’000 HKS'000
BRBAEERREDT Reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities
(7£129) (Note 29) 5,175 6,189

BREARNAEERSREOE N
B B (8 B RO SRR I R I B AR R B EE O
o AT AR B B WK (RERE 22)

The amounts due from reinsurers in respect of claims
already paid by the Group on the contracts that are
reinsured are not recognised in the reinsurance assets.

A o They are included in insurance receivable (Note 22).
5 R R R 24 LOANS TO CUSTOMERS AND LOAN
RECEIVABLE
REME b N
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
BEFIT| BT BEFT| FEFrT
HKS’000 HKS'000 HKSs’000 HKS'000
NEEE R ER Micro credit business
—ERNEER - guaranteed micro loans 39,711 — — —
— | NEER - secured micro loans 2,049 — — —
EEEX Loans to customers 41,760 — — —
ERURERE Loans impairment allowances
— B RIFE & - individually assessed — — — —
— & - collectively assessed (835) — — —
40,925 = —_ —
FEU— R Loan receivable from an
NAEIER unrelated company 118,030 — 118,030 —
158,955 — 118,030 =
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Kb B B2 ()

LA BEREFERREREFTARAAR
EHE - EREROF SIRE T F 5=
18% =T E - &K E A8 AR E =
FEME8w%FH -

2o13$12ﬂ31 B EATEFPH/N
%E%fk  AEBRBEERRAEYD
/\Eﬁ%276%ﬁ(%1§%’9%%354%ﬁ> °

REBH ﬁﬁl%ﬁﬁ WisEE I H
EAZHEER $EIEF A%
ﬁ*ﬁ@%ﬁ%ﬂuﬁﬁ% T AERE
FREFAERLBRBEEREE - FEEP
E,\E%$F%ﬁME%ﬁ (0 Bt
EEEREERN)URETPEEME
MEERE - REEEHERNTEFHN
SETEEAHE o 7 2013F12 A 31
B YEENEFEERHEE A HIRRE
(8

FARFERREREZESHWT

24 LOANS TO CUSTOMERS AND LOAN

RECEIVABLE (Continued)

All the above loans to customers and loan receivable
are denominated in Renminbi. The loans to customers
bore a fixed interest rate of 18% per annum and the loan
receivable bore a fixed interest rate of 8% per annum.

At 31 December 2013, the Group held collaterals with
value of approximately RMB2.76 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$3.54 million) in total over the micro
loans granted to customers.

The Group has a credit policy in place and the exposures
to credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis. The
Group has reviewed the outstanding loans to customers
at the reporting date to assess whether there is objective
evidence that an impairment allowance on loans has been
incurred. The evaluation is focused on the information
specific to the customers (such as the financial background
and ability to repay) as well as the economic environment
in which the customers operate and management’s
judgement on the creditworthiness of individual customer.
No loan to customer is considered to be individually
impaired at 31 December 2013.

The movement of impairment allowances on loans to
customers during the year was as follows:

o
T

rEH
Group
HETE
Collective assetssment

2013 2012
BT T BT T
HKSs’000 HKS'000
»1A1H At 1 January — —
EEFEBER&xR Charged to current year's income statement 835 —
m12A31H At 31 December 835 —
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24 FPEEHR WS (M) 24 LOANS TO CUSTOMERS AND LOAN

—REBFAELANERERGEE
28(b)) & E 2572 (FF A H AL FEUER K
A) BB 7k R HE AR o B BE R A B
#2016 6 A 30 HiEm °

R2013F12A31H  —XKEMFENA]
HEKRES FEE’J%UQH&)\%}AEM
6198 (S ENBE793&E L) » Wit
AE b FE W AR KA

NEEBEE E R FEE— %ﬂfﬁt&ﬂa’]ﬁ%
WER REEEKFERTYEE -
%Iﬂﬂjfﬁéﬁa@ﬁmﬁ%%ﬂ‘ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁx
201312 A31 e B -

M2013F 12 8318 NBEEREKE
ENRFEREREIONMIZEL TEFRE
HKBE)WMT

RECEIVABLE (Continued)

The loan receivable from an unrelated company (Note
28(b)) and interest accrued thereon (included in other
debtors) were guaranteed by Citichamp. The term of such
guarantee shall expire on 30 June 2016.

At 31 December 2013, the loan receivable from an
unrelated company generated an interest income
of approximately RMB6.19 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$7.93 million) and included in other
debtors.

The Group has assessed individually the recoverability
of the loan receivable from an unrelated company and
related interest receivable, and considered that there is
no objective evidence of loss events that will result in a
provision to be made at 31 December 2013.

At 31 December 2013, the ageing analysis of the loans to
customers arising from the micro credit business by date
of loans granted to customers was as follows:

REE AN

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
BETT | BEFT| EETT| EEFT
HK$’000 HKS'000 HKS$000 HKS000
912180 H 91-180 days 2,049 = — =
181 £ 365 H 181-365 days 39,711 = — —
41,760 = = =

M2013%E 128318 ' FRERE &I
ﬂiﬂﬂﬂ

All of the loans to customers were not past due at 31
December 2013.
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TEAT B 48 25 PREPAID TAXES
KEE
Group
2013 2012
BT T BT T
HKS’000 HKS'000
TET L IB(ETS Prepaid land appreciation tax — 5,553
TR Prepaid business tax — 1,194
BN EMTE Prepaid other taxes — 140
ENDBEEFIELE Reclassified as held for sale
(FE%8 28(a)) (Note 28(a)) — (6,887)

BN LR ED  EXRMEMHER
BEPEARLHHELENERRBRNEAE
RIRETAEDLEE ©

B EEBRBRIIR S/ 26

Prepaid land appreciation tax, business tax and other
taxes are calculated based on certain percentage of
cash received from pre-sale of properties held for sale in
Mainland China.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

E~el —1
=3k Annual Report 2013 0!0

B THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
rEH KA E]
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
BETFT | BT EBEFT| FEFT
HKS’000 HKS000 HKS$’000 HKS000
HIEEERAEES © Equity securities held for
RBEA L™ trading, listed in Hong Kong
—RmAE - at market value 7,474 6,485 227 224
R EAAEIE Forward foreign exchange
contracts 615 = = =
8,089 6,485 227 224

RER - NEBEEA A —KIBITEH
RIEZMERBEERZ  EEREFEA
HW—REEMNBARRRERSKE
HRINERER - 722013F12 831 H
NEE A ERE R R BEE G Z
2014 F FH F 4B 33,7038 7T
(20124 : &) L B4 AR 26,497
BT (20124 : &) o

During the year, the Group had entered into several
forward foreign exchange contracts with a bank in
Mainland China aimed at minimising exchange rate
risks in respect of the conversion of capital of a wholly-
owned subsidiary incorporated in Mainland China. At
31 December 2013, the Group is entitled to exchange
approximately HK$337.03 million (2012: Nil) for
approximately RMB264.97 million (2012: Nil) under the
outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts in the
first half of 2014.
179



B0 BE%EARAT MINXIN HOLDINGS LIMITED ()

ARG PSR RE R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27 B& MRITEAT 27 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

WIRE RIRITEFRIEANER R AR A
DREFRPRAM - FEMBRFET
RITZHFROARKE33 3438 (A
47427128 L) R AR 31,5638
T(EBELN B 40,4328 7T) (20124 -
DA ANREE 3,801 8T kAR 2,044
Bir SEYNBEL72778 T N BE
2,54287T) °

BIEESRHEEIEE VT SHE
EN—ZXHBRAAITEEBAKT D
775 51,600 8 (20124 : 75 1,600
BLIZESBRABRITER - ZHBA
B NS 4RI 993 BT (ZE LB
#9648 70)(20124F : #)BPIEE 7498
T BENEEI28ET)2BITER
FEBRPIKRBRIEEEHERDDZET
FTE o

BREARABIRFRRITNEHBERER
BEGEHEINDNHEE - ARa B FE
BRRTERARK171008 T(E
B # 21,905 B 7T ) FERKIBITIEAIR
HRABITARARNEREE -

Included in cash and bank balances are deposits of
approximately RMB333.43 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$427.12 million) and RMB315.63 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$404.32 million) placed
with certain banks in Mainland China, Hong Kong and
Macao by the Group and the Company respectively
(2012: approximately RMB38.01 million and RMB20.44
million, equivalent to approximately HK$47.27 million and
HK$25.42 million respectively).

Pursuant to the requirements from the Office of the
Commissioner of Insurance in Hong Kong, a subsidiary
maintains at all times a portion of its funds, being not
less than HK$16 million (2012: HKS$16 million), in bank
deposits. That subsidiary has also maintained a bank
deposit of approximately MOP9.93 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$9.64 million) (2012: approximately
MOP7.49 million, equivalent to approximately HK$7.28
million) for fulfilling certain requirements under the Macao
Insurance Ordinance.

Pursuant to the requirements of the short term revolving
loan facilities (Note 31) entered into by the Company
during the year, the Company had charged its bank
deposits placed offshore of RMB171 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$219.05 million) to the lending banks as
collaterals for the fulfillment of the Company’s repayment
obligations.
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27 Bla LRITHif ()

R20129 12 A31 8 » BiEFHE AN
[EEBEFINRE AR —FAEY
ARB14EBE T (ZENEK1,781 8
TL)MESTFHRR R RAH— KRBT
WEFEMEERENRE - tHIRITA
FEAKRRNTR 2012 F HE4 205 B E
REARRFTER MR EFE - BEANRIEE
FEAAREE—RARE - XAFIER
FREBBREERBIM EABECELS
B A, o

R2012%12 A318 > BEEHMNNAER
AiFENIRE MBITEFHARE
12128 (S ELE¥ 15088 L) BEE
ToBEAFEREGEE280) - 1 E
1= &R N B9 100% A% AR 7 55 10 &F N SEAK
1% KIS PIEHRRBNR IEFER Fili3R
© RIRITHETT ©

BIEREEHMNABEEEFBEAMYEN
AETERRASRBERMAE THRITH
EMER R2012F12 8318 © BEfs
HINTFERHOARB 1328 L(ZELNB
164 BT )NESHNBFERITERE -
ERZEYEERBEHENIZBERN
RES(GEE34) - FHERESRBEED
¥ERGEISH MERES BB TR
FARITIRF ARRR o & B8N AY 100%
ARV EFEANTRE - ARE B3R
FEMR IERER B TR -

27 CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued)

At 31 December 2012, pursuant to the rules of foreign
exchange control regulations in Mainland China, a
sum of approximately RMB14.32 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$17.81 million) was placed with a bank
in Mainland China by the Company pending the approval
from the relevant governing authorities. The bank balance
represented the net proceeds received from the sale of
approximately 2.05 million A-Share of Huaneng in 2012
and was not available for general use in Mainland China.
The Company had obtained the repatriation approval from
the relevant governing authorities during the year.

At 31 December 2012, the cash and bank balances
of approximately RMB12.12 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$15.08 million) held by Minxin Suzhou in
Mainland China had been reclassified as held for sale (Note
28(a)). Such cash and bank balances were de-recognised
from these consolidated financial statements following
the completion of the disposal of 100% equity interest in
Minxin Suzhou during the year.

At 31 December 2012, Minxin Suzhou had placed
deposits of approximately RMB1.32 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$1.64 million) at designated bank
accounts according to the guarantees provided by Minxin
Suzhou in respect of mortgage facilities granted by certain
banks to certain purchasers of its properties in Mainland
China, for potential default in payment of mortgage
loans advanced to those property purchasers (Note 34).
Such deposits will only be released when those property
purchasers obtain the “property title certificate” which is
then pledged to the relevant banks. Such deposits were
derecognised from these consolidated financial statements
following the completion of the disposal of 100% equity
interest in Minxin Suzhou during the year.

e
1)
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28 HEEFHEHENEE 28 ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

(@) R2012F 128 KAREF2H (@) In December 2012, the Board of Directors of the

EREHEARAT(ARA—FR
ME2EWNBARESSRIE
HiFFREEHMA100% KA Em
((REHDHEFBILE=FTEH
B - R2013F1 8148 &
EHEARAREEHEIY — A
ERHEEHE UWHESKREA
R #% 227,884,000 7T (55 B #) /& #&
284,889,000 7t ) ([ (& |) 1 &S Ax#E
([HESE]) FTEM -

BEFLEE BRARENERR
BEFXrZFANERE ML IEE
BEEFRRE RRETE
BATHEE Bt XRAAREB
BREFREIPBERFELEER -
it BEHNOEEMNBER
2012F 12 A3 BRWEFT DB AL
EHE - KEBERARARBBK
AR 24B T(SELN B
11,460 & 70 ) (£ 28(b)) 12 * E1E
EINFA 201212 AT E T EE
ENMBEBEEFAEVBERARAE
Y EHMT

Company approved the proposal initiated by the
board of directors of Min Xin Properties Limited, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, to
dispose of its 100% equity interest in Minxin Suzhou
(“Equity Interest”) to Citichamp, an independent
third party. On 14 January 2013, Min Xin Properties
Limited entered into a conditional sale and purchase
agreement with Citichamp for the sale of the
Equity Interest (“Disposal”) at a cash consideration
of RMB227,884,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$284,889,000) (“Consideration”).

Based on the above facts, the Company considered
that the Equity Interest met the criteria to be
classified as held for sale because the carrying
amount was recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through a continuing use and
the Equity Interest was available for sale in its present
condition. Accordingly, the assets and liabilities of
Minxin Suzhou were reclassified as held for sale at
31 December 2012. The major classes of assets and
liabilities of Minxin Suzhou at 31 December 2012,
after elimination of an advance due to the Company
of approximately RMB92.14 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$114.6 million) (Note 28(b)), were
presented separately in the consolidated statement
of financial position as follows:

itEE BETT

Note HKS'000
M - e RRIE Property, plant and equipment 15(a) 136
EEFTISTHEE Deferred income tax assets 32 2,488
ESER M E W Completed properties held for sale 521,073
H b fE UL BR 3K Other debtors 1,339
BT S Prepaid taxes 25 6,887
HEFEMARRIES Other prepayments and deposits 785
e RIRTTHEF Cash and bank balances 27 15,078
PHEABELENEE Assets classified as held for sale 547,786
H i EATBRE N BT B Other creditors and accruals 73,532
MEHEZEFE® Customer deposits from sale of properties 23,884
—EBRERERNEBK Loan and advance from a substantial shareholder ~ 28(c) 111,942
HoEABELENEE Liabilities associated with assets classified as
HENEE held for sale 209,358
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&R EE ()

V

RABZEEE 201342 A28
HERAMBREEFNAS EHES
Bz MELRET IR -

FrEEMmBEN L REEERTF
WERK - AL - BEFEMN2013
Fa4RTK o LT AR RBIRERG
RIINE T E 2 475 7,003 &
L& AEBERFAES— XM
R HE WS LB 12,278
TT(FEEe) o

RARNBIBROG AR 9,214
B (EEYNBE11,4608 7T )
NN 7 E S & N R 2013F1
A14aB &R EHBEIE R
ZzD - BEERBZ BERG)MH
ERWpEI AR R
TR E BIEF M E4%5T B
(i) HREEETERRARE
20144 6 A 30 B IHRFFIZE 8% &t
B REBERMEMBEZAF
BB 2014 6 A 30 HABHEE -

REEFETKA  ZBRRER
EEMORBRR—REMEQAN
FEWE R (T 24) -

28 ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
(Continued)

The shareholders of the Company have approved the
sale and purchase agreement and the transaction
contemplated thereunder at the extraordinary
general meeting held on 28 February 2013.

All the other relevant conditions precedent had
been satisfied during the year and the Disposal
was completed in April 2013. The Group recorded a
one-off after-tax gain on disposal of approximately
HK$122.97 million (Note 6) during the year, taking
into account the release of exchange translation
reserve attributable to the Equity Interest of
approximately HK$70.03 million.

The Company and Minxin Suzhou has entered into
a shareholder’s loan agreement (“Loan Agreement”)
on 14 January 2013 in relation to the outstanding
advance due to the Company of approximately
RMB92.14 million (equivalent to approximately
HKS$114.6 million). Pursuant to the Loan Agreement,
the loan shall carry an interest of (i) 4% per annum
from the date of the Loan Agreement to the date on
which the Equity Interest is transferred to Citichamp
and (ii) 8% per annum from the date immediately
after the Equity Interest is transferred to Citichamp
until 30 June 2014. The outstanding loan and all
interests accrued thereon shall be repaid in full on 30
June 2014.

The shareholder’s loan has been reclassified as loan
receivable from an unrelated company (Note 24) on
the completion date of the Disposal.

o
T
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28 HARELERNERE () 28 ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
(Continued)
(¢ M2012F6H198 © B=& M - () On 19 June 2012, Minxin Suzhou, FIDG, a substantial

BEREEBR (KRR —XTER
R)EERIVHRER - ¥E5
ERARY90008 T(ZELNH
ENM1BIL) MERBRERSE
2013F6 8248 - ZEXEERE
BINEEER2011F6 AT E

(EE K

ZAERABEERT  FBZRETE
FRIE10EFTE - WWFXTIEE
BINEEENESE LR SRE
B URERREEREEENE
BESKA  BEHMNEULEF
EHISERCHEBRGRE
AR E AR E| R RBUTR 2011 F
BBEME I Y EE
1% BREMWIRITHRES TR
EEREEEXRTUEZRRANE
BB o

HESHERFATKE  £TE
HAR 09,0008 T(HEH B
11,251 87T) REMFEHARK
ET(ZENEEMETIEE
AV BERREIEER - FI B
STHOARBE258 T(ZELB
#2818 7T )(2012F : HAR M
91587t ' FEXEE1,12687T)
BEEGAGEBZRANER - B8
MERFAZNHARMKE 258
T(ZEBEQNBE BTN A
FTREREEE(2012F : HAR
BolsEIT ZEANEK1,1268
JL) °

shareholder of the Company, and XIB entered into a
supplemental agreement to extend the term of the
entrusted loan balance of RMB90 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$111.94 million) to 24 June 2013.
The entrusted loan was advanced to Minxin Suzhou
by FIDG in June 2011.

The entrusted loan was unsecured and borne interest
at a fixed rate of 10% per annum. Such interest rate
was mutually agreed between Minxin Suzhou and
FIDG after considering the overall funding costs to
FIDG, the best interest rate of approximately 18%
obtainable from financial institutions by Minxin
Suzhou and the fact that local banks are unwilling
to grant or extend construction loan to property
developers under the measures by the Central
Government to curb property prices in 2011.

The entrusted loan balance of RMB90 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$112.51 million)
and interest payable of approximately RMB0.28
million (equivalent to approximately HK$0.34
million) were de-recognised from these consolidated
financial statements following the completion of
the Disposal during the year. An interest expense
of approximately RMB2.25 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$2.81 million) (2012: approximately
RMB9.15 million, equivalent to approximately
HK$11.26 million) was recognised in the consolidated
income statement. Minxin Suzhou had paid interests
of approximately RMB2.25 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$2.81 million) to FIDG during
the year (2012: approximately RMB9.15 million,
equivalent to approximately HK$11.26 million).
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29 INSURANCE CONTRACTS AND

REINSURANCE ASSETS
REE
Group
2013 2012
BT T B F T
HK$’000 HKS000
EE-C] Gross
EERRERBLAE Claims reported and loss adjustment
933! expenses 13,365 15,394
EBREBEREFRRE Claims incurred but not reported 20,050 15,877
33,415 31,271
KmERE Unearned premiums 28,388 26,183
AN ok EA R B 4 Unexpired risks provision — 566
REeEEHEE,EHE Total insurance liabilities, gross 61,803 58,020
FEW B R B A RKIE Recoverable from reinsurers
EE2mRERBLH Claims reported and loss adjustment
4= expenses (242) (1,652)
BEABRRERRE Claims incurred but not reported (4,115) (3,887)
(4,357) (5,539)
RimERE Unearned premiums (818) (650)
BREAEGRBRET Total reinsurers’ share of insurance
HER(FERE 23) liabilities (Note 23) (5,175) (6,189)
FEE Net
EERRERBLARE Claims reported and loss adjustment
=938 expenses 13,123 13,742
BEEABRERRE Claims incurred but not reported 15,935 11,990
29,058 25,732
RmEARE Unearned premiums 27,570 25,533
A B B B Unexpired risks provision — 566
REETEAE, 28 Total insurance liabilities, net 56,628 51,831

EE2RREEHE  BRARBARDH
B G
HA AT (AR B8 M A A R K [ Y SRR

o s ==

&;%15\#5\

HEERE?

The liabilities for gross claims reported, loss adjustment
expenses and claims incurred but not reported are net of
expected recoveries from salvage and subrogation.
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(a) HEAE R 4H 2R o B 22 1) 5 )

29 INSURANCE CONTRACTS AND

REINSURANCE ASSETS (Continued)

(a) Movement in claims and loss adjustment expenses

2013 2012
2 Bk 8 E2 ARk FE
Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net
BETT BETT BETT BArtr BArtr Artr
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000
BEHER Notified claims 15,394 (1,652) 13,742 12873 (95) 12778
BRERRER Incurred but not reported 15,877 (3,887) 11,990 14559 (4272) 10,87
R1A1H At 1 January 31,7 (5,539) 25,732 27432 (4367) 23,065
FRHBEBERMEE Cash paid for claims settled during the year (19,203) 4,097 (15,106) (14399) 39 (14,360)

EEEM/GHD)  Increase/(decrease) in liabilities

SEELEER arising from current year claims 26,671 (4,144) 2,527 25,176 (3904) 21,72
FFEERE arising from prior year claims (5,324) 1,229 (4,095) (6939) 2693 (4.245)
R12A318 At 31 December 33,415 (4357) 29,058 31,271 (5539) 25732
BRHEE Notified claims 13,365 (242) 13123 15,394 (1,652) 13,742
BRERKER Incurred but not reported 20,050 (4,115) 15,935 15877 (3887) 11,990
R12A318 At 31 December 33,415 (4357) 29,058 31,271 (5539) 25732

(b) A S PR 2 B A < 5 )

(b) Movement in provision for unearned premiums

2013 2012
2 ARk R £ | Bk it
Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net
BEfr  EEFR B8R Brfr  Ertr BTTr
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
R1A1A At January 26,183 (650) 25,533 2648 (569) 25913
ErEn Increase during the year 27,862 (817) 27,045 24413 (680) 373
ERED Release during the year (25,657) 649 (25,008) (24712) 599 (24113)
R12A31A At31 December 28,388 (818) 21570 26,183 (650) 25533

AmBREEFE /AAREAAEER
EHAHARBNANEHRBRENEE

Provision for unearned premiums represents the liabilities
for short-term insurance contracts for which the Group's

obligations are not expired at the reporting date.
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(c) WAL 1 4 52 )

T,

29 INSURANCE CONTRACTS AND

REINSURANCE ASSETS (Continued)

(c) Movement in provision for unexpired risks

2013 2012
2] BRR 8 kS Bk i
Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net
BEFL BEFT BEFT BEFr B¢ Tr BEFT
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
RA1H At 1 January 566 - 566 1,621 — 1621
EnEE Release diuring the year (566) - (566) (1,055) - (1,055)
R12A318 At 31 December - - - 566 - 566

R RRER S BARE AN
BB LA RREEESORR

AKEH -
R A 3K

M2013F12 A31H @ RBREMAZROER

TR BRZAHWT

30

The provision for unexpired risk relates to the insurance
contracts for which the Group expects to pay claims in
excess of the related provision for unearned premiums.

INSURANCE PAYABLE

At 31 December 2013, the ageing analysis of the insurance
payable by invoice date was as follows:

rEE

Group
2013 2012
BT T B F T
HK$’000 HKS'000
308 Within 30 days 2,612 2,624
31260H 31-60 days 1,160 1,116
61290 H 61-90 days 558 1,444
iBim 90 H Over 90 days 379 877
4,709 6,061
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31 SRATEK 31 BANK BORROWINGS
(@) REAXRRQARKRBBNRITEEGE (@) The Company obtained the short term revolving
HHRRERBEEBE 28T - bank loan facilities of HK$200 million from banks in
Hong Kong during the year.

ZECHERERBEENULAAQT
TR ERIRITHBERRITER
AR®171008 T(ZEH B
21,905 B 70 ) (EE IR LAB 1T A2 7]
HEREE °

ZETHERTERNA BIRES
BITRERENEZE WA
REEBEHZ=ZBEAREE - ©¥
201312 A31 8 ' ZZRTER
MERFEFMENT2EZ22E -

KABRFEANEREZE2012F 12
A3TBREENEHETHEERE
A5 0008 7T ©

Bt - MW20134 1283180 K
NADRERRERBREREE
50008 T RESZREEBK
1,0008 7T - ZERBEEUNEE—
REEWNBRARIBEENE At E
BREERA  ZWER2013F
12 A 31 BMEREFELE 1,096
g r(2012F + %) 8 11228
JL) °

R BETRERERNFEERSR
BRTREREMBEEFE - I
BARREDRBE=ZEARNERE - Z
BERRNEEINERFFNEE24
[E(20124F : 24E) -

These short term bank loans facilities were secured
by the offshore bank deposits of RMB171 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$219.05 million)
placed with the lending banks for the fulfillment of
the Company’s repayment obligations.

These short term bank loans bore interest at a spread
over Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate and were
repayable within three months from the drawdown
date. The effective interest rate of these bank loans
at 31 December 2013 ranged from 2% to 2.2% per
annum.

The outstanding short term revolving bank loan of
HK$50 million at 31 December 2012 was repaid by
the Company during the year.

Therefore, the Group had undrawn revolving loan
facility of HK$50 million and overdraft facility of
HK$10 million respectively at 31 December 2013.
These bank loan facilities were secured by the self-
use office building owned by a wholly-owned
subsidiary in Hong Kong with a net book value of
approximately HK$10.96 million at 31 December
2013 (2012: approximately HK$11.22 million).

The short term revolving bank loan bore interest
at a spread over Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate and was repayable within three months from
the drawdown date. The effective interest rate
immediately before repayment was 2.4% per annum
(2012: 2.4%).
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I HIE T 755

BEFGHEABEENGRERIER
BT 2 TR 16.5%(20124F : 16.5%)
R AR B P b B T8 2 B 3K 259% (2012 6F -
25%)IEREEME - BB EEREFN A
EMELAEMNE R EAEEE M
BIEFRS RS R B — B A5 B 3 R — (&
JERTRER - AR BEERSH & E M
BIEFTSH A EE AR o

BIEFSHEE(BE)ZEBWT -

DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using a taxation rate
of 16.5% (2012: 16.5%) for Hong Kong taxation and 25%
(2012: 25%) for Mainland China taxation. Deferred income
tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
relate to the same taxation authority on the same taxable
entity.

The movement on the deferred income tax assets/
(liabilities) is as follows:

o
T

REE ¥ /N
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
BYETFTL | EEFrT| EB¥Fr| EEFr
HKS$’000 HKS'000 HKS$’000 HKS'000
®1HA18 At 1 January (37,553) (33,416) (37,972) (32,866)
ME W = RE Translation differences — 30 — —
TEFEBRREK Deferred income tax charged
kg 2 ERE to current year's income
FT1S statement (7,206) (1,679) (7,088) (5,106)
EHEBEEM Deferred income tax charged
FESNR to leasehold buildings
ZIBEIEFTIS R revaluation reserve (442) — = —
BEEFTSHEE Deferred income tax assets
BN O EARE reclassified as held for sale
HE(GE#28(a)  (Note 28(a)) — (2,488) — _
M12831H At 31 December (45,201) (37,553) (45,060) (37,972)

BEASHEEDREEHRBAHREH=ER
A ] RE S B R R B R B O% B 2 IR T Bk A
#hEE v BB ERERR - 72013412 A 31
B ANEBERERA]AEBERKE
AR UL A B TR 18 4978 85 3.1918 70 (2012
F 4B 20318 L) MittFRIBIL &
PRER o

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that realisation of the related
tax benefits through future taxable profits is probable. At
31 December 2013, the Group did not recognise tax losses
of approximately HK$319 million (2012: approximately
HK$293 million) that can be carried forward against future
taxable income and have no expiry date.
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32 RSEPTASEL () 32 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
RERNELEMSHEERBEZEE) The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
(ER[FA— B[R < AR SHRT) AT - (prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation

jurisdiction) during the year is as follows:
IR AE T 1580 1 Deferred income tax liabilities
158 KA
Group Company
MERERER NERERER
RENEER RENFER
Accelerated tax depreciation HERAZKE Accelerated tax depreciation
and revaluation of Timing difference aE and revaluation of
investment properties in sales recognition Total investment properties
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
AETr | AFTr | BEFL | BEFr | AEfn | BEFr | AEFR | AETr
HKS 000 HKs 000 HKS 000 HKs 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKs 000
R1A1E At 1 January 38,484 33326 = 994 38,484 34320 38,133 33,051
EXZE Translation differences - - - 10 - 10 - -
fTEEERER Charged to current year's
Bl income statement 7,231 5140 = 252 7,231 5392 7,074 5,082
EHERRER Charged to leasehold
EEil buildings revaluation
reserve LY} = = = LY} = = =
BN ERRE Reclassified as held for sale
HEGHESE)  (Note28) - 18 - (1,256) - (1,238) - -
M12B31H At 31 December 46,157 38,484 = = 46,157 38484 45,207 38,133
0% F0E JUT A5 Deferred income tax assets
558 RAF
Group Company
HERHERBAL
BAZKE
Timing difference in
JESER sales and related costs #i# 2] i
Accrued expenses of sales recognition Tax losses Total Tax losses
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
BEFL | BT | BETR | AR | BEFL | BT | BETR | ERTr | BEFn | AETr
HKS000 | HKSO00 | HKSO00 |  HKSUO0 | HKSOOO | HKSUOO | HKS©00 | HKSUOO | HKS000 | HKSOOO
R1A1A At 1 January (433) B3 = = (498) (901) (931) (904) (161) (185)
ERER Translation differences - - - (40) - - - (40) - -
HEERBER  Charged/(credited) to current
N/ (25) year's income statement 177 (430) = (3,686) (202) 403 (25) (3713) 14 U
ENABARE  Redlassified as held forsale
HE(EEBE)  (Note28(a) - - - 3726 - - - 3726 - -
R12A31H At 31 December (256) (433) = = (700) (498) (956) (931) (147) (161)
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DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The following amounts, determined after appropriate
offsetting of deferred income tax assets and liabilities, are
shown in the statement of financial position:

RE AAFE]
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
BT | B¥For| EB¥TFrT| BEFr
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKs'000 HKS'000
TRICFTISTHEE  Deferred income tax assets
B 128 A% To be recovered after
e 12 months 334 377 — —
B 12@ AR To be recovered within
U g 12 months 42 42 — _
376 419 — —
IEIEFTSFiBE  Deferred income tax liabilities
B 128 A& To be settled after
ESUN] 12 months (45,577) (37,972) (45,060) (37,972)
(45,201) (37,553) (45,060) (37,972)
G g B A 33 CAPITAL AND RESERVES
(a) A& (a) Share capital
2013 2012
BROEHE BEFT Rin&E BEFT
No. of shares HKS'000 No. of shares HKS'000
EERA Authorised
TRREREE 1T Ordinary shares of HK$ 1 each 800,000,000 800,000 | 800,000,000 800,000
ERTRBERA Issued and fully paid
TRRERAEE 1T Ordinary shares of HK$ 1 each 459,428,656 459,429 | 459,428,656 459,429

EBEFAEABRUDTRE KK

B YR

G2

= AR

ERERE-—ROK

ZHE - BT BRBRNERREARIGRE

ERAR SRS -

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to
one vote per share at shareholders’ meetings. All ordinary
shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual

assets.
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33 EA NI A (48)

(O8]
(O8]

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(b) HABGEMR S — A H] (b) Other reserves - The Company
Abfife
Other reserves
HEeR -0
BAER REEf EfRGEE e
e #ES  Leasehold ag it &
RE  ROEE Capital Investment buildings Total  REEF ag
Share Share redemption revaluation revaluation other  Retained Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserves profits equity
BT EFT AT ARFT A¥FR ARFR ARFR BRFR
HKS$000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS$ 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HK$'000
R01E1A18 At 1 January 2012 459429 384,620 47,086 241,09 9 672811 103,831 1,236,071
FER2ENEEE Total comprehensive income
forthe year - - - 151,713 - 151,713 378,781 530494
k& Dividend - - - - - - (18377)  (18377)
R0E1ANAR At31 December 2012and
01351818 1 January 2013 459,429 384,620 47,086 392,809 9 824,524 464,235 1,748,188
FER2ENEEE Total comprehensive income
forthe year - - - (169,572) - (169,572) 152,370 (17,202)
kE Dividend - - - - - — (M348 (41,349)
R2013E 128318 At31December 2013 459,429 384,620 47,086 223,237 9 654,952 575257 1,689,638

(c) FEMEE e K& R%

() R EREXELFEE

BaBEREAERHFESHER o
R = FBCA BE B ) 5L 48B {5 & 55 49H
IRFTARE -

(i) SETHEEZ
FEEREBEETERRE

— —REZSBEBRECRFE
TR R ERGEINRB G
BOHZ AN ENEERES ©

— —REEREEBRE IR
A EMEERKRERBRINER
P75 )(BF 4 [2005]49 5% ) :X 3 A9 —
REH - Z—REBEAFEBED
R WIERFMBEERARK

55

PR DA 8 8 i R AR R ) B

TEETE

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Share premium and capital redemption reserve

The application of the share premium and the capital
redemption reserve is governed by Sections 48B and 49H
respectively of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

(i) Statutory reserve
The statutory reserve mainly comprises the following:

— Non-distributable reserve set aside by an associated
financial institution from its retained profits in
accordance with the Financial System Act of Macao.

—  General reserve established and maintained within
equity holders’ equity of an associated financial
institution pursuant to Caijin [2005] No. 49 “Measures
on General Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts for
Financial Institutions” issued by Ministry of Finance.
The general reserve was established through the
appropriation of income to cover unidentified
potential impairment losses.
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B it 4 ()
(c) IRt AP 2 T i (D)
(iii) B EE

BRMEESIRRE SN B W E—R
PR ©

(iv) BEAtEHEE
BB

— 200151 A1R AR E B S OF
REREBMERTMELENBER
AEBERERBBEENABRE
E - RERIARBENRFFE
EYN2ZNELEEC

— BEARLENEBRRSE MK
ZASE=RANYN =R SR iR DN
wEENML

— RBE—ZRBERRETEHKRE
P J8 7 ) 22 S A H) B B B AT A\
SO FERSEE -

() KEZEFHET

REELREBEEEAAR LB ERT]

FRAMNAHEESHEENRFTATFE

HEF R (HBERRETHESH) °

i) HEEEERHEL

HEEEERREESREHEERNE

TERYVEETHBAIREMEZBA

EANAFEZEFE -

(vii) SMNEWE#ET

SNEFTE B BB BRETINGE QR
=

LEERRNPBRREARRZRE
EHELNMBENZH
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CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(c)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(iii) ~ General reserve

The general reserve is transferred from retained profits and
is available for general use.

(iv) Capital reserve
The capital reserve comprises the following:

— goodwill and the excess of the Group's interest in
the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost
of business combination and the investments in
associates prior to 1 January 2001;

— capitalisation of retained profits and reserves for the
purpose of increasing the share capital and capital
reserve of associates and their subsidiaries;

— share of movement in reserves recorded in equity
of an associate for the change in the interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control.

(v)  Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-
sale financial assets (less related deferred tax charge) held
by the Company and associates.

(vi)  Leasehold buildings revaluation reserve

The leasehold buildings revaluation reserve comprises the
net change in the fair value of leasehold buildings at the
date of reclassification from owner-occupied property to
investment property.

(vii) Exchange translation reserve

The exchange translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising on translation of the financial
statements of foreign subsidiaries and associates into the
reporting currency of the Company.

o
T{
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34 BARSIEIR 34 FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

MiEHNAEABEEPRAMENET
BERMBRBERMAETRE BEE
FEER R2012F 128318 &5
BREAARKEL4621 BT (ZEQBE
57488 70 ) o HE RS E N A 100% %
AEDTNFATHE @ Zx=ERED
B SORIE -

At 31 December 2012, the maximum guarantees provided
by Minxin Suzhou to the banks and financial institutions
who granted mortgage facilities to certain purchasers of
its properties in Mainland China amounted to RMB46.21
million (equivalent to approximately HK$57.48 million).
Such maximum guarantees have been passed to the buyer
following the completion of the disposal of 100% equity
interest in Minxin Suzhou during the year.

TR 35 COMMITMENTS
(a) W - WEs Xtk m & AR K (a) Capital commitments for expenditures on
1 property, plant and equipment
rEE RAF
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
BT BETFT BETT BT T
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
EENEREE Contracted but not provided for 212 206 212 206

(b) BERYE

R2013F10H108 - KRG —KREE
fEAE  REEEREARAF(RE
EREEDEEREREEE - K2EN
BAA wREEREEFRETLAA
((TEREH ) REMBYSEREER
A+ RIMEE A aE - R B A HE N
TREFRIGBEELERR(TRRAE
RAll) - REALAANEMERBA
R#1500087T  BEAELREEA
NREHE - REGEQTRBEIELSE
RHENEERLRZAERTHEAMD
RN ERT o

720135128310 ' EREEZAE
BESETNRITHRPEA —SEHE
AREISEBIL(EEHNBEE198TT) -
EHERREEEMBENREZEEA -
HEXRGEUKHERTER - BEBE
WAL MERBREFEL A EMER
B 10% I ETEARE 1,500 87T ©

(b) Investment commitments

On 10 October 2013, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, Fujian Minxin Investments Co., Ltd. (“Fujian
Minxin”), entered into a joint venture agreement with
Fujian Huaxing Group Co., Ltd. (“Fujian Huaxing”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of FIDG and other independent
joint venture parties for the formation of a joint venture
company in Changtai, Zhangzhou City, Mainland China
(“Changtai JV”). The registered capital of the Changtai JV
of RMB150 million shall be contributed by joint venture
parties in cash. The Changtai JV will be principally engaged
in the provision of micro credit and entrusted loans to
small and medium enterprises in Mainland China.

Fujian Minxin has already paid a preparation fee of
RMBO0.15 million (equivalent to approximately HK$0.19
million) into a bank account designated by Fujian
Huaxing and included in other prepayments and deposits
at 31 December 2013. Up to the date of issue of these
consolidated financial statements, Fujian Minxin has not
paid its 10% share of the contribution to the registered
capital of the Changtai JV of RMB15 million.
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36 FHA &K IE

(a) 7&RFHA

MR2013F 12 A31H  AEERKAR A
BIBETAIREE 2 & EHEMARARE
7 &ERERMKAT :

36 LEASE COMMITMENTS

(a) Aslessee

At 31 December 2013, the Group and the Company had
future aggregate minimum lease payments payable under
non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

rEE KAF
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
BEFT BETT BEFIT BETFT
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FEibE Land and buildings
F—FNA Within one year 274 31 2,290 2,290
FE_FEFRFNA In the second to fifth
(BEEEMS) year inclusive 799 — — 2,290
1,073 31 2,290 4,580
(b)y HAHA (b) As lessor

MN2013%12 8318 » XEBRAR A
TR N AT HR 8 2 AR 48 70 & 7 oA B U
Bz &EBEAZOT -

At 31 December 2013, the Group and the Company had
future aggregate minimum lease payments receivable
under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

rEEH b NN
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
BEFIT | BETT| BEFT| EETT
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKSs'000 HKS'000
5 b EE Land and buildings
F—FNA Within one year 8,325 9,672 4,717 6,152
FE_FEFRFNAN In the second to fifth
(BREEMF) year inclusive 20,473 25,382 3,890 9,766
FNFE R AR In the sixth year and
thereafter 8,448 13,056 146 —
37,246 48,110 8,753 15,918

AEBRB s BENEZHEFHh—
FENFEAE  HEHRRAZEETIIEE

EEE -

The lease terms for commercial properties leased out by
the Group range from one to eight years and with unfixed
rentals throughout the lease periods.

1)
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37 HEHERERTE 37 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

() Iﬂ}tﬁi‘%ﬁﬁu/\ KRB 4

(a) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net

T T AE R cash outflow from operations
2013 2012
BETFT BT T
HK$'000 HKS'000
B 250 &R A Profit before taxation 574,614 858,802
HE Adjustments for:
EIEEERNRIEE Share of results of joint ventures (5,556) (390,575)
i NI Share of results of associates (366,925) (38,079)
HE—XKKTB AR MK Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (122,967) —
u”j’i REEDA Gain on partial disposal of interest in a
*E E’J”ﬁl joint venture — (108,135)
/\ EWN TTE Gain on dilution of interest in a
%BZE&EE’]LIQ joint venture — (284,928)
—REEE N TR Gain on dilution of interest in an
WEER s associate (41,186) (46,373)
REVMESHATE Fair value gains on revaluation of
gy investment properties (17,067) (13,737)
nE Depreciation 862 1,116
HEAHEESREE Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
g financial assets — (10,682)
KFEEFRAEEE Impairment loss on loans to customers 835 —
1% s JE KRB B 18 (Written back of)/provision for impairment
(Bm) /Bts loss on insurance receivable (5) 28
HEME - WEREE Loss on disposal of property, plant and
B8 equipment 13 18
A EUA Interest income (17,371) (3,377)
FEXZH Interest expenses 4,678 12,487
[ 5 I 5 AR Net exchange gains (14,270) (480)
MBELEHEN - Changes in working capital:
EIRR it EWmER D Decrease in completed properties held for sale 5,967 27,464
EIEREK AR Decrease in deferred acquisition costs 828 1,826
IRERFE W (S 0) /R (Increase)/decrease in insurance receivable (92) 782
BREEERD,/(1EN) Decrease/(increase) in reinsurance assets 1,014 (1,253)
HEEZEM Increase in loans to customers (41,760) —
H A e W BR R (), > (Increase)/decrease in other debtors (548) 320
BT R Decrease in prepaid taxes 139 303
Hib AR RIZE Decrease/(increase) in other prepayments
A,/ (H#n) and deposits 218 (356)
BATEEREBERYIRD Increase in financial assets at fair
T RVEEE N value through profit or loss (1,604) (4,543)
IRERE #3800 Increase in insurance contracts 3,783 2,485
RERERFRCRA), /12 (Decrease)/increase in insurance payable (1,352) 358
H o AT BR TR FE AT Decrease in other creditors
BRRD and accruals (7,437) (6,710)
MEHREZ TP Decrease in customer deposits from
o sale of properties (2,923) (5,010)
fE2EEIRE R R R Net cash outflow from operations (48,112) (8,249)
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37 e BlEinE R R (4])

(b) HE—ZKMWE L

37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Sale of a subsidiary

2013
BT
HKS'000
FEWRAB Consideration receivable 284,889
BT EMR HKAR Other transaction costs paid (739)
284,150
W HEEE/(AB)FE Less: Net assets/(liabilities) disposed of
M - MR E Property, plant and equipment 130
BEFTSHEE Deferred income tax assets 2,500
BEEKEHENE Completed properties held for sale 517,757
H FE e AR 3K Other debtors 1,887
EANE Prepaid taxes 6,819
Hip BT RIRE Other prepayments and deposits 400
RERRTER Cash and bank balances 5,216
Hip R M BT E A Other creditors and accruals (63,109)
MEHEZ BRI & Customer deposits from sale of properties (21,070)
—FERFEEFRBR Loan and advance from a substantial shareholder (112,514)
REZERAFER Loan from ultimate holding company (115,188)
222,828
A R R B e (G SNE T B Gain on disposal before taxation and release of
FES 2 HEWE attributable exchange translation reserve 61,322
m: BERBEINEFEREES Add: Exchange translation reserve released on disposal 70,034
A & H s Gain on disposal before taxation 131,356
B BANETEH Less: Income tax paid (8,389)
i &z After-tax gain on disposal 122,967
HEZRERAFER Net cash inflow on disposal
BURERE Cash consideration received 287,434
BRAERREAMR SRR Income tax and other transaction costs paid (9,128)
278,306
HEWBARZRERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents in subsidiary disposed of (5,216)
273,090
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38 B A8 5 38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

BRRAER S M MR BBy WEIN
AEBAELETEBBENET I EKRE
BORSWEWT :

(@) M2013F 128318 A £ B K&
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MF B A —RMEEFERFE
FERARRRFRNALATES
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(20124 : BE2108T) B
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(b) REARNEB —RMNBARIFHE
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BRITMENEREBRAST B
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(012F : HARKeSE L &
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d) ARAA—FEREEEFEERA
A[EE)INEEEBK 1888
JC(20124F : BE188&E L) © 1E
AHIBE - NEBGRIEM %
BEERG  BEZKEZTFTAR
REEECER -

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, significant related party
transactions which were carried out in the normal course
of the Group's business are as follows:

(@) At 31 December 2013, the Group and the Company
had deposits with XIB Group, an associate of
the Company, totaling HK$278.08 million (2012:
HK$92.95 million) and HK$202.83 million (2012:
HK$16.5 million) respectively. The deposits carry
interest at normal commercial rates and have
generated interest income of HK$6.01 million (2012:
HKS$2.1 million) and HK$2.9 million (2012: HK$0.33
million) to the Group and the Company respectively
during the year.

(b)  Gross insurance premium less discount of HK$2.33
million (2012: HK$2.32 million) was received from
an associate for insurance policies underwritten by
a subsidiary of the Group during the year. Those
insurance policies underwritten by that subsidiary
were contracted at prices and terms not less
favourable than those contracted with other third
party customers of the Group. That subsidiary also
paid commission of HK$3.86 million (2012: HK$3.62
million) to the aforementioned associate for business
referred to the Group during the year.

() The Company has leased office space in Mainland
China to a company with 30% equity interest held by
FIDG, a substantial shareholder of the Company. The
term of the lease is three years commencing from
June 2011 and the monthly rental is RMB57,024. A
rental income of approximately RMB0.68 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$0.86 million)
(2012: approximately RMB0.68 million, equivalent to
approximately HK$0.84 million) was received by the
Company during the year.

(d)  Anamount of HK$1.88 million (2012: HK$1.88 million)
was paid to Vigour Fine Company Limited (“Vigour
Fine"), a substantial shareholder of the Company, for
the provision of certain management services which
include the provision of Directors to the Board of the
Company pursuant to a management agreement.



—7 58] ~ +p
0By —Z— =443 Annual Report 2013

A BB R AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

). s

38 Bl 7 3C 5 (#8)

(e) M2013F3H ' ARal—FxEK
REERESEEREAEE X2
EHTEB A +j_§z1ﬁﬁf1%mi}\£%

#5 7,000 T (EELEE8751 &
75) HIAERES BBEIKF LR

B BHERIER2013F3 AEH
EeTRREERETREERE
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33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(e) In March 2013, FIDG, a substantial shareholder of the
Company, paid a tender deposit of RMB70 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$87.51 million) on
behalf of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.
The tender deposit was unsecured, interest free and
was refunded to FIDG directly upon completion of
the auction in March 2013.

()  Key management personnel

The senior executives’ emolument for the year ended
31 December 2013 and 2012 are detailed as follows:

2013 2012
BEFT BT T
HK$'000 HKS'000
ke Directors’ fees 1,190 1,190

e BEREAM Salaries, housing and other allowances,
2L REWMAER and benefits in kind 7,742 7,769
ROREFIFTE 3R Contributions to retirement benefit scheme 181 198
Re Bonus 4,440 4,380
13,553 13,537
{EE( ’Eﬂq“’gja H 39 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
MR GG A B SR E 2D HEE) - In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in these
BENHEABSESENBERZLN T ¢ consolidated financial statements, a summary of significant

MR2014F1A13E 22 BEEEFE
EFENEMBYAECEREA 1L

R AR - 5O B A N T 45
WEKL S —RAEEEAR([HEE

BNRAE] - BREERATNAMELRA
ARE15000870  HEAELFEEE
ANBEHE - BHELAREEER
ERENEERMREZTERTHBEAM
BRI EEETS o

HERNGREUMBRERTIER @ BEFE
iR AT BRI S & AR A A
B 10% R EREARE 1,500 87T °

events after the reporting period are disclosed as follows:

On 13 January 2014, Fujian Minxin entered into a
supplemental joint venture agreement with Fujian
Huaxing and other independent joint venture parties
for the formation of another joint venture company
in Xiangcheng, Zhangzhou City, Mainland China
(“Xiangcheng JV”). The registered capital of the
Xiangcheng JV of RMB150 million shall be contributed
by joint venture parties in cash. The Xiangcheng JV will
be principally engaged in the provision of micro credit
and entrusted loans to small and medium enterprises in
Mainland China.

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial
statements, Fujian Minxin has not paid its 10% share of the
contribution to the registered capital of the Xiangcheng JV
of RMB15 million.

o
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AREER2013F 12 A31BFEEREZEE Details of the Group's principal property interests held for

BEDET

The People’s Republic of China

YIERER BT ¢ investment as at 31 December 2013 are as follows:
F5E BHRE
ik R BEE
JE%E Group's  Approximate BRRR
Lease attributable gross floor Existing
k-4 Location expiry interest area use
Alt%  Frkst
T AT R 18 847-865 5% Shops 7 &8 on ground floor including 2049 100 14,841 [EE
KEREH TR0 75 R 857 store 8 on the cockloft therein and Commercial
B RE 1ER the whole of 1st and 2nd floors
2BRE Winfield Building
847-865 Canton Road, Yaumatei
Hong Kong
PEARLAEREEBMNT 22/F and 23/F, Worldwide Plaza 2044 100 41,288 HE
AME 158 F R ES 2 ER 158 Wusi Road, Fuzhou, Fujian Commercial
B The People's Republic of China
hEARENEREERNT Carpark Nos. #24 to #28 and 2044 100 5227 EES
AN 158 R E S T #42 to #48, Basement Level 3 Commercial
“EEMRE 448 Worldwide Plaza
#42 5 #48 158 Wusi Road, Fuzhou, Fujian
The People’s Republic of China
PEARLAEREEBMNT Unit D2, 25/F, Huafu Building 2063 100 1,225 frz
AREINRERAE 121 Gutian Road, Fuzhou, Fujian Residential
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Min Xin Holdings Limited
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17th Floor, Fairmont House
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Central, Hong Kong
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Tel E 5% : 2521-5671
Fax & : 2530-5488

Website #831F : www.minxin.com.hk
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